Registered Office Address: Mindtree Ltd.

@/) M |n dtree Global Village, RVCE Post, Mysore Road,

Bengaluru-560059, Karnataka, India.
Welcome to possible Corporate Identity Number (CIN): L72200KA1999PLC025564
E-mail: info@mindtree.com

Ref: MT/STAT/CS/16-17] 72 August _©8, 2016
National Stock Exchange of India Limited
Exchange Plaza,

Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East,
Mumbai 400 051

Dear Sirs,

Ref: Application under Requlations 37 of SEBI (LODR) Requlations, 2015

Sub: Scheme of Amalgamation of Magnet 360, LLC (Transferor Company) with Mindtree Limited
(Transferee Company)

Dear Sir,

We refer to the above subject and in terms of Regulations 37 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, we would
like to bring to your kind notice that the Board of Directors of Mindtree Limited (Transferee Company) at
their meeting held on July 18, 2016 has approved the Scheme of Amalgamation of Magnet 360, LLC
(Transferor Company), the wholly owned subsidiary with Mindtree Limited (Transferee Company), the
holding Company.

As required we herewith submit 2 sets of required documents as per the checklist enclosed. We further
enclose herewith cheque bearing number 249791 for an amount of Rs.210,000/- (Rupees two lakhs ten
thousand only) dated July 28, 2016 drawn on HSBC, M G Road, Bangalore (Net amount after the deduction
of applicable TDS)

We request you to take the above document on record and grant us the approval at the earliest.

Thanking you,
Yours sincerely,

for Mindtree Limited

Vel L';}?

Vedavalli S
Company Secretary

Mindtree Ltd.

Global Village T +91806706 4000
RVCE Post, Mysore Road F +91806706 4100
Bengaluru - 560059 W www.mindtree.com
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List of documents to be submitted for obtaining approval under Regulation 37 of the SEBI (LODR)

Welcome to possible

Registered Office Address: Mindtree Ltd.
Global Village, RVCE Post, Mysore Road,
Bengaluru-560059, Karnataka, India.
Corporate Identity Number (CIN): L72200KA1999PLC025564

E-mail: info@mindtree.com

Regulations, 2015

(Amalgamation)

Sr.
No.

List of Documents/ details to be submitted

Yes/No/Not Applicable/ To be
submitted

Draft Scheme of atrangement/ amalgamation/ merger/
raconstruction/ reduction-of-capital, etc

Yes. Annexure A

Valuation Report as per Para 1{A}{4) of Annexure-| of SEBI
Circular CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015 dated November 30, 2015

Yes. Annexure B1

Report from the Audit Committee recommending the
Draft Scheme, taking into consideration, inter alia, the
Valuation Report.

Yes. Annexure B2

Fairness opinion by merchant banker on valuation of
assets / shares done by the valuer for the listed entity and
unlisted company

Yes. Annexure C

Shareholding pattern in accordance with Regulation 31 (1)
of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 - for pre and post
scheme of arrangement of the Companies.

Yes
Annexure D1- Transfereee Company
Annexure D2 - Transferor Company

Audited financials of last 3 years (financials not being more
than 6 months old) of unlisted company as per Annexure |

Yes
Annexure E1 - Transferee Company
audited financials for the year ended
Mar 31, 2014, Mar 31, 2015, Mar
31,2016
Annexure E2- Audited financials of
Transferor Company for the year
ended Dec 31, 2013, Dec 31, 2014,
Dec 31, 2015 and For the two
months ended {from the date of
acquisition) March 31, 2016

Auditor's Certificate as per Para 1{A)(5) of Annexure-I of
SEBI Circular CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015 dated November 30,
2015

Yes. Annexure F

Corporate Governance Report as per Regulation 27 (2) (a)
of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015

Yes. Annexure G

Mindtree Ltd.

Global Village T
RVCE Post, Mysore Road F
Bengaluru - 560059

+91 80 6706 4000
+91 806706 4100
W www.mindtree.com
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Welcome to possible

Registered Office Address: Mindtree Ltd.
Globat Village, RVCE Post, Mysore Road,
Bengaluru-560059, Karnataka, India.
Corporate Identity Number (CIN): L72200KA1999PLC0O25564
E-mail:

nio@mindtree com

Compliance report with the requirements specified in SEBI
Circular CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015 dated November 30, 2015
as per Annexure |

Yes. Annexure H

10

Document required to submit wherein approval of
shareholders to Scheme through postal ballot and e-voting
(Para 1(A)(9)(a) of Annexure-| of SEBI Circular
CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015 dated November 30, 2015) is not
applicable:

a) An undertaking certified by the auditor clearly stating
the reasons for non-applicability of Para 9 (a).

b) Certified copy of Board of Director’s resolution
approving the aforesaid auditor certificate.

Yes. Annexure |

11

Pre & Post Scheme Networth of the Companies involved in
the Scheme. Companies are required to submit Certificate
from Statutory Auditors / Practicing Chartered
Accountants / Practicing Company Secretary.

(Networth = Equity Share Capital + Free Reserves** -
Miscellaneous Expenditure written off, along with the
detailed working)

Yes. Annexure )

12

Board resolution approving the scheme of arrangement.

Yes. Annexure K1 - Transferee
Company
Annexure K2 - Transferor Company
[ s hayeholder Resolution]

13

Confirmation from the Company Secretary in accordance
with Regulation 11 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015
i.e. scheme of arrangement /amalgamation /merger
/reconstruction /reduction of capital etc. to be presented
to any Court or Tribunal does not in any way violate,
override or limit the provisions of securities laws or
requirements of the stock exchange(s).

Yes. Annexure L

14

Rationale behind the scheme of arrangement,

Yes. Annexure M

15

Brief details about the business of the Companies.

Yes. Annexure N

16

Website link of the Company where the draft Scheme and
other required documents shall be uploaded (Also submit
soft copy of the documents)

http://www.mindtree.com/about-

us/investors

17

Complaints Report as per Para 1{A){6) of Annexure-II of
SEBI Circular CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015 dated November 30,
2015

The details shall be submitted within
7 days from the expiry of 21 days

Mindtree Ltd.

Global Village
RVCE Post, Mysore Road F
Bengaluru - 560059

T +91806706 4000
+91 806706 4100
W www.mindtree.com
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Registered Office Address: Mindtree Ltd.

@% Mindtree Global Village, RVCE Post, Mysore Road,

Bengaluru-560059, Karnataka, India.
Welcome to possible Corporate Identity Number (CIN): L72200KA1999PLC0O25564

E-mail

nfo@minduee.com

18 Processing Fees of Rs. 2 Lac plus applicable service tax.
(Non-Refundable)

Date R onR oloce
Place Awg 08, 201 b
Authorised Signatory and Stamp of the company
For Mindtree Limited
ved —J
—_
Company Secretary
Name Vedavalli S
Designation Company Secretary

requirements of the regulatory authorities shall prevail.

* Provided that in case of Companies where the respective sectoral regulatory authorities have prescribed
norms for accounting treatment of items in the financial statements contained in the scheme, the

** Free Reserves to be considered as per Section 2(43) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Mindtree Ltd.

Global Village T +91806706 4000
RVCE Post, Mysore Road F +918067064100
Bengaluru - 560059 W www.mindtree.com



UTILITY FORMS{PVT. LTD, / CTS - 2010
|

REMITTANCE ADVICE

Mindtree Limited
Global Village, RVCE Post, Mysore Road, Bangalore-560 059, INDIA.
Phone +91 80 67064000

Favour 10 :

NATIONAL STOCK EXCHANGE OF INDIA
LTD

Exchange Plaza, BKC, Bandra (E)
Mumbai

IN

400051

Dear Sir/Madam,

We have settled the items listed below with the enclosed check for
payment 2161601960, subject to the goods and services supplied and the
invoice therefore being in order.

Kind regards

FOR MINDTREE LTD.

Document Ref.document Gross amount Deductions Net amount
2161504472ADV-MAGNET 3 230,000.00 20,000.00 210,000.00
Sum total 230,000.00 20,000.00 210,000.00

Alc Payee Only Valid for three months from the date of issuance
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited P 8,0 7 £ ¢ 16 = I
No. 7, Mahatma Gandhi Road, Bangalore - 560 001. D M M Y Y Y Y
IFSC CODE HSBC0560002
Pay NATIONAL STOCK EXCHANGE OF INDIA LTD R T

TWO LAKH TEN THOUSAND INR

vTARupees and PATSE 7ZERO *kkkxkx%x270,000.00%

I]T BN | i

For MINDTREE LIMITED

L

Authorlsed Slgnatorles

" Pls. Sign above this line

wm ¥l  071-838031-001

Payable at par at all Branches of HSBC In India

2L 7q 4" SE003IS00c2i ?R007 4 29



ANNEXURE A

SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION OF
MAGNET360, LLC WITH MINDTREE LIMITED

PART I

PRELIMINARY

A,

This Scheme of Amalgamation provides for the amalgamation of Magnet360,
LLC, a Minnesota limited liability company having its registered office at 5757
Wayzata Boulevard Minneapolis, MN 55416 USA (i.e. the “Transferor
Company”) with Mindtree Limited, having its registered office at Global
Village, RVCE Post, Mysore Road, Bangalore 560 059 (i.e. the “Transferee
Company”) pursuant to the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and
the Minnesota Revised Uniform Limited Liability Company Act, Chapter 322C
of the Minnesota Statutes.

The Transferor Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Transferee
Company.

The Transferor Company was organized on March 25, 2008 under Chapter
322B of the Minnesota Statutes and, effective February 19, 2016, elected to be
governed by Chapter 322C of the Minnesota Statutes and the Transferor
Company Operating Agreement. The Transferor Company is involved in the
business of full suite of salesforce solutions such as CRM, branded sites and
communities, social campaign strategy and management, and marketing
automation.

The Transferee Company was incorporated as a private company on August 5,
1999, under the name MindTree Consulting Private Limited as per the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. Subsequently, MindTree Consulting
Private Limited ceased to be a private company and the name of the Transferee
Company was changed to MindTree Consulting Limited on November 6, 2006.
Subsequently on March 28, 2008, the name of the Transferee Company was
changed from MindTree Consulting Limited to Mindtree Limited. The
Transferee Company is involved in the business of software and technology
related services, product development services, information management
services etc.

The merger of the Transferor Company under this Scheme of Amalgamation
will be effected as a Scheme under Sections 391 to 394 of the Companies Act,
1956 and provisions of the other Applicable Laws.

Under the laws of the States of Minnesota, this transaction will be characterised
as a merger of a Minnesota limited liability company with and into a foreign
organization under the Sections 322C.1001 through 322C.1005 of the
Minnesota Statutes, with the Transferee Company being the surviving
organization (as such term is defined in Section 322C.1001, Subdivision 13 of
the Minnesota Statutes).

For Mindtree Limited
€ ; Lﬁf | Page| 1

Company Secretary



By this Scheme, it is proposed to amalgamate the Transferor Company with the
Transferee Company, for the purposes of better, efficient and economical
management, control and running of the businesses, and for further
development and growth of the business of the Transferee Company and for
administrative convenience. The proposed amalgamation between the
Transferor Company and the Transferee Company shall result in the following,
benefits, amongst others, to both companies, their respective members and
creditors.

6] The amalgamation will enable the Transferee Company to integrate its
business operations and provide significant impetus to the growth of the
Transferee Company. The consolidation of the activities by way of an
amalgamation will lead to synergies of operations and a stronger and
wider capital and financial base for future growth/expansion. The
combined entity will have a bigger portfolio of services targeted at a
wider array of customers, which will strengthen its competitive position
in providing IT services /software & technology related services markets
This will also enable the Transferee Company to address newer
solutions and services to its customers and to the Transferor Company’s
customers and enhance its marketing capabilities.

(i)  The amalgamafion will result in economy of scales and reduction in
overheads, administrative, managerial and other expenditure, operational
rationalisation, organisational efficiency, and optimal utilisation of
various resources.

(i)  The managerial expertise of the Transferor Company will contribute to
the strength of the Transferee Company. Consequently, the Transferee
Company will offer a strong financial structure to all creditors including
the creditors of the Transferor Company, facilitate resource mobilisation
and achieve better cash flows. This would contribute substantially
towards enhancement of shareholder’s value of the Transferee
Company.

(iv)  Duplication of administrative functions will be eliminated together with
the multiple record - keeping resulting in reduced expenditure.

v) This amalgamation will result in a significant reduction in the
multiplicity of legal and regulatory compliances required at present to be

carried out by the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company.

(vi)  The banks, creditors and institutions, if any, are not affected by the
proposed amalgamation as their security is maintained.

(vii) There shall be impetus and increase in the area of sales, network of the
Transferee Company apart from reduction in costs.

(viii) The amalgamation shall result in the combination of manpower of both
the company and a single management structure for the company.

Q}: Page | 2
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(ix) The combined managerial and technical expertise would enable the
Transferee Company to develop a business model that would be
competitive and cogent.

PART II

IN CONSIDERATION OF THE RECIPROCAL PROMISES, THIS SCHEME
BETWEEN THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY AND THE TRANSFEREE
COMPANY AND THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS, CREDITORS
(SECURED AND UNSECURED) IS BEING PROPOSED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE TERMS SET OUT HEREUNDER:

1.

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATIONS

In this Scheme, unless repugnant to the meaning or context thereof, the
following expressions shall have the following meaning:

“Act” means the Companies Act, 1956, as may be applicable, including any
statutory modifications, re-enactments or amendments thereto and shall include
the relevant and corresponding sections under the Companies Act, 2013, as and
when the same are made applicable.

“Appropriate Authorities” means any governmental, statutory, regulatory,
department or public body or authority of the relevant jurisdiction, including, if
applicable, Securities and Exchange Board of India, stock exchanges, Registrar
of Companies, Courts, National Company Law Tribunal and other regulatory
authorities of the State of Minnesota, United States of America and India.

"Appointed Date" means April 1, 2016.

“Applicable Laws” shall include all applicable:

(i) statutes, enactments, acts of legislature or parliament, laws, ordinances,
rules, bye-laws, regulations, listing agreements, notifications, guidelines
or policies of any applicable country and/or jurisdiction; and

(i) judicial, quasi-judicial and/or administrative decisions, interpretations,
directions, directives, licenses, permits, judgments, writs, injunctions,
arbitral awards, decrees, orders, terms and conditions of governmental or
regulatory approvals or agreements with any governmental or regulatory
authority.

"Effective Date" means last of the dates specified in Clause 13 of this Scheme.

“Minnesota Statutes” means the Minnesota Revised Uniform Limited Liability
Company Act and Chapter 322C of the Minnesota Statutes.

“Order” means the order of the High Court of Karnataka or National Company
Law Tribunal, sanctioning the Composite Scheme of Amalgamation.

CJ_// Page |3



1.8

1.9

1.10

1.11

1.12

“Scheme” or “The Scheme” means this Composite Scheme of Amalgamation
in its present form as approved by the Board of Directors of the Transferor
Company and Transferee Company subject to such modification(s) made under
Clause 12 of this Scheme as the High Court of Karnataka/ National Company
Law Tribunal may impose on the Transferee Company and such modifications
which the Transferor Company may deem necessary subject to the approval of
the same by the High Court of Karnataka/ National Company Law Tribunal.

“Transferee Company” means Mindtree Limited, a company incorporated
under the Companies Act, 1956 and having its registered office at Global
Village, RVCE Post, Mysore Road, Bangalore 560 059.

“Transferor Company” means Magnet360, LLC, a limited liability company
organized in the State of Minnesota, United States of America, and governed by
Chapter 322C of the Minnesota Statutes.

“Transferor Company Operating Agreement” means the Operating
Agreement of the Transferor Company dated February 19, 2016, amending and
restating the Amended and Restated Member Control Agreement dated January
1,2012.

“Undertaking of the Transferor Company” means the business of the
Transferor Company and includes:

(a) all the assets of the Transferor Company as on the Appointed Date;
(b) all the liabilties of the Transferor Company as on the Appointed Date;

Without prejudice to the generality of the above, the Undertaking of the
Transferor Company shall include all rights, privileges, powers and authorities
and all property, movable or immovable, real or personal, corporeal or
incorporeal of whatsoever nature, in possession or reversion, present or
contingent of whatever nature and where so ever situated in the United States of
America or overseas, and where so ever situate belonging to or in the
ownership, power or possession and/or in the control of or vested in or granted
in favour of or enjoyed by the Transferor Company including in particular, but
without being limited to fixed assets, capital work-in-progress, current assets,
debts, receivables, investments, software, technologies, belonging to or in the
ownership, power or possession and/or in the control of or vested in or granted
in favour of or enjoyed by the Transferor Company, powers, authorities,
allotments, approvals, permissions, licenses, consents, exemptions,
registrations, statutory licences, no-objection certificates and certifications,
contracts, engagements, arrangements, rights, title, interest, quotas, benefits and
advantages of whatsoever nature and where so ever situated, liberties,
easements, advantages, exemptions, benefits, leases, leasehold rights, licences,
tenancy rights, quota rights, permits, approvals, authorisations, right to use and
avail of telephones, telexes, facsimile connections & installations, utilities,
electricity, power lines, communication lines and other services, reserves,
deposits, provisions, funds, benefits of all agreements, subsidies, grants, sales-
tax, turnover tax, excise, permits, quotas, rights, entitlements, tenancies, roof
rights, brand, all copyrights, trademarks, service marks, know-how, technical
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1.13

2.1

2.2

31

3.1.1

know-how, trade names, descriptions, trading style, franchise, labels, label,
designs, colour schemes, utility models, holograms, bar codes, designs, patents,
copyrights, and other industrial or intellectual property rights of any nature
whatsoever and licences in respect thereof, privileges and any rights, title or
interest in intellectual property rights, benefits of contracts, agreements and all
other rights including lease rights, licenses including those relating to
trademarks, or service marks, powers and facilities of every kind, nature and
description whatsoever of the Transferor Company or to which the Transferor
Company is entitled and all the debts, liabilities including contingent liabilities,
duties, responsibilities and obligations of Transferor Company on the Appointed
Date and all other obligations of whatsoever kind including liabilities for
payment of gratuity, pension benefits, provident fund or compensation in the
event of retrenchment and all other interests arising to the Transferor Company
and any accretions or additions thereto after the Appointed Date.

Reference in the Scheme to “upon the Scheme becoming effective” or
“effectiveness of the Scheme” shall mean the Effective Date.

SHARE CAPITAL

The share capital of the Transferee Company as on June 30, 2016 is as under:

Particulars Amount in Rs.
Authorised Share Capital

800,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each/- 8,000,000,000/-
Issued , Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital

167,830,816 Equity shares of Rs 10/each 1,678,308,160/-

The Transferce Company is the sole member of the Transferor Company and
owns 100% of the membership interests in the Transferor Company.

AMALGAMATION OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY WITH THE
TRANSFEREE COMPANY

TRANSFER AND VESTING OF ASSETS

Upon coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed
Date and subject to the provisions of this Scheme including in relation to the
mode of transfer and vesting, all of the assets, both movable and immovable,
tangible and intangible, investments, rights, title and interests comprised in the
Undertaking of Transferor Company shall pursuant to Section 394 of the
Companies Act, 1956 and Section 322C.1005 of the Minnesota Statutes and
without any further act or deed be transferred to and vested in the Transferee
Company so as to become as and from the Appointed Date, the estate, assets,
rights, title and interest of the Transferee Company.

The mode of vesting of assets referred to in Clause 3.1.1 is as under:

3.1.2.1 In respect of such of the said assets as are movable in nature including
investments or are otherwise capable of transfer by manual delivery

S(\;’g Page | 5



and/or by endorsement and delivery, the same shall be so transferred by
the Transferor Company to the Transferee Company in pursuance of the
provisions of this Scheme, Section 394 of the Companies Act, 1956, ,
provisions of Section 322C.1005 of the Minnesota Statutes in relation to
the Transferor Company and other Applicable Laws, without requiring
any deed or instrument of conveyance for the same and upon such
transfer the same shall become the property, estate, assets, rights, title
interest and authorities of the Transferee Company.

3.1.2.2 In respect of such of the said assets of the Transferor Company other
than those referred to in Clause 3.1.2.1 above including the immovable
assets, the same shall, without any further act, instrument or deed, be
and stand transferred to and vested in and/or deemed to be transferred to
and vested in the Transferee Company with effect from the Appointed
Date pursuant to the provisions of Section 394 of the Companies Act,
1956 and the concerned authorities having jurisdiction over the assets
shall endorse and record the name of Transferee Company in its record
so as to facilitate the implementation of the Scheme and vesting of the
Undertaking of the Transferor Company in the Transferee Company
without hindrance from the Appointed Date. For the avoidance of doubt,
it is hereby clarified that all the rights, title and interest of the Transferor
Company in any leasehold properties shall pursuant to Section 394 of
the Companies Act, 1956 and the provisions of this Scheme and
provisions of Section 322C.1005 of the Minnesota Statutes in realtion to
the Transferor Company and other Applicable Laws, without any
further act or deed, be and stand transferred to and vested in and/or be
deemed to have been and stand transferred to and vested in the
Transferee Company so as to become as and from the Appointed Date,
the right, title and interest of the Transferee Company.

3.1.2.3 In respect of movable assets, other than those specified in Clause 3.1.2.1
above, including all businesses through /with existing sub-brokers /
authorised persons /clients and related rights & obligations, undertakings
/ records / know your customer documents, sundry debtors, outstanding
loans, advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be
received, bank balances, cash balances and deposits with Government,
Semi Government, local and other authorities, bodies and customers,
etc., the same shall be so transferred by the Transferor Company, and
shall become the property of the Transferee Company in pursuance of
the provisions of Section 394 of the Companies Act, 1956 and
provisions of Section 322C.1005 of the Minnesota Statutes in relation to
the Transferor Company and other Applicable Laws without requiring
any deed or instrument of conveyance for the same and further it shall
not be necessary to obtain the consent of any third party or other person,
who is a party to any contract or arrangement by virtue of which such
debts, loans, advances or deposits have arisen in order to give effect to
the provisions of this Clause. The Transferee Company may, if required,
give notice in such form as it may deem fit and proper to such person,
debtor or depositee that pursuant to the High Court of Karnataka/ /
National Company Law Tribunal having sanctioned the Scheme, the
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said person, debtor or depositee should pay the debt, loan or advance or
make good the same or hold the same to its account and that the right of
the Transferee Company to recover or realise the same is in substitution
of the right of the Transferor Company. The Transferee Company shall
under the provisions of the Scheme be deemed to be authorised to
execute any such writings on behalf of the Transferor Company and to
implement or carry out all such formalities or compliances referred to
above on the part of the Transferor Company to be carried out or
performed.

3.1.2.4 All patents, copyrights, designs, trademarks, service marks, know-how,
technical know-how, trade names, descriptions, trading style, franchise,
labels, label designs, colour schemes, utility models, holograms, bar
codes, patents, copyrights, and other industrial or intellectual property
rights of any nature whatsoever and licenses, privileges in respect
thereof, of every kind, nature and description whatsoever of the
Transferor Company or to which the Transferor Company is entitled or
which may accrue to the Transferor Company shall, pursuant to the
provisions of Section 394 of the Companies Act, 1956 or provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 as may be applicable and provisions of Section
322C.1005 of the Minnesota Statutes in relation to Transferor Company
and other Applicable Laws without any further act, instrument or deed,
be and stand transferred to and vested in and or be deemed to have been
transferred to and vested in and be available to the Transferee Company
so as to become as and from the Appointed Date, all the patents,
copyrights, designs, trademarks, service marks, know-how, technical
know-how, trade names, descriptions, trading style, franchise, labels,
label designs, colour schemes, utility models, holograms, bar codes,
patents, copyrights, and industrial or intellectual property rights, licenses
and privileges of the Transferee Company and shall remain valid,
effective and enforceable by the Transferee Company on the same terms
and conditions.

3.1.2.5 All the licenses, permits, quotas, approvals, permissions, incentives,
sales tax deferrals, loans, subsidies, concessions, grants, rights, claims,
leases, tenancy rights, liberties, rehabilitation schemes, special status and
other benefits or privileges enjoyed or conferred upon or held or availed
of by and all rights and benefits that have accrued, which may accrue to
the Transferor Company shall, pursuant to the provisions of Section 394
of the Companies Act, 1956 or provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
as may be applicable, provisions of Section 322C.1005 of the Minnesota
Statutes in relation to the Transferor Company and other Applicable
Laws without any further act, instrument or deed, be and stand
transferred to and vested in and or be deemed to have been transferred to
and vested in and be available to the Transferee Company so as to
become as and from the Appointed Date the licenses, permits, quotas,
approvals, permissions, incentives, sales tax deferrals, loans, subsidies,
concessions, grants, rights, claims, leases, tenancy rights, liberties,
rehabilitation schemes, special status and other benefits or privileges of
the Transferee Company and shall remain valid, effective and
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enforceable on the same terms and conditions to the extent permissible
under law.

3.1.2.6 Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, and subject to the
provisions of this Scheme and receipt of third party consents if
necessary, all contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements, arrangements
including but not limited to all direct and indirect tax exemptions and/or
deferral benefits and/or any other direct or indirect tax benefits and all
other instruments of whatsoever nature to which the Transferor
Company is a party or to the benefit of which Transferor Company may
be eligible, and which are subsisting or having effect immediately before
the Effective Date, shall remain in full force and effect against or in
favour of the Transferee Company as the case may be and may be
enforced as fully and effectually as if, instead of Transferor Company,
the Transferee Company had been a party or beneficiary or obligee
thereto. The Transferee Company shall, wherever and if necessary, enter
into and/or issue and/or execute deeds, writings or confirmations, enter
into any tripartite arrangements, confirmations or novations to which
Transferor Company will also be a party in order to give formal effect to
the provisions of this clause. Similarly, the exemption privilege and
benefits under direct and indirect taxes availed/ enjoyed currently by the
Transferor Company shall continue to be available in the hands of the
Transferee Company unhindered even after/upon coming into effect of
this Scheme.

3.1.2.7 All the profits or incomes accruing or arising to the Transferor
Company, or expenditure or losses arising or incurred (including the
effect of taxes, if any, thereon) by the Transferor Company shall, for all
purposes, be treated and be deemed to be and accrue as the profits or
incomes or expenditure or losses or taxes of the Transferee Company, as
the case may be.

It is clarified that all assets and receivables whether contingent or otherwise of
the Transferor Company as on start of business on the Appointed Date whether
provided for or not, in the books of accounts and all other assets or receivables
which may accrue or arise on or after the Appointed Date but which relate to the
period up to the Appointed Date shall be the assets and receivables of the
Transferee Company.

The aforesaid transfer/vesting, shall be, subject to the existing validly created
charge/mortgage/hypothecation over the said assets or any part of it, provided
however, that any reference in any security documents to which the Transferor
Company is a party, to such assets of the Transferor Company, offered or
agreed to be offered as security for any financial assistance both availed and to
be availed up to any limit for which sanctions have already been obtained by the
Transferor Company or obligations to the secured creditors of the Transferor
Company shall be construed as references only to the assets pertaining to the
Transferor Company as are vested in the Transferee Company by virtue of the
aforesaid Clause 3.1.1 of the Scheme to the end and intent that such security,
mortgage and/or charge shall not extend or deemed to extend to any of the
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3.2

3.2.1

322

assets or to any of the other units or divisions or undertakings of the Transferee
Company, unless specifically and in writing agreed to by the Transferee
Company with such secured creditors and subject to the consents and approvals
of the existing secured creditors of the Transferee Company with such secured
creditors and subject to the consents and approvals of the existing secured
creditors of the Transferee Company either on pari passu basis or otherwise, as
may be agreed to by the Transferee Company and the secured creditors. The
secured creditors of the Transferee Company shall continue to have a charge
over the assets of the Transferee Company and such charge shall not extend to
the assets of the Transferor Company, transferred to the Transferee Company
pursuant to the Scheme. In respect of the floating charges created by the
Transferor Company in favour of its lenders for all the movable assets,
documents of title to goods, receivables, claims and other current assets that are
acquired by the Transferor Company from the Appointed Date till the Effective
Date shall be deemed to be the security and shall be available as security for the
loans, cash credits and other working capital facilities, both fund based and non-
fund based, which were sanctioned by the lenders of the Transferor Company,
either utilised fully or partly or unutilised by the Transferor Company, subject
to the limits sanctioned by the lenders.

TRANSFER OF LIABILITIES

Upon coming into effect of the Scheme and with effect from the Appointed
Date:

All secured and unsecured debts, (whether in Rupees or in foreign currency) all
liabilities, duties and obligations of the Transferor Company (hereinafter
referred to as the “said Liabilities™) shall also be and stand transferred or be
deemed to be and stand transferred, without any further act, instrument or deed,
to the Transferee Company, pursuant to the provisions of Section 394 of the
Companies Act, 1956 or provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 as may be
applicable and provisions of Section 322C.1005 of the Minnesota Statutes in
relation to the Transferor Company and other Applicable Laws so as to become
as and from the Appointed Date the debts, liabilities, duties and obligations of
the Transferee Company such that it shall not be necessary to obtain the consent
of any third party or other person who is a party to any contract or arrangement
by virtue of which such debts, liabilities, duties and obligations have arisen in
order to give effect to the provisions of this clause. Provided always that
nothing in this clause shall or is intended to enlarge the security for any loan,
deposit or other indebtedness created by the Transferor Company prior to the
Appointed Date which shall be transferred to and be vested in the Transferee
Company by virtue of the amalgamation and the Transferee Company shall not
be required or obliged in any manner to create any further or additional security
thereof after the Appointed Date or otherwise.

Any loans or other obligations due between or amongst the Transferor
Company and the Transferee Company shall stand discharged and there shall be
no liability or debt in that behalf. It is clarified that all debts, liabilities, duties,
responsibilities and obligations of the Transferor Company as on start of
business on the Appointed Date whether provided for or not in the books of

G
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3.2.6

3.2.7

accounts and all other liabilities etc which may accrue or arise on or after the
Appointed Date but which relates to the period up to the Appointed Date shall
be the debts, liabilities, duties and obligations of the Transferee Company.

All the loans advanced and other facilities sanctioned to the Transferor
Company by its bankers/financial institutions prior to the Appointed Date which
are partly drawn/utilised shall be deemed to be the loans/advances sanctioned to
the Transferee Company and the said loans and advances shall be drawn/utilised
either partly or fully by the Transferor Company from the Appointed Date till
the Effective Date and all the loans/advances and/or other facilities so drawn by
the Transferor Company shall on the Effective Date be treated as the advances
and loans made available to the Transferee Company and any balance in the
said accounts shall be transferred to the Transferee Company and all the
obligations of the Transferor Company under any loan agreement shall be
construed as and shall become the obligation of the Transferee Company
without any further act or deed on the part of the Transferee Company.

The Transferee Company may at any time after the coming into effect of this
Scheme in accordance with the provisions hereof, if so required, under any
Applicable Law or otherwise, execute deeds of confirmation, in favour of the
secured creditors of the Transferor Company or in favour of any other party to
any contract or arrangement to which they are a party or any writings as may be
necessary to be executed in order to give formal effect to the above provisions.
The Transferee Company shall under the provisions of the Scheme be deemed
to be authorised to execute any such writings on behalf of the Transferor
Company and to implement or carry out all such formalities or compliance
referred to above on their part to be carried out or performed.

It is hereby clarified that merely the increase in the size and turnover of the
Transferee Company subsequent to this Scheme shall not have the effect of
increasing any liability or penalty on the Transferee Company for any matters
that arise prior to the Appointed Date.

Upon coming into effect of the Scheme, benefits of all taxes paid including any
advance tax and tax deductions right to carry forward and set off unabsorbed
losses, unused tax credits, tax deductions and depreciation by the Transferor
Company from the Appointed Date, regardless of the period to which they
relate, shall be deemed to be paid for and on behalf of and to the credit of the
Transferee Company as effectively as if the Transferee Company has paid or
incurred the same and shall be deemed to be the rights/claims of the Transferee
Company.

The existing social security or labour welfare schemes, and pension and / or
superannuation fund or trusts created by the Transferor Company or any other
special funds created or existing for the benefit of the employees of the
Transferor Company shall at an appropriate stage be transferred to the relevant
funds of the Transferee Company and till such time shall be maintained
separately.

oF
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The Transferee Company, if necessary shall take steps for suitable alterations in
the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association so as to enable it
to implement this Scheme as may be required.

CONTRACTS, DEEDS, BONDS AND OTHER INSTRUMENTS.

Subject to the other provisions contained in the Scheme, all contracts, deeds,
bonds, agreements and other instruments of whatsoever nature to which the
Transferor Company is a party subsisting or having effect immediately before
the amalgamation, shall be, in full force and effect, against or in favour of the
Transferee Company, as the case may be, and may be enforced as fully and
effectively as if instead of the Transferor Company, the Transferee Company
had been a party thereto. The Transferee Company shall enter into and/or issue
and/or execute deeds, writings or confirmation or enter into any tripartite
arrangement, confirmations or novations to which the Transferor Company will,
if necessary, also be party in order to give formal effect to the provisions of this
clause, if so required or it becomes necessary.

TREATMENT OF TAXES PAID BY THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY:

All taxes, levies, cess etc. (whether direct or indirect) that might have been paid
by the Transferor Company (whether before the Appointed Date or after the
Appointed Date) during the period when the merger has not become effective
for any tax liability that arises after the Appointed Date shall be deemed to be
tax paid by the Transferee Company and credit in respect thereof shall be given
to the Transferee Company accordingly.

TREATMENT OF SCHEME FOR THE PURPOSES OF THE INCOME
TAX ACT, 1961

This Scheme has been drawn up to comply and come within the definition and
conditions relating to "Amalgamation" as specified under Section 2(1B) and
Section 47 of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

If any terms or provisions of the Scheme are found or interpreted to be
inconsistent with the provisions of the said sections of the Income Tax Act,
1961, at a later date, including resulting from an amendment of any Applicable
Law or for any other reason whatsoever, the Scheme shall stand modified/
amended to the extent determined necessary to comply and come within the
definition and conditions relating to “Amalgamation” as specified in the Income
Tax Act, 1961. In such an event the clauses which are inconsistent shall be read
down or if the need arises be deemed to be deleted and such
modification/reading down or deemed deletion shall however not affect the
other parts of the Scheme.

Any refund under the tax laws received by or due to the Transferor Company
consequent to any assessments made on the Transferor Company subsequent to
the Appointed Date pertaining to the business transferred and for which no
credit is taken in the accounts as on the ‘date immediately preceding the
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4.3

4.4

4.5

Appointed Date, shall also belong to and be received by the Transferee
Company.

TRANSFER OF EMPLOYEES
On the Effective Date:

The services of all the employees of the Transferor Company shall stand
transferred to the Transferee Company on the terms and conditions not less
beneficial to such employees than those subsisting with reference to the
Transferor Company. The position, rank, and designation of the employees
would be decided by the Transferee Company.

The services of such employees shall not be treated as broken or interrupted for
the purposes of bonus, provident fund, gratuity, superannuation or other
statutory purposes and for all purposes will be reckoned from the date of their
respective appointments with the respective Transferor Company, as the case
may be.

Subject to Clause 4.1, the Transferee Company shall have the right to transfer
such employees to any unit, division, profit/cost centre or department of the
Transferee Company situated anywhere in India or abroad if warranted and as
may be deemed necessary from time to time.

The Transferee Company shall assume all of the rights, obligations, and
liabilities of the Transferor Company in connection with any immigration
related matters including any programs, fillings, etc. in the United States of
America.

In regard to labour welfare fund or social security benefits or any other special
fund created or existing for the benefit of such employees of the Transferor
Company, upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferee Company shall
stand substituted for the Transferor Company for all purposes whatsoever
relating to the administration or operation of such schemes or funds in relation
to the obligations to make contributions to the said funds in accordance with the
provisions of such schemes or funds in the respective trust deeds or other
documents. It is the aim and intent of the Scheme that all the rights, duties,
powers and obligations of the Transferor Company in relation to such schemes
or funds shall become those of the Transferee Company and if necessary the
names of the aforesaid funds or schemes will be suitably changed. It is clarified
that the services of the employees of the Transferor Company will be treated as
having been continuous for the purpose of the aforesaid schemes, fund, trusts,
etc. In the event that the trustees/funds are constituted as holders of any
securities, trust funds of trust monies, in relation to any provident fund trust,
gratuity trust or superannuation trust of the Transferor Company, such
funds/securities/ monies shall be transferred by such funds/ trustees of the trusts
of the Transferor Company to such funds/trustees of the trusts of the Transferee
Company as may be existing or set up for the same purpose and object and such
transfer shall be deemed to be a transfer of trust property from one set of
trustees to another set of trustees in accordance with the provisions of the
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Applicable Laws and relevant stamp legislation as applicable. In such case,
appropriate Deed(s) of Trust and/or documents for transfer of trust properties
shall be executed simultaneously upon the sanction of the Scheme in accordance
with the terms hereof by the trustees in favour of the trusts of the Transferee
Company so as to continue the benefits of the employees. For this purpose such
funds or schemes of the Transferor Company may be continued and/or
amalgamated with and/or transferred to the similar funds/schemes of the
Transferee Company, if the Transferee Company considers so desirable or
deemed fit for the smooth administration, management, operation and
uniformity of such funds/schemes so however, that such funds/schemes do not
become less favourable to the employees of the Transferor Company with
reference to those on the date preceding the Effective Date. The trustees
including the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company shall be entitled to
adopt such course in this regard as may be advised provided however that there
shall be no discontinuation or breakage in the service of the employees of the
Transferor Company.

It is clarified that with regard to such employees of the Transferor Company
who have ceased to be the employees of the Transferor Company on account of
reasons other than any disciplinary action that may have been taken against such
employees by the Transferor Company, from the Appointed Date, the
Transferee Company shall assume all the responsibilities and obligations of the
Transferor Company towards such employees until the said responsibilities and
obligations stand duly discharged in law.

CONDUCT OF BUSINESS TILL EFFECTIVE DATE
With effect from the Appointed Date and upto and including the Effective Date:

the Transferor Company shall be deemed to have been carrying on and shall
carry on all their business(es) and activity(ies) and shall be deemed to have held
and stood possessed of and shall hold and stand possessed of all of the assets of
the Transferor Company for and on account of and in trust for the Transferee
Company. The Transferor Company hereby undertakes to hold the said assets
with utmost prudence until the Effective Date.

the Transferor Company shall carry on their business and activities with
reasonable diligence, business prudence in the ordinary course of business and
shall not (without the prior written consent of the Transferee Company)
alienate, charge, mortgage, encumber or otherwise deal with or dispose of any
of its units/undertakings or any part thereof except pursuant to any pre-existing
obligation undertaken by the Transferor Company prior to the Appointed Date.

all the profits or income accruing to the Transferor Company or expenditure or
losses arising or incurred or suffered by Transferor Company shall pursuant to
coming into effect of the Scheme for all purposes be treated and be deemed to
be and accrue as the income or profits or losses or expenditure, as the case may
be, of the Transferee Company.
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7.1

8.1

8.2

Save as provided for in this Scheme, the Transferor Company shall not make
any change in its capital structure either by any increase (by fresh issue of equity
shares whether by way of public issue, private placement, on a rights basis, or
issuance of bonus shares, convertible debentures or otherwise), decrease,
reduction, reclassification, sub-division or consolidation, re-organisation, or in
any other manner which may, in any way, affect the operation of the Scheme,
except by mutual consent of the respective Boards of Directors of the Transferor
Company and Transferee Company.

The Transferor Company shall also be entitled, pending the sanction of the
Scheme, to apply to the Appropriate Authority, as are necessary for such
consents, approvals and sanctions which the Transferee Company may require.

The Transferee Company shall carry on the business of the Transferor Company
after the Effective Date.

CONCLUDED MATTERS

The transfer and vesting of the assets and the liabilities in the Transferee
Company and the continuance of contracts or proceedings by or against the
Transferee Company as provided in this Scheme shall not affect any contract or
proceedings relating to the assets and the liabilities, fully performed and
completed by the Transferor Company before the Appointed Date and the
Transferee Company accepts and adopts all such acts, deeds, matters and things
done and or executed by the Transferor Company in this regard.

DISOLUTION OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY

On the Scheme becoming effective, Transferor Company shall stand dissolved
without being wound up pursuant to the provisions of Sections 322C.0701
through 322C.0707 or Article V of the Transferor Company Operating
Agreement.

CONSIDERATION BY THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY

The Transferor Company is the wholly owned subsidiary of the Transferee
Company and the entire membership interest of Transferor Company is held by
the Transferee Company. The Transferor Company undertakes not to effect any
change in its membership interests till this Scheme comes into effect. Upon the
coming into effect of this Scheme, the investment made by the Transferee
Company in the membership interest of the Transferor Company shall stand
cancelled and no shares shall be issued by the Transferee Company to the
member of the Transferor Company, without there being any further act or deed
in furtherance thereof.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the entire membership interest of the
Transferor Company shall be cancelled and extinguished.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT
S
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The Transferee Company shall, upon the Scheme becoming operative, record
the assets and liabilities of the Transferor Company vested in it pursuant to this
Scheme, at the respective book values as on March 31, 2016 determined under
purchase method when the subsidiary was acquired in accordance with the
applicable accounting standards.

The investments made in the share capital of the Transferor Company by
Transferee Company will stand cancelled.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, any goodwill arising out of
amalgamation, shall be treated in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

PENDING LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

If any suit, appeal or other proceeding of whatever nature by or against
Transferor Company be pending, the same shall not abate or be discontinued or
be in any way prejudicially affected by reason of the amalgamation by anything
contained in this Scheme, but the said suit, appeal or other legal proceedings
may be continued prosecuted and enforced by or against the Transferee
Company in the same manner and to the same extent as it would or might have
been continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the Transferor Company
as if this Scheme had not been made. Therefore, upon this Scheme coming into
effect, all legal actions, suits, writs or other proceedings by or against the
Transferor Company pending and/or arising on or before the Effective Date
shall be continued and be enforced by or against the Transferee Company, as
the case may be, as effectually as if the same had been pending and/or arising
by or against the Transferee Company. As contemplated by Section 322C.1005,
Subd. 2, of the Minnesota Statutes, the Transferee Company, as of the Effective
Date, consents to the jurisdiction of the courts of the State of Minnesota to
enforce any debt, obligation, or other liability owed by the Transferor Company
if before the Effective Date, the Transferor Company is subject to suit in the
State of Minnesota on such debt, obligation, or other liability. If the Transferee
Company is not authorized to transact business as a foreign organization in the
State Minnesota, the Transferee Company appoints the Secretary of State of the
State of Minnesota as its agent for service of process for the purposes of
enforcing a debt, obligation, or other liability under Section 322C.1005, Subd.
2, of the Minnesota Statutes.

APPLICATION TO THE HONOURABLE HIGH COURT OF
KARNATAKA, NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL AND
OTHER APPLICABLE AUTHORITIES

The Transferee Company shall, with all reasonable dispatch, make application
to the High Court of Karnataka or the National Company Law Tribunal where
the registered office of the Transferee Company is situated, for sanctioning this
Scheme under Section 391 to 394 of the Companies Act, 1956 for an Order or
Orders thereof sanctioning this Scheme and for carrying this Scheme into effect.
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13.1

The Transferor Company shall initiate and pursue all actions necessary under
the Section 322C.1001 through 322C.1005 of the Minnesota Statutes and
provisions of any other Applicable Law under the State of Minnesota, United
States of America for sanctioning of the Scheme and obtain all such approvals if
any, as may be required under the relevant Applicable Laws.

MODIFICATIONS/AMENDMENTS TO THE SCHEME

The Transferor Company and Transferee Company by their respective Boards
of Directors may make and/or consent to any modifications/amendments to the
Scheme or to any conditions or limitations that the court or any other authority
may deem fit to direct or impose or which may otherwise be considered
necessary, desirable or appropriate by them. The Transferor Company and
Transferee Company by their respective Boards of Directors shall be authorised
to take all such steps as may be necessary, desirable or proper to resolve any
doubts, difficulties or questions whether by reason of any directive or orders of
any other authorities or otherwise howsoever arising out of or under or by virtue
of the Scheme and/or any matter concerned or connected therewith.

For the purpose of giving effect to this Scheme or to any modifications or
amendments thereof or additions thereto, the delegate(s)/ representative(s) of
the Transferee Company may give and are hereby authorized to determine and
give all such directions as are necessary including directions for settling or
removing any question of doubt or difficulty that may arise and such
determination or directions, as the case may be, shall be binding on all parties,
in the same manner as if the same were specifically incorporated in this
Scheme.

SCHEME CONDITIONAL ON APPROVALS/SANCTIONS
The Scheme is condition on and subject to:

13.1.1 Approval of the Scheme by the requisite majority of the members,
creditors and such class of persons of the Transferee Company as may
be directed by the High Court of Karnataka/ National Company Law
Tribunal on applications made for directions under Section 391 of the
Companies Act, 1956/ or applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013.

13.1.2 Approval of the Scheme by the Board of Directors and the sole member
of the Transferor Company as may be prescribed under the applicable
provisions of Section 322C.1003 of the Minnesota Statutes, all other
Applicable Laws and the Transferor Company Operating Agreement.

13.1.3 Sanctions and Orders under the provisions of Section 391 read with
Section 394 of the Company Act, 1956 or the applicable provisions
under the Companies Act, 2013 being obtained by the Transferee
Company from the High Court of Karnataka or the National Company
Law Tribunal or Appropriate Authority.

Gk
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13.3
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15.1

16.

13.1.4 All other sanctions and approvals as may be required by any Applicable
Law in respect of this Scheme being obtained.

It is clarified that the provisions of paragraph 5.16 (a) introduced through
circular bearing no CIR/CFD/DIL/8/2013 dated May 21, 2013 as an amendment
to the circular bearing no CIR/CFD/DIL/5/2013 dated February 4, 2013 issued
by the Securities and Exchange Board of India shall not be applicable to this
Scheme.

This Scheme, although to come into operation from the Appointed Date, shall
not become effective until the last of the following dates, namely:

13.3.1 That on which the last of the aforesaid consents, approvals, permissions,
resolutions, assignments and orders as mentioned in Clause 13.1 shall be
obtained or passed.

13.3.2 That on which all necessary certified copies of Orders under Sections
391 and 394 of the Companies Act, 1956 or the applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 shall be duly filed with the Registrar of
Companies, Karnataka and such other Appropriate Authority located in
the State of Minnesota, United States of America, if so required.

13.3.3 That articles of merger executed by the Transferor Company and the
Transferee Company, shall be filed with the Minnesota Secretary of
State as contemplated by and in compliance with Section 322C.1004 of
the Minnesota Statutes

The last of such dates shall be the “Effective Date” for the purpose of this
Scheme.

OPERATIVE DATE OF THE SCHEME

It is clarified that the Scheme shall become effective from the Effective Date
however it shall be operative from the Appointed Date.

COSTS

All costs, charges and expenses including stamp duty and registration fee of any
deed, document, instrument or court’s order including this Scheme or in relation
to or in connection with negotiations leading upto the Scheme and of carrying
out and implementing the terms and provisions of this Scheme and incidental to
the completion of arrangement in pursuance of this Scheme shall be borne and
paid by the Transferee Company.

EFFECT OF NON RECEIPT OF APPROVAL/SANCTION

In the event of any of the said sanctions and approvals referred to in Clause 13
above not being obtained and/or complied with and/or satisfied and/or this
Scheme not being sanctioned by the High Court of Karnataka/ National
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Company Law Tribunal/ Appropriate Authority and/or Order or Orders not
being passed as aforesaid before or within such further period or periods as may
be agreed upon between the Boards of Directors of the Transferor Company and
the Transferee Company (who are hereby empowered and authorised to agree to
and extend the aforesaid period from time to time without any limitations in
exercise of their powers through and by their respective delegate(s)) or for any
other reason this Scheme cannot be made effective, this Scheme shall stand
revoked, cancelled, be of no effect and be null and void. No rights and liabilities
shall accrue to or be incurred inter-se by the parties in terms of the Scheme,
save and except in respect of any act or deed done prior thereto as is
contemplated hereunder or as to any right, liability or obligation which has
arisen or accrued pursuant thereto and which shall be governed and be
preserved or worked out as may otherwise arise in law. Further the Boards of
Directors of the Transferor Company and Transferee Company shall be entitled
to revoke, cancel and declare the Scheme to be of no effect if such Boards are of
view that the coming into effect of the Scheme in terms of the provisions of this
Scheme or filing of the drawn up Orders with any authority could have serious
financial implication on the Transferor Company and/or the Transferee
Company or any of the aforesaid company. And in case of any of the aforesaid
events, each party shall bear their respective costs, charges and expenses in
connection with this Scheme.

- 000000 -

For Mindtree Limited
_ e

Ye ) —=~L
Company Secretary
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ANNEXURE BI.

RCE€ & Co. No. 458 & 459, 2nd Floor, MP Arcade
Chartered Accountants 18th Main Road, 4th T Block, Jayanagar
Bengaluru - 560 041
Tel/Fax: 4120 5845, 4097 3833
www.rceglobal.com

To,

The Board of Directors

Mindtree Limited

Global Village,

Mylasandra, Mysore Road, RVCE Post,
Bangalore — 560059

CERTIFICATE OF EXCHANGE RATIO

IN THE MATTER OF AMALGAMATION OF MAGNET 360 LLC WITH MINDTREE
LIMITED

Based on the draft Scheme of Amalgamation (‘the Scheme’) of Magnet 360 LLC with Mindtree
Limited and according to the information and explanations provided to us, we hereby certify as under:

a. As on date Mindtree Limited holds entire Membership interests of Magnet 360 LLC which is
its wholly owned subsidiary.

b. Pursuant to the draft Scheme of Amalgamation Membership interests in Magnet 360 LLC held
by Mindtree Limited will be cancelled and the Mindtree Limited shall not be required to issue
and / allot any shares to the members of Magnet 360 LLC.

¢. Accordingly, no valuation of shares is applicable to the Scheme. In our opinion, we state that
the above Scheme is fair and reasonable since the shareholders of Mindtree Limited will
continue to remain beneficial owners of Mindtree Limited in the same proportion as they held
prior to the Scheme.

d. This Certificate is issued at the request of Mindtree Limited in accordance with para 4(a) of
Annexure 1 of SEB! Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015 dated November 30, 2015 and
should not be used for any other purpose without our prior written consent.

For RCE & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s I']c.gislraiinu No. 0091418

Y
Msks- A0 T
it (A% ¢n)353 For Mindtree Limited ¢l
Partner \ ‘_-"::' o ; Y“C ) k":,:i

Membership No. 216264 == Company Secretary

Place: Bangalore
Date: July 18,2016



AN EXURE B2

Registered Office Address: Mindtree Ltd.

72 ; .
(o Global Village, RVCE Post, Mysore Road,
%f 4 M n dtre € Bengaluru-560059, Karnataka, India.
Welcome to possible Corporate Identity Number {CIN): L72200KA1999PLC025564

E-mail: info@mindtree.com

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

MEMBERS PRESENT:

Mr. Ramesh Ramanathan, Chairman
Dr. Albert Hieronimus, Member

Ms. Apurva Purohit, Member

Mr. V G Siddhartha, Member

IN ATTENDANCE:

Ms. Vedavalli S, Company Secretary

BY INVITATION:

Mr. Krishnakumar N, Executive Chairman

Mr, Rostow Ravanan, CEO& Managing director

Mr. NS Parthasarathy, Executive Director

Mr. Jagannathan Chakravarthi, CFO

Mr. Erwan Carpentier, Senior VP & General Counsel

1. Mindtree Limited ( MT or the ‘Transferee Company’) has placed before the Audit Committee at
its meeting held on July 18, 2016, a draft Scheme of Amalgamation of Magnet 360 , LLC
(Transferor Company) with the Transferee Company under section 391 to 394 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory
modifications or re-enactment or amendment thereof).for recommendation of the draft scheme inter
alia after considering the valuation report and the Fairness report as required vide SEBI Circular
No. CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015 dated November 30, 2015.

The Audit Committee pursuant to requirements set out in the abovementioned SEBI Circulars and
after considering the following documents;

a. Draft Scheme of Amalgamation
b. Valuation report dated July 18, 2016 issued by RCE & Co., Chartered Accountants;
c¢. Fairness Opinion dated July 18,2016 by M/s SPA Capital Advisors Ltd. (“Merchant Bankers’)

hereby reports:

that the proposed Amalgamation of the Transferor Company envisaged in this scheme would be
beneficial to the Transferee Company and all the Stakeholders.

2. The Audit Committee has noted that:

i. Transferor Company is the wholly owned subsidiary of the Transferee Company and is currently
engaged in the business of IT Services;

Mindtree Ltd. : : \—
Global Village T +91806706 4000 = g o
RVCE Post, Mysore Road F +91806706 4100 \ X

Bengaluru - 560059 W www.mindtree.com
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Welcome to possible

Registered Office Address; Mindtree Ltd.

Q@%,;{ M in dtre e Global Village, RVCE Post, Mysore Road,

Bengaluru-560059, Karnataka, India.

E-mail: info@mindtree.com

ii. Amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company would inter alia have
the following benefits;

The amalgamation will enable the Transferce Company to integrate its business
operations and provide significant impetus to the growth of the Transferce
Company. The consolidation of the activities by way of an amalgamation will lead
to synergies of operations and a stronger and wider capital and financial base for
future growth/expansion. The combined entity will have a bigger portfolio of
services targeted at a wider array of customers, which will strengthen its competitive
position in providing IT services /software & technology related services markets
This will also enable the Transferee Company to address newer solutions and
services to its customers and to the Transferor Company’s customers and enhance
its marketing capabilities.

The amalgamation will result in economy of scales and reduction in overheads,
administrative, managerial and other expenditure, operational rationalisation,
organisational efficiency, and optimal utilisation of various resources.

The managerial expertise of the Transferor Company will contribute to the strength
of the Transferee Company. Consequently, the Transferee Company will offer a
strong financial structure to all creditors including the creditors of the Transferor
Company, facilitate resource mobilisation and achieve better cash flows. This would
contribute substantially towards enhancement of shareholder’s value of the
Transferee Company.

Duplication of administrative functions will be eliminated together with the multiple
record - keeping resulting in reduced expenditure,

This amalgamation will result in a significant reduction in the multiplicity of legal
and regulatory compliances required at present to be carried out by the Transferor
Company and the Transferee Company.

The banks, creditors and institutions, if any, are not affected by the proposed
amalgamation as their security is maintained.

There shall be impetus and increase in the area of sales, network of the Transferee
Company apart from reduction in costs,

The amalgamation shall result in the combination of manpower of both the company
and a single management structure for the company.

The combined managerial and technical expertise would enable the Transferee
Company to develop a business model that would be competitive and cogent.

Mindtree Ltd.

Global Village T +918067064000 g M~
RVCE Post, Mysare Road F +918067064100 -
Bengaluru - 560059 W www.mindtree.com

Corporate Identity Number (CIN): L72200KA1999PLCO25564



Registered Office Address: Mindtree Ltd.

) Mi Global Village, RVCE Post, Mysore Road
), obal Village, ost, Mysore Road,
7Y M ln dtre e Bengalury-560059, Karnatala, India.
Welcome to possible Corporate Identity Number (CIN): . 72200KA1999PLC025564

E-mail: info@mindtree.com

iii. The Audit Committee took note of the Fairness Opinion and the fact that no shares of the
Transferee Company will be issued and allotted pursuant to the proposed Scheme since the
entite paid-up capital of the Transferor Company is wholly owned by the Transferee
Company.

iv, In any case, since the entire equity shareholding of the Transferor Company is held by the
Transferee Company and therefore as an internal group restructuring, it does not adversely
affect the stakeholders and creditors of the Transferee Company and the Transferor
Company and is in the best interest of the Company, its shareholders, creditors and other
stakeholders.

In light of the foregoing, Audit Committee inter-alia after taking into consideration, the Valuation Report
and the Fairness Opinion dated July 18, 2016 and on perusal of the rationale of the Scheme, approves the
draft Scheme of Amalgamation and recommends the draft scheme of Amalgamation for favorable
consideration by the Board of Directors, Stock Exchange(s) and the SEBL

: - h Y %,
For Mindtree Limited [ ) /
— N e ——
Date: . MJ..G 19, k016 Company Secretarv =" Raitresh-Rampatiathan
/_/
Place: B““GM Chairman® Audit Committee
Mindtree Ltd.
Global Village T +9180 6706 4000
RVCE Post, Mysore Road F +9180 6706 4100

Bengaluru - 560059 W www.mindtree.com



ANNEXVRE i
SPA Capital Advisors Ltd. | flock Communit
(Formerly 8PA Wm !-:mklfs Lud.) !.iamk Byirf New?}elhv 110 038

THE FINANCIAL ADVISORS
www.spacapital.com

[Fax 01125552644

Emaif - info@@spacapilal cam

Submitted to

Mindtree Limited

FAIRNESS OPINION REPOR'T
On proposed Scheme of Amalgamation of

MAGNET 360, L.L.C.

With

Mindtree Limited

BY

M/s SPA CAPITAL ADVISORS LTD.

25, C-Block, Community Centre,
Janak Puri, New Delhi.
Tel: 25558601/25517371/25515086
Fax: 25572763

Website: www . spacapital.com

“Loerything we lear is an opinion, not a fucksEverythitigave See'is a perspective, not the trufh.”
July 18, 2016 For Mindtree Limited
Ve A

Company Secretary

» Mumbar » Ahmedabiadd + Sangarore « Chennal » Gurgaen « Kalkata
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To,

The Board of Directors.

Mindtree Limited.

Global Village. RVCI Post,
Mysore Road., Bangalore-560059.

RE: Fairness Opinion on proposed Scheme of Amalgamation of Magnet 360 L.L.C.
with Mindtree Ltd.

j PURPOSE

We have been engaged to give fairness opinion on the “Scheme of Amalgamation™ of
Magnet 360 L.L.C., having its registered office at 5757 Wayzata Boulevard Minncapolis,
MN 55416 USA (i.e. the “Transferor Company”) with Mindtree Limited, having its
registered office at Global Village, RVCE Post, Mysore Road, Ban ralore 560 059 (i.c. the
“Transferce Company”) pursuant to the relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
1956.

The fairness opinion report is required to be submitted to the stock exchanges to
facilitate the companies with regulation 11, regulation 37 & regulation 94 of the
Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing obligation and disclosure Requirements;
(SEBI) Regulations, 2015 read with SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015 dated
30th November 2015).

BACKGROUND

e,

» The Transferor Company was incorporated on March 25, 2008, as per the
provisions of the. The Transferor Company is involved in the business of

full suite ‘Q)_f:_hSalesfo_rgew,,;s.o_]uti()ns such as CRM, branded sites and
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communities, social campaign strategy and management, and marketing

automation.

~ The Transferee Company was incorporated as a private company on August 5,
1999, under the name MindTree Consulting Private Limited as per the provisions
of the Companies Act, 1956. Subsequently, MindTree Consulting Private Limited
ceased to be a private company and the name ot the Transferee Company was
changed to MindTree Consulting Limited on November 6, 2006. Subsequently
on March 28, 2008, the name of the Transteree Company was changed from
MindTree Consulting Limited to Mindtree Limited. The Transteree Company is

involved in the business of software and technology.

The share capital of the Transferee Company as on June 30, 2016 is as under:

e —————— ]

[ Particulars Amount in Rs. |

| ‘.=

Authonsed Share (“a;-ntal

| 800,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each/- 8,000,000,000/ -
| ' Issued , Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital [
1_67 830,816 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each/- | 1,678,308,160/ -

The Transferee Company is the sole member of the Transferor Company and

owns 100% membership interests in the Transferor Company .

[ TRANSACTION

We understand that the merger of the Transferor Company under this proposed
Scheme of Amalgamation will be effected as a Scheme under the provisions of
the other Applicable Laws and under Sections 391 to 394 of the Companies Act,

1956.

Y
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By this Scheme of Amalgamation it is proposed to amalgamate the Transferor
Company with the Transferce Company, for the purposes of better, efficient and
| cconomical management, control and running of the businesses, and for further
development and growth of the business of the Transferee Company and for
administrative convenience. The proposed amalgamation between the Transferor
Companies and the Transferee Company shall result in the following, benefits,

amongst others, to both companies, their respective members and creditors.

—_—

(

) The amalgamation will enable the Transferee Company to integrate its

business operations and provide significant impetus to the growth of the
Transferce Company. The consolidation of the activities by way of an
amalgamation will lead to synergies of operations and a stronger and
wider capital and financial base for future growth/cexpansion. The
combined entity will have a bigger portfolio of services targeted at a wider
array of customers, which will strengthen its competitive paosition in
providing IT services /software & technology related services markets
This will also enable the Transferee Company to address newer solutions
and services to its customers and to transferor’s customers and enhance its
marketing capabilities.

(i)  The amalgamation will result in cconomy of scales and reduction in
overheads, administrative, managerial and other expenditure, operational
rationalisation, organisational efficiency, and optimal utilisation of
various resources.

(iii)  The managerial expertise of the Transferor Companies will contribute to
the strength of the Transferee Company. Consequently, the Transferee

Company will offer a strong financial structure to all
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(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the creditors of the Transferor Companies, facilitate resource mobilisation
and achieve better cash flows. This would contribute substantially
towards enhancement of sharcholder’s value of the Transferce Company.
Duplication of administrative functions will be eliminated together with
the multiple record - keeping resulting in reduced expenditure.

This amalgamation will result in a significant reduction in the multiplicity
of legal and regulatory compliances required at present to be carried out
by the Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company.

The banks, creditors and institutions, if any, are not affected by the
proposed amalgamation as their security is maintained.

There shall be impetus and increase in the area of sales, network of the
Transferee Company apart from reduction in costs.

The amalgamation shall result in the combination of manpower of both
the companies and a single management structure for the companies.

The combined managerial and technical expertise would enable the
Transferee Company to develop a business model that would be

competitive and cogent.

VALUATION REPORT

In the proposed Scheme of Arrangement, the entire equity share capital of Transferor

Company held by Transferee Company will be cancelled and there shall not be any

change in the shareholding pattern of Transferee Company, as per the provisions of

SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015 dated 30" November 2015; a valuation

report from independent valuer is not required in such cases where there is no

change in the shareholding pattern of the listed company:.
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[ CONCLUSION

Pursuant to the Composite Scheme of Amalgamation, Membership interest in
Magnet 360 L.L.C., will be cancelled and Mindtree Limited shall not be required to

issuc and / allot any shares to the members of Transteror companies.

Therefore, On the basis of information and explanation provided to us, in our
opinion the scheme of amalgamation and arrangement is fair and reasonable to the

holders of equity shares of Mindtrec.

Disclaimer: The Fiual Report has been prepared for the internal and exclusive use of the Bourd
of Direclors of Mindtree Limited (He “Board of Directors”) it support of the decisions to be
taken by it. Therefore, the Final Report way not be disclosed, in whole or i part, to any third
party or used for any purpose whatsocoer other thait those indicated in the Engagement and in
the Final Report itself, provided that Hie Final Report may be transmitted to the experts
appointed i complinnce with the law and its content may be disclosed publicly where required
by regulations of the Indian authorities. Ay other use, in whole or in part, of the Final Report
will have to be previously agreed and anthorised in writing by SPA Capital Advisors Limited
(SPA). In preparing the Final Report, SPA has relied upon and assumed, without independent
verification, the trutltfulness, accuracy and completeness of the informnation and the financial
data provided by Mindtree Limited. SPA has thevefore relied upon all specific information as
received and declines any responsibitity should the resulls presented be affected by the lack of
completeness or truthfulness of such information. Publicly available information deemed
releonnt for the purpose of the aualyses contained in the Final Report has also been nsed.
Therefore the Final Report is based on: (i) our interpretation of the information which Mindtree
Limited, as well as their representatives and advisers, have supplied to us to dnte; (1) our
understamding of the terms wpon which Mindtree  Limtited intends to conswmmnte  the

Transuction (ifi) the assumption that the Transaction will be consununated i1 accordmice with
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the expected terms and within the expected time peviods. The Final Report and the Opinion

concern exclusively for the purpose of proposed mualgamation and do nol constitute an opinion

by SPA as to the nbsolute value of the shares of Mindtree Limited.

For SPA Capital Advisors Limited.

(Sourabh Garg)

Vice President

For Mindtree Limited

Ve —3

Company Secretary

(Khusfiboo Tanwar)

Manager
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ANNEXURE D2

Shareholding of Magnet 360, LLC

Pre merger Capltal Post-rnerger Capltal

*  Mindtree Limited is the sole member of the
Magnet 360, LLC and owns 100% membership
interests in Magnet 360, LLC

For Mindtree yn?i?’
PP et
Company Secretary



BSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Matuthi Info-Tech Centre Talephone: + 91 80 3980 6000
11-12/1 Inner Ring Road Fax: + 91 80 3980 6999
Koramangala

Bangalore 560 071 India

Independent Auditor's Report
To the Members of Mindtree Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Mindtree Limited (‘the Company®), which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2014, the stalement of profit and loss and the cash flow

statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
Accounting Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956 (“the
Act”) read with the General Circular 15/2013 dated 13 September 2013 of the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs in respect of Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. This responsibility includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the

financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due 1o
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is 1o express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstaiement.

An audit involves performing procedures 1o obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internaf control relevant 10 the Company’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

imited
indtree LM
For Min g o
] ,) — B SR & Co. fa partnedihin i with Rogisterad Otfice:
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Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according o the explanations given to us, the
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

(a) in the case of the balance sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2014;
(b) in the case of the statement of profit and loss, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and
{©) in the case of the cash flow statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 (“the Order™), as amended, issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (4A) of section 227 of the Acl, we give in
the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by section 227(3) of the Act, we report that;

(iy we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit,

(i) in our opinion proper books of account as required by Jaw have been kept by the Company so
far as appears from our exatination of those books;

(iii) the balance sheel, stalement of profit and loss and the cash flow statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account;

{(iv) in our opinion, the balance sheet, statement of profit ang loss and cash flow statement comply
with the Accounting Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies
Act, 1956 read with the General Circular 15/2013 dated 13 September 2013 of the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs in respect of Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013; and

(v} on the basis of writlen representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2014, and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on

31 March 2014, from being appointed as a director in terms of clause (g) of sub-section (1) of
seclion 274 of the Act.

Jor BSR & Co. LLY
Chartered Accountants
rm’s registration No. 101248W

-

Supreet Sachdev
Partner Q
Membership No. 205385

X(

Bangalore

16 April 2014
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ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Annexure referred 10 in the Auditor’s Report to the members of Mindtree Limited (‘the Company®)
for the year ended 31 March 2014.

We report as follows:

1.

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which fixed
assets are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In our opinion, the periodicity
of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. In accordance with this programme, certain fixed assets were verified during the year
and no material discrepancies were observed on such verification.

¢) Fixed assets disposed off during the year were not substantial and therefore do not affect the going
concern assumption.

The Company is a service company, primarily rendering software development services.
Accordingly, it does not hold any physical inventories. Thus, paragraph 4(ii) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company has neither granted nor taken any loans, secured or unsecured, to or from companies,

firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Companics Acl,
1956.

In our opinion and according 1o the information and explanations given to us, there is an adequate
interna) control sysiem commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business
with regard to purchase of fixed asscts and sale of services. The activities of the Company do not
invalve purchase of inventory and the sale of goods. We have not observed any major weakness in
the internal control system during the course of the audit.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to vs, there are no contracts
and arrangements the particulars of which need 1o be entered into the register maintained under
section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of
its business.

The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section
209(1) (d) of the Companies Act, 1956 for any of the services rendered by the Company.

9.a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

1.

the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of
undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Investor Education and Protection Fund,

S
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Income-tax, Sales-tax, Service tax, Customs duty, and other material statwlory dues have been
generally regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities. As
explained 10 us, the Company did not have any dues on account of Wealth tax, Employees State
Insurance and Excise duty.

b) According to the information and explanations given 1o us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Provident Fund, Investor Education and Protection Fund, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Service
tax, Customs duty, Cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2014 for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Customs duty and
Cess which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute. The
Company, however, disputes the following Income tax, Service tax and Sales tax dues;

Name of the | Nature of the | Amount Period to which | Forum where
statute dues (Rs in millions) the amount | dispute is pending
relates

fncome Tax and | 78.90% Assessiment  year | Assessing Officer,

Act, 196) interest 2002-03 Bangalore¥*

Income Tax and | 46.70* Assessment  year | Commissioner of

Act, 1961 interest 2003-04 Income Taxes
{Appeals),
Bangalore

Income Tax and | 60.84 Assessment  year | Commissioner of

Act, 1961 interest 2004-05 Income Taxes
(Appeals),
Bangalore

Income Tax and | 8.45* Assessment  year | Income Tax

Act, 1961 interest 2007-08 Appellate
Tribunai,
Bangalore
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Name of the | Nature of the | Amount Period to which | Forum where
statute dues {Rs in millions) the amount | dispute is pending
relates
Income  Tax | Tax and | 11,16 Assessment  year | Commissioner  of
Act, 196 interest 2007-08 Income Taxes
{Appeals),
Bangalore
Income  Tax | Tax and | 10,10 Assessmient  year | Commissioner of
Act, 1961 interest 2008-09 Income Taxes
(Appeals),
Bangalore
Income  Tax | Tax and | 27.91* Assessment  year | Income Tax
Act, 1961 interest 2007-08 Appellate
Tribunal,
Bangatore
Income  Tax | Tax and | 23.56 Assessment  year | Commissioner  of
Act, 1961 interest 2009-10 Income Taxes
(Appeals),
Bangalore®
Income  Tax | Tax and | 1.63 Assessment  year | Income Tax
Act, 1961 interest 2009-10 Appellate Tribunal
Bangalore
[ncome  Tax | Tax and | 209.61* Assessment  year | Income Tax
Act, 1961 interest 2008-09 Appellate Tribunal
Bangalore
Income  Tax | Tax and | 62.90 Assessment  year | Income Tax
Act, 1961 interest 2009-10 Appeliate
Tribunal,
Bangalore
Income  Tax | Tax and | 60.30" Assessment  year | Assessing Officer,
Act, 196) interest 2010-11 Bangalore
The  Finance | Service lax | 11.29 June 2005 1o | Customs, Excise
Act, 1994 and interest March 2007 and Service Tax
Appellate
Tribunal,
Bangalore***

.=
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Name of the [ Nature of the | Amount Period fo which | Forum where
statute dues {Rs in millions) the amount | dispute is pending
relates
The  Finance | Service  tax | 24.27 July 2003  to | Customs, Ixcise
Act, 1994 and interest March 2006 and  Service Tax
Appellate
Tribunal,
Bangalorg***
The  Finance | Tax, interest | 64.47 July 2004 o | Customs, Dxcise
Act, 1994 and penalty November 2003 and Service Tax
Appellate
Tribunat,
Bangalore*¥**
The  TFinance | Tax, interest | 3.11% Aprit 2007 1o | Customs, Excise
Act, 1994 and penalty March 2008 and Service Tax
Appellate
Tribunal,
Bangalore *¥%#*
The  Finance | Tax, interest | 22.68 September 2004 to | Customs,  Excise
Act, 1994 and penalty March 2007 and Service Tax
Appellate
Tribunal,
Bangalore****
The  Finance | Tax, interest | 4.68 April 2007  to | Customs, Excise
Act, 1994 and penalty February 2008 and Service Tax
Appeliate
Tribumpal,
Bangalore
Karnataka Tax and | 0.28% Upto July 2004 Assistant
Sajes Tax Act, | penally Conunissioner  of
1957 Commerciai taxes
{Recovery),
Bangatote

~ The Company has not obtained the final assessiment order as at the date of 1his report,

* The above amounts are net of amount paid under protest.

$$The Company is awaiting the order giving effect order from the Assessing Officer as at the date

of this report,
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10.

12.

i3,

14.

15.

18.

19.

20,

**+The matter is currently pending with the Assessing Officer, as per ITAT order dated 12 July
2007.

“¥¥ Stay granted by Customs, Excise and Service Tax Appellate Tribunal, Bangalore vide original
order dated 6 January 2012 and further order received dated 21 February 2013,

#nd Gray granted by Customs, Excise and Service Tax Appellate Tribunal, B3angalore vide order
dated 27 September 2012.

Note: The Income-Tax authorities have adjusted refund amounting to Rs.162 million in respect of
the aforementioned demands without earmarking amounts to the Assessment Year which has not
been reflected in the above disclosure.

The Company does not have any accumulated losses at the end of the financial year and has not
incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding f{inancial year.

. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not

defaulted in repayment of dues 10 its bankers. The Company did not have any outstanding dues to any
financial institution or debenture holders during the year.

The Company has not granted any loans and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of
shares, debentures and other securities.

In our opinion and according 1o the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
chit fund/ nidhi/ mutual benefit fund/ society.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not dealing or trading in
shares, securities, debentures and other investiments,

According (o the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any guarantee
for loans taken by others from banks or financial institutions,

. The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year.

. According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overal! examination of the

balance sheet of the company, we are of the apinion that the funds raised on short-term basis have not
been used for long-term investment.

The Company has not made any preferential allounent of shares to companies/ firms/ parties covered
in the register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

The Company did not have any outstanding debentures during the year.

The Company has not raised any money by public issues during the year.

N
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21. According to the information and explanations given 1o us, no material fraud on or by the Company
has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

Jor BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountanis
Firm registration No, 101248W

Supreet Sachdev
Pertner
Membership No, 205385

Bangalore
16 April 2014



Mindtree Limited
Balunce sheet

Rs in miltion

Note Asat Asat
NMaxeh 31, 2014 Mzrrch 31, 2013
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Sharchollers® funds
Share capliul EA R 417 415
Resenves and surplus 3.4.2 15,992 12,722
16,409 13,137
Non-current Rahilities
Long-term horrowings Al 27 2
Other fong-term liabilitivs 322 129 57
Long-term provisions 323 39 .
198 80
Current Hutllities
Shortsteny borrowngs 331 . 217
Trade payables 83 189
Other curcent tinbilities 332 2,737 2,166
Short-eerm provisions 333 1,574 1,112
4,393 2684
20,997 16,910
ASSETS
Non-cureent rasets
Tixed nsscts
Tangible assets 341 3,266 2,485
Intangible nssets 34 170 104
Capital worksinsprogress 496 571
Nonecurrent investments 34.2 189 244
Deferred 10x assets (net) 343 402 360
Long-term loans and wdvonces 344 758 617
Other non-cument assels 345 1,039 146
6,320 5,427
Cerrend assets
Currend investments 351 5,160 4,027
Frade receivables 352 6,004 4,508
Cash and hank balances 353 1,175 1,238
Short-lcnn loans and advances 3.54 612 430
Other curient assels .55 1,726 1,280
14,6477 11,483
20.997 16910
Significant accounting policies and nctes (o the accounts 243

The notes referned 10 above fonm on itegral pact of the finaneial statements

As per our report of even dote attached
ForBH& R& Co. LLP

Chartered Accountanis
Hnh Repistration Number: 101248\

ool QA Red—e
= M .

e

Supreet Sachdev Subroto Bagch N. Krishunkumar

Pariner C f CREO & Managing Director

Membership Number: 205385 /
y .
L
Rostow Retanin Rajeste Srichaml Nnvang

sl ChielTinancinl Oftlicer Company Secrelary

For Misdtree Limited

Place: Bangelore Plnce: Bongulore
Date : April 16, 2014 Pate : April 16, 2014



Mindiree Limlted
Statcment of profit and fosy

Rs in miltion

Particulars Nute For the vear cuded

Mareh 31, 2014 Marel 31,2013
Revenue from operations 30,316 23,618
Other incone 3.6 494 350
Total revenues 30,810 23,968
Expenses:
Izmplayee benefits expense 3.7 17,820 14,274
JFinance cosls 37 4 10
Depreciation and amorlisution expense 340 809 624
Other expetises 3.7 6,350 4,824
‘Total expenses 25,023 19,732
Profit before tex 5,787 4,236
Tax expense: 343
Current tax 1,317 847
Deferred tnx (42) {40)
Profit for the year 4,812 3,389
fiarnlngs per equity share 317
Equity shares of par value Rs $0/- cach
Basic 108.5¢ 82.70
Difuted 107.70 8).66
Woighted average number ol equity shares used in conpuling earnings per share
Basic 41,588,758 40,974,712
Diluted 11,896,409 11,496,296
Significant accounting policies and notes o the accounts 283
The notes referred 1o above form an integral pact of the financinl statements
As per our report of cven date attached
For BSR & Co, LLP For Mindtree Llmited
Chartered Accquiants
Fipg Registration Number: 101248W

| AT/ -
= W :

Suprest Sachdev b

Partier
Membership Number: 205385

Plage: Bangalore
Date : April {6, 2014

Su lmM

Ehitiyman

Ao <
%:?V

™’
Rostoi Royanan
Chief Finuncial Cl¥icer

Place: Bangglore
Date : Aprit 16, 2014

N. Krishnakumar
CEQ & Mannging Director

Repubey

Rajesh Srichand Narang
Company Sceretary

¥



Mimdtree Limited
Cash Mow statemrnt

113t tulitlan
For wie yrar ended March 31,
2044 013
Canle Row from aperating uctivities
Vrrofit bofore tax 5,787 4.23¢
Adjusinents far -
Deprecintion nnd amuinieation (] 024
Amatization of stuck comy fon OB © 2
Interest expense 4 10
Interestd dividend incate (215} {192}
Vrofit on sale of fixed assely 3) (0
Pafin o1 sate of investinents (139) {130}
Provision for diminution in the value of investmenls (¢)] 1
1oss on dlssolution of substdiary : 3
tixchange diffecence un derivadivey ' (308)
Eert of exelivnye diftutunces on transtation of foreign 28 28
curiency bortowings
liftect of exchunye diffecences i ranslation of fosoiyn (69} Q0)
cureency cash and cash cynivalenls
QOperating profit befone working capital changes 6,266 4,235
Changes in tcade 1eceivables (1.496) {410)
Chauges in loais an advanses and other susels 837 (564)
Changos kn lalilitios and provisiony S8 301
Net cash provided by operating avtivities before taxes 4521 3,002
Tncome taxes pald (1.297) (069)
Net eash provided by uperating activities 3,224 2,063
Cash Now from Investing actlvitles
Yarchase of fixed avscls (1,520) {1,060)
Troceeds (rom sale of fixed assots 1 ]
Investment in subsidisvy . (i4)
Pro¢eeds on dissolution of substdisry . 8
1nterost/ divtdend reccived from ins 222 179
Tturchast of investments (11,443) 111,257)
Sule/ matarliies of investménts 10,495 10,216
Net cash used in lnvesting actiitles 2243 (1.918)
Cash flow from financing xctivitles
Tssuc of share caplis) (nel of tasue expenses poid) ) 22
Tnterest pald on toans [£3) (11)
Repayment of bacrowlngs {R11) o)
Procooeds from Joans "y
Dividends pald (including disteibutlon 1ax) (214)
Net vash ised In fluaneing activities {125
1Nuct of exchange differences on iranstation of forcign
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Mindtree Limited

Significan{ accounting policies and notes to the accounts
For the ycar ended March 31,2014
(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated},

1.

2.1

2.2

Background

Mindtree Limited (*Mindtree’ or ‘the Company’) is an international Information
Technology consulting and implementation company that delivers business solutions
through global software development. The Company is structured into five verticals —
Manufacturing, BFFSI, Hitech, Travel & Transportation and Others. ‘The Company offers
services in the areas of agile, analylics and information management, application
development and maintenance, business process management, business technology
consulting, ctoud, digital business’s, independent testing, infrastructure management
services, mobility, product engineering and SAP services.

The Company is head quartered in Bangalote and has offices in India, United States of
America, United Kingdom, Japan, Singapore, Malaysia, Australia, Germany, Switzerland,
Sweden, UAE, Netherlands, Canada, Belgium, France and Republic of China.

Significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost
convention on the accrual basis of accounting except for certain financial instruments
which are measured at fair values and comply with the Accounting Standards referred to
in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956 (‘the Act’) which as per a
clarification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs continue to apply under section
133 of the Companies Act 2013 (which has superseded section 211(3C) of the Companies
Act 1956 w.e.f. 12 September, 2013), other pronouncements of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘ICAI%), the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (to the extent
notified and appficable) and the Companies Act, 1956, (lo the extent applicable} and the
guidelines issved by Securitics and Exchange Board of India (‘SEBI’) fo the extent
applicable.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted
accounting principles (‘GAAP’) in India requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of income and expenses of the period, assets
and liabilities and disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as of the date of the
financial statements. Actual results could differ from ithose estimates. Any revision to

accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in future periods.
o
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Mindtree Limited

Significan( accounting policies and notes 10 the accounts (continued)
I'or the year ended Marceh 31, 2014

{Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwlse stated)

2.3

Fixed asseis and depreciation

2.3.1

2.3.2

233

235

2.3.6

Fixed assets are carried at cost of acquisition (including directly attributable costs
such as freight, installation, etc.) or construction less accumulated depreciation.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of those fixed
assets, which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
inlended use, are capitalised.

Acquired intangible assets are capitalised at the acquisition price. Internally
generated intangible assets are recorded at cost that can be measured reliably
during the development phase and when it is probable that future economic
benefits that are attributable 1o the assets will flow to the Company.

Leases under which the Company assumes substantiatly all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as finance leases. Such assets are capitalised at fair
value of the asset or present value of the minimum lease payments at the
inception of the lease, whichever is lower. Lease payments under operating teases
are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets, oulstanding at each
balance sheet date are shown under capital advances. The cost of the fixed asset
not ready for its intended use on such date, is disclosed under capital work-in-
progress.

Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method. The rates specified under
schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956 are considered as minimum rates, I
the management's estimate of the useful life of a fixed asset at the time of the
acquisition of the asset or of the remaining useful life on a subsequent review is
shorter than (hat envisaged in the aforesaid schedule, depreciation is provided at a
higher rate based on the management’s estimate of the useful life/ remaining
useful life. Pursuant to this policy, the management has estimated the useful life
as under:

Asset classification Useful life
Buildings 25-30 years
Computer systems 1-3 years
Computer sofiware 2 years
Test equipment 3 years
Furnituse and fixtures 5 yeats
Electrical installations 3-5 years
Office equipment 4-5 years
Motor vehicles 4-5 years
Plant and machinery 4 years
intellectual property 5 years

Fixed assets individually costing Rupees five thousand or less are fully
depreciated in the year of purchase/ installation. Depreciation on additions and
disposals during the year is provided on a pro-rata basis.

-
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes 1o the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 33, 2034

{Rupees in millions, except shave and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.9

2.3.7  The cost of leasehold land is amortised over the period of the lease. Leaschold
improvements and assets acquired on finance lease are amortised over the lease
term or vsefu! life, whichever is lower,

Investments

2.4.1  Non-current invesiments are carried at cost less any other-than-temporary
diminution in value, determined on the specific identification basis,

o
i
]

Current investments arc carried ai the lower of cost and fair value. The
comparison of cost and fair value is carried out separately in respect of each
investment,

2.4.3  Profit or loss on sale of investments is delermined as ihe difference between the

sale price and carrying value of investment, determined individually for each
investment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash-in-hand and balance in bank in current
accounts and deposit accounts,

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals
of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue
generating, investing and financing aclivities of the Company are segregated.

Employce benefits

2.7.1  Gratuity is a defined benefit scheme and is accrued based on actuarial valuations
al the balance sheet date, carried out by an independent acluary. The Company
has an employees’ gratuity fund managed by ICICI Prudential Life Insurance
Company, SBI Life Insurance Company and Life Insurance Corporation of India.
Actuarial gains and Josses are charged 1o the statement of profii and loss.

2.7.2 Compensaled absences are a long-term employee benefit and is accrued based on
actuarial valuations at the balance sheet date, carried out by an independent
actuary. The Company accrues for the expected cost of short-term compensated
absences in the period inr which the employee renders services.

2.7.3  Contributions payabte 1o the recognised provident fund, which is a defined
contribution scheme, are charged to the statement of profit and loss.

BATHG ALORE
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Mindiree Limited

Significan( accounting policies and notes {0 the aceounts {continued)
Far the year ended March 31,2014

{Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

2.8

2.9

Revenue recognition

2.8.1

2.8.2

283

2.84

The Company derives its revenues primarily from sofiware services. Revenue
from sofiware development on time-and-material basis is recognised as the
related services are rendered. Revenue from fixed price contracts is recognised
using the proportionate completion method, which is determined by relating the
actual project cost of work performed fo date to the estimated 1otal project cost
for each contract, Unbilled revenue represents cost and earnings in excess of
billings while unearned revenue represents the billing in excess of cost and
earnings. Provision for estimated losses, if any, on incomplete coniracts are
recorded in the period in which such losses become probable based on the current
contract estimates.

Maintenance revenue is recognised ratably over the period of the maintenance
contract.

Provision for discounts is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with
contractual terms of agreements with customers. Revenues arc stated net of
discount,

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

interest income is recognised using the time proportion method, based on the
transactional interest rates.

Foreign exchange transactions

2.9.1

292

293

The Company is exposed to foreign currency transactions including foseign
currency revenues, receivables and borrowings. With a view to minimize the
volatiity arising from fluctuations in currency rates, the Company enters into
foreign exchange forward contracts and other derivative instruments.

Foreign exchange transactions are secorded using the exchange rates prevailing
on the dates of the respective (ransactions. Exchange differences arising on
foreign exchange transactions settled during the year are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss for the year.

Monetary assets and liabifities denominated in foreign currencies as at the
balance shieet date are translated at the closing exchange rates on that date; the
resultant exchange differences are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
Non-monetary ilems which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in
a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the
{ransaction.
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accouniing policies and notes (0 the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31,2014

(Rupecs in millions, except share and per share data, ualess otherwise stated)

2.10

2.1

2.9.4  In respect of intepral operations, monetary assels and liabilities are translated al
the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the balance sheet, Non-menetary items
are translated al the historical rate. The items in the statement of profit and loss
are translaled at the rates prevailing on the dates of the respective transactions,

The differences arising out of the translation are recognised in the statement of
profif and loss.

2.9.5 Forward exchange contracts and other similar instruments that are not in respect
of forecasted transactions are accounted for using the guidance in Accounting
Standard (‘AS”) 11, “The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates’. For such
forward exchange contracls and other similar instrunients covered by AS 11,
based on the nature and purpose of the contraci, cither the contracts are recorded
based on the forward rate/ fair value at the reporting date, or based on the spot
exchange rate on the reporting date. For contracts recorded at the spot exchange
rates, the premium or discount at the inception is amortized as income or expernse
over the life of the contract.

29.6 For forward exchange contracts and other derivatives that are not covered by
AS 11 and that relate to a firm commitment or highly probable forecasted
transactions, the Company has adopted Accounting Standard ('AS') 30, ‘Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ to the extent that the adoption did
not conflict with existing accounting standards and other authoritative
pronouncements of the Company Law and other regulatory requirements. In
accordance with AS 30, such derivative financial instruments, which qualify for
cash flow hedge accounting and where the Company has met all the conditions of
cash flow hedge accounting, are fair valued at balance sheet date and the restthant
exchange loss/ gain is debited/ credited to the hedge reserve until the transaction
is completed. Other derivative instruments are recorded at fair value at the
reporting date and the resultant exchange loss/ gain is debited/ credited to
staternent of profit and loss.

Warranties

Warrangy costs {i.¢, post contract support services) are estimated by the management on the
basis of technical evaluation and past experience. Provision is made for estimated liability
in respect of warranty costs in the period of recognition of revenue,

Provision and contingent liabilitics

The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past
event that probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliabie estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent fiabitity is made when there
is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an
outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in
respect of which the likelihood of cutflow of resources is remote, no provision or
disclosure is made,

BANGALOIIE
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policics and notes to the acconnts (continued)
Yor the year ended Marceh 31, 2014
(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

2.12

2,13

Provisions for onerous contracts, i.e. contracts where the expected unavoidable costs of
meeting the obligations under the contract excecd the economic benefits expected 1o be
received under it are recognised when it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required 10 settle a present obligation as a result of
an obligating event, based on a reliable estimate of such obligation.

Taxation

The current income fax charge is determined in accordance with the relevant tax
regulations applicable to the Company. Deferred tax charge or credit are recognised for
the future tax consequences attributable to timing difference that result between the profit
offered for income taxes and the profit as per the financial statements. Deferred tax in
respect of timing difference which originate during the tax holiday period but reverse
after the tax holiday period is recognised in the year in which the timing difference
originate. For this purpose the timing differences which originate first are considered fo
reverse first. The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax
fiabilities or assets arc recognised using the tax rates that have been enacled or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to
the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be realised in future; however,
when there is a brought forward loss or unabsorbed depreciation under taxation laws,
deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty of realisation of such
assets. Deferred tax assets are reviewed as at each balance sheet date and written down or
written up to reflect the amount that is reasonably/ virtually certain to be realised.

Minimum alternate tax (‘MAT’) paid in accordance with the tax iaws, which gives rise to
future economic benefits in the form of 1ax credit against future income tax liability, is
recognised as an asset in the balance sheet if there is a convincing evidence that the
Company will pay normal fax after the iax holiday period and the resultant assets can be
measured reliably. MAT credit entitlement can be cartied forward and utilized for a
period of ten years from the period in which such credit is availed.

The Company offsets, on a year on year basis, the current tax assets and liabilities, where
it has a lepally enforceable right and where it intends 10 settle such assets and liabilities
on a net basis.

Earnings per share

In determining earnings per share, the Company considers the net profit after tax and
includes the post-tax effect of any extra-ordinary item. The number of equity shares used
in computing basic earnings per share is the weighted avetage number of equity shares
outstanding during the year. The number of equity shares used in computing diluted
carnings per share comprises weighted average number of equily shares considered for
deriving basic earnings per share and also weighted average number of equity shares
which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Ck




Mind(r¢e Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For (he year ended March 31, 2014

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless ofherwise stated)

2.14

2,15

2.16

Iimpairment of assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an
assel (including goodwill) may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company
estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. For an asset that does not gencrate largely
independent cash inflows, 1he recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs, 1f such recoverable amount of the assef or the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit 10 which the asset belongs is less than its catrying
amount, the carrying amount is reduced 10 its recoverable amount. The reduction is
treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 1 at the
balance sheet date there is an indication that if a previously assessed impairment loss no
longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the carrying
amount of asset does not exceed the net book value that would have been determined, if
no impairment loss had been recognised. In respect of goodwill, impairment loss wilf be
reversed only when it is caused by specific external events and their effects have been
reversed by subsequent external events.

Employee stock based compensation

The Company measures the compensation cost relaling to employee stock options,
restricted shares and stock appreciation rights using the intrinsic value method, The
compensation cost is amortised over the vesting/ service period.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that:

(i)  the Company will comply with the conditions attached to them; and
(i)  the grant will be received.

Government grants related 1o revenue are recognised on a systematic basis in the
statement of profit and loss over the periods necessary to match them with the related
costs which they are intended to compensate. Such grants are deducted in reporting the
related expense. Where the *Company receives non-monetary grants, the asset is
accounted for on the basis of its acquisition cost. In case a non-monetary assel is given
free of cost it is recognised at a nominal value.

10



Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to (he accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2014

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share dafa, unless otherwise stated)

3.

Notes to the accounts

Sharcholders’ funds

Share capital

a)

b)

Particulars As af As al
March 31,2014 March 31, 2013

Authorised

79,620,000 (Mareh 31, 2013: 79,620,000) cquity 796 796

shates of Rs 10/- each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
41,689,731 (March 31, 2013 41,535,055) cquity 417 415
shares of Rs 10/ each fully paid

Total 417 415

Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the
end of the reporting year is as given below:

Pariculars As at As at
March 31, 2014 Mavch 31, 2013
No of shares Rs No of shares Rs
Number of shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 41,535,055 415 40,543,923 405
Add: Shates issucd on exercise of employee stock oplions and 154,626 2 991,132 10
restricied shares
Number of shares outstanding at the end of the year 4] 689,731 417 41,535,055 415

The Company has only one class of shares refetrred 1o as equity shares having a par
value of Rs 10 each.

Each holder of the equity share, as reflected in the records of the Company as of the
date of the shareholder mecting, is entitled to one vole in respect of cach share held
for alt matters submitted to vote in the sharcholder meeting.

The Board of Directors at their meeting held on April 16, 2014, have recommended
an issue of bonus shares on the company's equity shares in the ratio of 1:1 (one
additional equity share for every one existing equity share). The Company is in the
process of complying with necessary formalities,

The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees and foreign currency. The
dividend proposed by the Board of Dircctors is subject 1o the approval of the
sharcholders in the Annual General Meeting.

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on October 16, 2013 had declared an
interim dividend of 50% (Rs 5 per equity share on a par value of Rs 10 each). At its
meeting held on January 16, 2014, the Board declared a second interim dividend of
30% {Rs 5 per equity share on a par value of Rs 10 each). The Board of Directors at
its meeting held on April 16[ 2014 hawvi ACCON rended a third interim dividend of

7 p ’ “‘?
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
Tor the year ended March 31, 2014
(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, uniess otherwise stated)

d)

50% (Rs 5 per equity share of par value Rs 10 each). Further, the Board has
recommended a final dividend of 50% (Rs § per equity share of par value Rs 10 cach)
for the year ended March 31, 2014 and a special dividend of 50% (Rs 5 per equity
share of par value Rs 10 each) for completion of 15 years in business. if the proposed
1:1 banus share issue is approved by sharcholders prior 1o the date of the AGM, the
final & special dividend amounts would be accordingly reduced 1o 25% (Rs 2.5 per
equity share of Rs 10 each). The total dividend appropriation for the year ended
March 31, 2014 amounted to Rs 1,221, including corporate dividend tax of Rs $80.

During the year ended March 31, 2013, the amount of per share dividend recognized
as distributions to equity shareholders was Rs |2, The dividend for the year ended
March 31, 2013 includes Rs § per share of final dividend, Rs 7 per share of interim
dividend. The total dividend appropriation for the year ended March 31, 2013
amounted to Rs 578, including corporate dividend tax of Rs 81,

ln the event of liguidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be
entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all
preferential amounts. However, no such preferential amounts exist currently. The
distribution will be in proporion to the number of equity shares held by the
shareholders.

Equity sharcholder holding more than 5 percent of equity shares along with the
number of equity shares held at the beginning and at the end of the year is as given
below;

Sr. No, Name of the shareholder As at March 3t, 2014 As at Mareh 31, 2013
Number of shares % Number-of shares %
i Coffee Day Resorts Privaie Limited 4,365,442 10.5% 4,565,442 11.0%
2 Nalanda India Fund Limited 3,949,088  9.5% 3,949,089  9.5%
3 Global Technalogy Ventures Limited 2,648,561 64% 2,498,561 6.0%
4 Subroto Bagchi ¥ - - 2,078,585 5.0%

*1olds less than 5% of cquity shares as at the reporting date

‘The Company has not allatted any fully paid up equity shares by way of bonus shares
nor has bought back any class of equity shares during the period of five years
immediately preceding the balance sheet date. Number of equity shares ailotted as
fully paid up without payment being received in cash is 1,300,965 during the period
of five years irimediately preceding March 31, 2014 and March 31, 2013. These
shares were allotted to the sharcholders of erstwhile Aztecsoft Limited pursuant to the
scheme of amalgamation for the financial year ended March 31, 2010.

-
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31,2014

{Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless oflierwise stated)

1) Employee stock based compensation

The Company instituted the Employees Stock Option Plan (‘ESOP?) in fiscal 2000, which
was approved by the Board of Directors (‘the Board’). The Company currently
administers seven stock oplion programs, a resiricled sfock purchase plan and a stock
appreciation righis plan,

Program 1 {ESOP 1999]

Options under this program are exercisable al an exercise price of Rs 10 per option, All
stock options have a four-year vesting term and vest ai the rate of 15%, 20%, 30% and
35% at the end of 1, 2, 3 and 4 yeass respectively fron: the date of grant and become fully
excrcisable. Each option is entitled {0 1 equity share of Rs 10 each, This program cxiends
to employees who have joined on or before September 30, 2001 or have been issued
employment offer letters on or before August 7, 2001. This plan was terminated on
September 30, 2001. The contractual life of each option is 11 years after the date of grant.

Particulars Year ended March 31,

2014 2013
Outstanding options, beginning of the year z 4,000
Granted during the year - -
Exercised during the year . 500
Lapsed during the year - 3,500
Forfeited during the year - -
Outstanding options, end of the year - -
Options vested and exercisable, end of the . .
year

Program 2 [ESOP 2001

Options under this program have been granted to employees at an excrcise price of Rs 50
per option, All stock options have a four-year vesting tern and vest at the rate of 15%,
20%, 30% and 35% at the end of 1, 2, 3 and 4 years respectively from the date of grant
and become fully exercisable. TEach option is entitled to | equity share of Rs 10 each.
This program extends 1o employees who have joined on or after October 1, 2001 or have
been issued employment offer letters on or after August 8, 2001 or options granted to
existing employees with grant date on or afier October 1, 2001. This plan was terminated
on April 30, 2006. The contractual life of cach option is 11 years after the date of grant,
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 33,2014

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share da(a, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended March 31,

2014 2013
Qutstanding options, beginning of the year 47,918 79,367
Granted during the year » .
Exercised during the yecar 12,868 25,837
Lapsed during the year 3,821 5,612
Forfeited during the year : E
Quitstanding options, end of the year 31,229 47,918
Options vested and exercisable, end of the year 31,229 47,918

Program 3 [ESOP 2006 («}{

Options under this program have been granted 1o empioyees at an exercise price of
Rs 250 per option. All stock options have a four-year vesting texm and vest at the rate of
15%, 20%, 30% and 35% at the end of 1, 2, 3 and 4 years respectively from the date of
grant and become fully exercisable. Each option is entitied to 1 equity share of Rs 10
each, This program extends 1o employees to whom the options are granted on or afier
May 1, 2006. This plan was tetminated on October 25, 2006. The contractual iife of each
option is S years after the date of grant. There are no options outstanding as at the
reporting dates.

Program 4 [ESOP 2006 (h)]

Options under this program are granted to employees at an exercise price periodically
determined by the Compensation Committee. All stock options have a four-ycar vesting
term and vest at the rate of 15%, 20%, 30% and 35% at the end of 1, 2, 3 and 4 years
respectively from the date of grant and become fully exercisable. Each option is entitled
to 1 equity share of Rs 10 each. This program extends 1o employees 1o wham the options
are granted on or afier October 25, 2006. The contractual §ife of each option is 5 years
afler the date of grant.

Particulars Year ended March 31,

B 2014 2013
Qutstanding options, beginning of the year 304,650 1,349,038
Granted during the year - .
Exercised during the year 57,600 905,860
Lapsed during the year 28,475 97,528
Forfeited during the year 71,325 41,000
QOutstanding options, end of the year 147,250 304,650
Options vested and exercisable, end of the 89,175 115,225
year

,-~
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policics and notes o the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2014

{Rupees in miltions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Program 5 [ESOP 20084]

Options under this program are granted 1o employees of erstwhile Aztecsoft Limited as
per swap ratio of 2:11 as specified in the merger scheme. Each new option is entitled to
1 equity share of Rs 10 each.

Particulars Year ended March 31,

2014 2013
Quistanding options, beginning of the year 108,248 124,803
Granted during the year = =
Exercised during the year 20,614 14,437
Lapsed during the year 2,610 2,118
Forfeited during the year - -
Outstanding options, end of the year 85,024 108,248
Options vested and exercisable, end of the 85,024 108,248
year

Directors’ Stock Option Plan, 2006 (‘DSOP 2006°)

Options under this program have been granted to independent directors at an exercise
price periodicafly determined Ly the Compensation Committee. All stock options vest
equally over three year vesting term at the end of 1, 2 and 3 years respectively from the
date of the grant and become fully exercisable. Each option is entitled to 1 equity share of
Rs 10 each, The contractual fife of each option is 4 years afier the date of the grant.

Particulars Year ended March 31,

2014 2013
Outstanding oplions, beginning of the year 135,000 151,667
Granted during the year - 20,000
Exercised during the year 45,000 36,667
Lapsed during the year 10,000 -
Forfeited during the year 25,000 -
Outstanding oplions, end of the year 55,000 135,000
Qptions vested and exercisable, end of the year 41,666 76,667

Program 7 [ESOP 20104}

In-principle approvals for administering the seventh stock option program i.e. ESOP 2010
(A) has been received by the Company from the BSE and NSE for 1,135,000 equity
shares of Rs 10 each, No options have been granted under the program as at March 31,

2014, &
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2014
(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Employee Restricted Stock Purclase Plan 2012 (‘ERSP 2012’)

ERSP 2012 was instituted with effect from July 16, 2012 to further jssue upto 1,000,000
equity shares of nominal value of Rs 10 each. Shares under this program are granted to
employees at an exercise price of not less than Rs 10 per equity share or such higher price
as decided by the Board of Directors. Shares shall vest over such term as determined by
the Board of Directors not exceeding ten years from the date of the grant, All shares will
have a minimum lock in period of one year {rom the date of allotment.

Particulars Year ended March 31,

2014 2013
Outstanding shares, beginning of the year - -
Granted during the year 18,594 7,831
Exercised during the year 18,594 7,831

Lapsed during he year - -
Forfeited during the year - -
Ouistanding shares, end of the year - -
_ Shares vested and exercisable, end of the year - =

During the year ended March 31, 2014, 18,594 shares were granted by the Company
under Employee Restricted Stock Purchase Plan 2012 (‘ERSP 20127}

The weighted average fair value of each unit under the above mentioned ERSP 2012 plan,
granted during 1he year was Rs 1,138 using the Biack-Scholes model with the following

assumptions:

Weighted average grant date share price Rs 1,150
Weighted average exercise price Rs 10
Dividend yield % 0.27%
Expected life 1 year
Risk free interest rate 8.22%
Volatility 106.05%

During the year, the Company has also granted stock appreciation tights (SAR') units and
letter of intent to issue shares under ERSP 2012 plan to some of its employees which is
subject to certain vesting conditions. Details of the grant/issue are given below.

Particulars SAR ERSP 2012 plan
No of units/ shares 382,500 115,000
Contractual life 4 years 5 years
Date of grant 18-Jul-13 18-Jul-13*
Price per share/ unig Grant price of Exercise price of

Rs 910 Rs 10*

*Based on Letter of Intent

The weighted average fair value of each unit under the above mentioned ERSP 2012 plan,
granted during the year was Rs 898 using the Black-Scholes model with the following
assumptions:




Mindtree Limited

Stgnificant accounting policies and notes {o the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2014

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Weighted average grant date share price
Weighted average exercise price
Dividend yield %

Expected life

Risk free interest rate

Rs 914
Rs 10

0.17 % - 0.30%

S years
8.29%

Volatility 104.65% - §07.7%

The following 1able summarizes information about the weighted average exercise price of

options/ shares exercised under various programns;

Amount in Rs

Particulars Year ended Mareh 31,

2014 2013
Program | - 10.00
Program 2 50.00 50.00
Program 3 - -
Program 4 507.14 336.84
Program S 387.64 404.63
DSOP 2006 560.00 259.27
ERSP 2012 10.00 10.00

The following tables summarize information about the options/ shares outstanding under

various programs as at March 31, 2014 and March 31, 2013 respectively:

Particulars As at March 31, 2014
Number of Weighted average Weighted
options/ remaining  average excreise
shares contractual life price
(in years) (in Rs)
Program | - - -
Program 2 31,229 1.13 50.00
Program 3 - - -
Programn 4 147,250 1.78 496.58
Program 5 85,024 2.28 393.90
DSOP 2006 55,000 1.24 558.55
ERSP 2012 - - -

O~
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Significant accounting policies and nofes to the accounts (continued)
IFor the year ended March 31,2014

(Rupees in millions, except share snd per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at March 31, 2013
Number of Weighted average Weighted
options/ remaining  average exercise
shares contractual life price
(in ycars) {in_Rs)
Program 1 . - -
Program 2 47,918 2.00 50.00
Program 3 - i =
Program 4 304,650 2.62 491.45
Program 5 108,248 3.21 392.82
DSOP 2006 135,000 1.95 559.41
ERSP 2012 - - -

The Company has recorded compensation cost for all grants using the intrinsic value-
based method of accounting, in line with prescribed SEBI guidelines.

Had compensation been determined under the fair value approach described in the
Guidance Note on, “Accounting for employee share based payments” issued by ICAI, the
Company’s net profit and basic and diluted earnings per share would have reduced to the
proforina amounis as indicated:

Particulars Year ended March 31,
2014 2013

Net profit as reported 4,512 3,389

Add: Stock-based employee

compensation expense {intrinsic value 79 -

method)

Less: Stock-based employee

compensation expense (fair value

method) 18 (74)

Pro forma net profit 4,609 3,315

Basic earnings per share as reported 108.50 82,70

Pro forma basic earnings per share £10.83 80.89

Dijuted earnings per share as reporied 107.70 81.66

Pro forma diluted earnings per share 110.02 79.87

| BANGA LORE

560 671
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Stgnificant acconnling policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2014

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.1.2  Reserves and surplus

Particulars As af As at
March 31, 2014 March 31, 2053
Capltal reserve
Opening, balance 87 &7
Additions during the year - -
87 87
Securltles premium reserve
Opening balance 2,125 1,808
Additions during Lhe year on exercise of employce 83 317
slock options/ restricled shares
2,208 2,128
General reserve
Opening batance 1,091 752
Add: Transfer from statement of profit and loss 451 339
1,542 1,091
Share option outstanding account
Opening balance 48 48
Additions during the year 20 -
68 48
Hedge reserve
Opening balance 173 (230)
Additions durlng the year (124) 423
49 173
Sueplus (Ralance in the statement of proft and loss)
Qpening balance 9,198 6,726
Add: Amount transferred from statement of profit 4,512 3,389
and loss
Amount avalaible for appropriations 13,710 10,115
Appropriations:
Interim dividend (624) (289)
Final dividend* 417) (208)
Dividend distribution tax (180} 81)
Amount transfered to general resene {451) (339)
12,038 9,198
Total 15,992 12,722
*Includes special dividend as at March 31, 2014,
f
b
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Significant accounting polictes and notes to the accounts (continued)
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{Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.2

3.2.1

3.2.2

3.2.3

Non-current labilities

Long-term horrowings

Parilculars As atl As at
March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013

(Unsecured)

Other loans and advances 27 32

Total 27 32

Long-term borrowings represent the amount received fram Council for Scientific and
Industrial Research (CSIR) 1o develop a project under “Development of Intetligent Video
Surveillance Server (1VSS) system™.

The loan is an unsecured Joan carrying a simple interest of 3% p.a on the outstanding
amount of loan. Repayment of joan is in 10 equaf annual installments fiom June 201 1.

Any defay in repayment entails a liability of 12% p.a. compounded monthly for the
period of delay.

There is no continuing defauft in the repayment of the principal Joan and interest
amounts.

Qther long-term liabilities

Particulars As at As al
March 31,2014 March 31,2013
Other long-term liabilities 97 57
Employee related liabilities 32 -
Tatal 129 57

Long~term provisions

Particulars Asat As at
March 31,2014 March 31, 2013

Provision for discount 39 .

Total 39 -

Refer note 3.3.3 for the disclosure of provisions movement as required under the
provisions of Accounting Standard —~ 29 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets’ (‘AS 297).

{

AANGALORE
LeG QY
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the secounts (cantinued)

For the year ended March 31, 2014

{Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.3 Currcent liabilities

3.3.1

3.3.2

Short-term borrowings

Particulars Asat As at
March 31,2014 March 31, 2013

(Secured)

Packing credit loan {rom banks - 217

Total - 217

During the year, the Company has availed packing credit Joans of USD 10 million and
has repaid packing credit loans of USD 14 million. These packing credit loans were
secured against the trade receivables of the Company. As at March 31, 2014, (he
Company has no outstanding packing credit toan (As at March 31, 2013: USD 4 million).
The Company had taken forward cxchange contracts with respect te this loan. in
accordance with ‘AS 11" the forward premium arising at inception was amortized as an
expense over the life of the contract.

Details of interes( rate and repayment terms in respect of above packing credit loan are as

below:

Name of the bank As at March 31,2014 As at March 31,2013
Rs Rate of Rs Date of
inlerest p.a__repayment interest p.a__ repayment
HSRC . - 217 1.98%  29-May-13
Total - 217
Qther current liabilitics
Particulars As al Asat
March 31,2014 March 31,2013
Current maturities of long-term debt* b 5
Interest acerued but not due on borrowings 1 2
Uncarned income 100 36
Unpaid dividends 4 3
Creditors for capital goods 175 105
Advances from customers 103 42
Employee related liabilities 1,245 1,023
Book overdraft 85 136
Other liabilities** 1,019 814
Total 2,737 2,166

*The details of interest rates, repayment and other terms are disclosed under note 3.2.1.
**+Includes derivative lability of Rs 44 (As at March 31, 2013; Rs 13).

As at March 31, 2014, the Company has outstanding forward confracts amounting to
USD 47.5 niillion (As at March 31, 2013: USD 112.75 miliion) and Euro 5 million (As at
March 31, 2013: Euro 11 million). These derivative instruments have been entered to
hedge highly probable forecasted sales,

¢ el ORE
KO0 07
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Significand accounting policies sand nofes to the accounts (continued)
¥or (he year ended March 31, 2014
(Rupees in milions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.3.3

In accordance with the provisions of AS 30, those derivative instruments which qualify
for cash flow hedge accounting have been fair valued af balance sheet date and the
resultant exchange gain/ (loss) has been credited/ {debited) to hedge reserve (Refer Note
3.1.2). As of March 31, 2014, the Company does not have any derivative instruments thai
do not qualify for hedge accounting. However such instruments that were prevalent in
the previous year have been fair valued at the balance sheet date and the resultant
exchange gain Rs 308 for the year ended March 31, 2013 has been recorded in the

statement of profit and loss.

Short-term provisions

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
Provision for employee benefits
- Gratuity 2 i
- Compensated absences 320 262
Provision for taxes 219 199
Provision for discount 231 145
Dividend payable 626 374
Dividend distribution tax payable 106 01
Provision for forsecable fosses on contracts 3 -
Provision for post contract support services 4 3
Provision for disputed dues* 63 57
Total 1,874 1,112

*Represents disputed tax dues provided pursuant to unfavourable order received from the
tax authorities against which the Company has preferred an appeal with the relevant
authority. In respect of the provisions of AS 29, the disclosures required have not been
provided in accordance with paragraph 72 of AS 29,

BAMGALGIRTE
650 07t
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Significant accounting policies and notes to (he accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31,2014

{Rupees in millons, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

The following table sets out 1he status of the gratuity plan as required under AS 15-

Employee Benefits.

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2014 March 31, 2013
Change in projected benefit obligations
Obligations at ihe beginning of (he year 324 276
Service cost 74 62
Interest cost 26 19
Benefits settled (36) 4n
Actuarial (gain)/ loss 23 8
Obligations at end of the year 365 324
Change in plan assets
Plan assets at the beginning of the year, at fair
value 313 275
Expected return on plan assets 26 23
Actuaria] gain/ (loss) - 1
Contributions 60 55
Benefits settied (36) an
Plan asscts at the end of the year, af fair
value 363 313
Reconciliation of the present value of the cbligation and the fair value of the plan
assets
Particulars As at March 31,
2004 2013 2012 2011 2010
Fair value of plan assets at the end of 363 313 275 257 212
the year
Present value of defined obligations at
the end of the year (365) (324) (276) (265) (208)
Asset/ (liability) recognised in the
balance sheet

) (11 1 (8 4

)

BANGALOIT
560 071
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2014
(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

Particulars March 31,
2014 2013
Gratuity cost
Service cost 74 62
Interest cost 26 19
Expected return on plan assets (26) 23)
Actuarial (gain)/loss (23) 7
Net gratully cost 51 65
Aclual return on plan assets 26 24
Assumptions
Interest rate 8.80% 7.96%
Expected rate of return on plan 8% 8%
assets
Salary increase 6% 6%
Adtrition rate 13% 13.38%
Retirement age 60 60

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, takes into
account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and

demand factors in the employment market.

The disclosure of provisions movement as required under the provisions of’ AS 29 is as

follows:~

Proviston for post contract support services

Particulars For the year ended March 31,
2014 2013

Balance at the beginning of the year 3 5
Provisions made during the year 1 -
Utilisations during the year . -

Rejeased during the year B
Pravision at the end of the year 4

@&

GANGALLE
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Significant aecounting policies and notes to the accounts (confinued)

For the yenr ended March 31, 2014

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share datg, unless otherwise stated)

Provision for discount

Particulars For the year ended March 31,
2014 2013

Balance at the beginning of the year 145 109
Provisions made during the year 290 144
Utilisations during the year (154) 5
Released during the year an (13)
Provision at the end of the year 270 145
Current 231 145
Non-current 39 "

Provision for foreseeable losses on contracts

Particulars For the year ended March 31,
2014 2013
Balance at the beginning of the year - 4
Pravisions made during the year 3 -
Utilisations during the year - 4)
Released during the year C
Provision at the end of the year 3

The current provisions are expecled to be utifized over a period of one year and the non-
current provisions are expected 10 be wtilized over a period of two to three years.

[
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Mindtree Limited
Significant accounting polictes and notes to the aecounts
For the year ended Marvch 31,2034

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated).

3.4.2

Non-current investiments

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
Investment in mutual funds (quoted) 168 223
Investment in cquity instruments (unquoted)
- Investment in Trade t 8
- Investment in subsidiary 14 t4
Less: Provigion for diminution in value of (¢)] (1)
investments
Total 189 244
Apgregate smount of quoted investments 168 223
Aggregate narket vatue of quoted investments 170 224
Aggregate smount of unguoted investments 22 22
Details of investment in mutual funds are as given below:
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
IP Morgan Mutual FFund - 70
Birla Sun Life Mutual Fund - 30
IDFC Mutual Fund - 28
Tata Mutual Fund 40 95
Reliance Mutual Fund 28 -
UT! Mutual Fund 100 -
Total 168 223
Details of investment in trade unguoted investments are as given below:
Particulars As al As at
March 31, 2014 March 31,2013
2,400 (previous year: 2,400) equity sharcs in
Carcer Communily.com Limited 1 ]
643,790 (previous year: 643,790) Series A
Converlible Preferred Stock al US$ 0.000) each
fully paid at premium of US $ 0.2557 cach in 30
Sccond Sollware Inc 7 7
Total 8 8
Details of investment in subsidiary ace as given below:
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2014 March 31,2013
Mindtree Software (Shanghai) Co., Ltd 14 14
(‘MSSCL")
Total 14 14
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Slgnificant secounting policies and notes 1o the accounts (continued)

For the year ended Mareh 31, 2014

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

343 Taxes

Parvticulars Tror the year ended March 31,
2014 2013

Tax expense

Current {ax 1,317 887

Deferred tax (42) (40)

Total 1,275 847

The Company has units at Bangalore, Hyderabad and Chennai registered as Special
Economic Zone (SEZ) units which are entitled to a tax hollday under Section 10AA of

ihe Income Tax Act, 1961.

The Company also has STPI units at Bangalore and Pune which are registered as a 100
percent Export Oriented Unit, which were earlier entitfed to a tax holiday under
Section 108 and Section 10A of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

Deferred tax assets (net):

Deferred tax assets included in the balance sheet comprises the following:

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2014 March 31,2013

Excess of depreciation as per 213 215

books over depreciation allowed

under Income Tax Act, 1961

Provision for doubtfui debis 3] 10

Provision for  compensated 100 84

absence

Provision for volume discount 29 34

Others 29 17

Total deferred tax assets 402 360
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Significant accounting policies and notes ta the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2014

(Rupees In millions, except share and per share dala, unless otherwise stated)

3.4.4

3.4.5

Long-term loans and advances

Particulars

3.5 Current assets

3.5.1

As at As at
March 31,2014 March 31,2013
(Unsecured cansidered good)
Capital advances 136 127
Security deposits* 512 426
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for 110 64
value to be received®
Total 758 617
*Refer note 3.15 for related party balances.
Other non-current assets
Particulars As al As at
March 31,2014 March 31,2013
(Unsecured considered good)
Advance tax and tax deducted at source, net of 853 848
provision for taxes
MAT credit entitlement 160 165
Other non-current assets 26 33
Total 1,039 1,046
Current investments
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
Investment in snutual funds (quoted) 4,760 3,628
Less; Provision for diminution in the value of - n
investments
Term deposits 400 400
Total 5,160 4,027
Aggregate aniount of quoted investments 4,760 3,628
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 4912 3,710
Apggregate amount of unquoted investnzents 400 400

\
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended Mareh 31, 2014
(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Details of investment i mutual funds are as given below:

Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2014 Mayrch 31,2013
1CICI Prudential Mutual Fund 366 409
1IDFC Mutual Fund 365 228
U7t Mutual Fund 193 248
HSBC Mutual Fund 80 70
Franklin Templeton Mutual Fund 449 310
DSP Blackrock Mutual Fund 419 248
Birla Sun Life Mutual Fund 440 an
Reliance Mutual Fund 367 349
Tata Mutual Fund 306 152
DWS Mutual Fund 156 198
SBI Mutual Fund 315 358
HDFC Mutual Fund - 513 440
Axis Mutuat Fund 103 51
Principat Mutual Fund “ 30
Kotak Mutual Fund 54 51
JP Morgan Mutual Fond 203 -
Sundaram Mutual Fund 106 50
Pinebridge Mutual Fund 30 30
1. & T Mutual Fund 142 -
IDBI Mutual Fund 153 35
Total : 4,760 3,628
Delails of investments in term deposit are as piven below:
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2014 March 31,2013
HDFC Limited 400 400
Total 400 400

i
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Significant accounting policies and notes (o the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2014

(Rupeces in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.5.2

Trade reccivables

"articulars As at
March 31, 2014

As al
Matrch 31,2013

(Unsecured)
Debts overdue for a period exceeding six monihs

- considered good 95 175
- considered doubtful 131 36
Other debts
- considered good 5,909 4,333
- considered doubtiu] 5 10
Less: Provision for doubtful debis (136) (46)
Total 6,004 4,508
Cash and bank balances
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
Balances with banks in current and deposit 1,171 1,235
accounis™ *
Cash on hand - -
Other bank balances** 4 3
Total 1,178 1,238
~The deposits maintained by the Company with banks comprises time deposits, which can be
withdrawn by the Company at any point without prior notice or penaity on the principal.
* Balances with banks include the following:
Particulars As at As at
‘ March 31, 2014 March 31,2013

Balance with barks held as margin money
towards guarantees 1

**Qther bank balances represent balances in respect of unpaid dividends and are considered

restr ictcd i” nature.,

[ LLLRE
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Significan( accounting policies and notes to the aecounts (continued)

For the year ended Mareh 31, 2014

(Rupees in mitlions, except shiare and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.5.4

3.6

Short-ferm loans and advances
Pariiculars As at As al
March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
(Unsecured considered good)
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for 627 440
value to be received*
l.ess: Provision for deubtful advances (15) (10)
Total 612 430
*Refer note 3.15 for related party balances.
Other current assets
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2014 March 31, 2013
Unbilled revenue 1,014 637
Other currerit assets* 712 643
Total 1,726 1,280
*Includes derivative asset of Rs 93 (As at March 31, 2013: Rs 18]).
Ofther income
Particulars For the year ended March 31,
2014 20513
Interest income 66 64
Dividend income 150 128
Net gain on sale of investments 130 133
Foreign exchange gain/ {loss) 118 -
Other non-operating income 30 25
Total 494 350

&%
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Significan{ nccounting policies and notes fo the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2014
(Rupees in miflions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3'7

Expenses
Employee benefits expense For the year ended March 31,
2014 2013
Salaties and wages 16,189 13,029
Contribution lo provident and other funds 1,404 1,107
Expense on employee stock based compensation 79 2
Stafl wetfare expenses 148 136
Total 17,820 14,274

Finance costs

For the year ended March 31,

2014 2013
Interest expense 4 10
Total 4 10
Other expenses Far the year ended March 31,
2014 2013
Travel expenses 1,466 935
Sub-contractor charges 1,406 861
Computer consumables 325 256
Legal and professional charges 383 249
Power and fuel 255 206
Rent (Refer note 3.16) 537 412
Repairs to buildings 42 55
Repairs to machinery 28 20
Insurance 39 20
Rates and taxes 74 72
Exchange loss, net - 340
Other expenses 1,835 1,398
Total 6,390 4,824
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the aceounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2014

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless atherwise stated)

3.8

Cantingent liabilities and commitments

a)

b)

c)

d}

e)

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not
provided for as at March 31, 2014 is Rs 854 (March 31, 2013: Rs 470).

As of the balance sheet date, the Company’s net foreign currency exposure that is not
hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise is Rs 5,683 (March 31, 2013:
Rs 4,018).

The Company has received an income tax assessment for the financial year 2008-09
wherein demand of Rs 24 has been raised against the Company on account of certain
disallowances, adjustments made by the income tax depariment. A significant portion
of this amount arises from (he manner of adjustment of brought forward losses in
arriving at the taxable profits of the Company and disallowance of portion of profit
earned outside India from the STP and SEZ units.

Management believes thal the position taken by it on the matter is tenable and hence,
no adjusiment has been made to the financial statements. The Company has filed an
appeal against the demands received.

The Company has received a favourable order from the Commissioner of Income tax
(Appeals) for majority of grounds and considering the order passed, there will not be
any demand on the Company. On the other grounds which are not favourable, the
Company has filed an appeal before the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal (1TAT”).

The Company has received income tax assessments for financial years 2006-07 and
2007-08 for the erstwhile subsidiary Mindtree Technologies Private Limited (MTPL)
with demands amounting 1o Rs 11 and Rs 10 on account of certain disallowances/
adjustments made by income tax department. Management believes that the position
taken by it on the matter is tenable and hence, no adjustment has been made to the
financial statements. The Company has filed an appeal against the demand recejved,
The Company has not deposited the amount of demand with the department.

The Company has received income tax assessments under Section 143(3) of the
Income-tax Act 1961 pertaining to erstwhile subsidiary Aztecsoft Limited for the
financial years 2001-02, 2002-03, 2003-04, 2004-05, 2005-06, 2006-07, 2007-08 and
2008-09 wherein demand of Rs 91, Rs 49, Rs 61, Rs 28, Rs 58, Rs 119, Rs 214 and
Rs 63 respectively has been raised against the Company. These demands have arisen
mainly on account of transfer pricing adjustments made in the order. The Company
has not accepted these orders and has been advised by its legal counsel/ advisors fo
prefer appeals before appellate authorities and accordingly the Company has fifed
appeals before the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) and ITAT, The Company
has deposited Rs 15 with the departiment against these demands. The department has
adjusted pending refunds amounting to Rs 363 against these demands
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Significant accounting policies and notes (o the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31,2014
(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.9

g)

The Company reccived a favourable order from the Commissioner of Income Tax
(Appeals) for the year 2001-02 where in the Commissioner of Income Tax (A ppeals)
accepted the Company’s contentions and quashed the demand raised. The Income tax
department appealed apainst the above mentioned order with ITAT. ITAT, in an
earlier year passed an order setting aside both the orders of the Commissioner of
Income Tax (Appeals) as well as the Assessing Qfficer and remanded the matter back
to the Assessing Officer for re-assessment. The Company preferred an appea! with the
Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka against the order of the ITAT, The Hon’ble High
Court of Karnataka has dismissed the appeal filed against the order of ITAT and
upheld the order passed by the 1TAT and accordingly the case is pending before
Assessing Officer for re-assessment

The Company has appealed against the demands received for financial years 2002-03,
2003-04, 2004-05, 2005-06, 2006-07, 2007-08 and 2008-09. Based on favourable
order received by the Company for the financial year 2001-02 and an evaluation of
the facts and circumstances, no provision has been made against the above orders in
the financial statements,

The Company received an assessment order for financial year 2006-07 for the
erstwhile subsidiary Mindtree Wireless Private limited from the Assistant
Commissioner of Income-tax (‘ ACIT") with a demand amounting 10 R$ 39 on account
of certain other disallowances/ transfer pricing adjustments made by income tax
depariment. Management believes that the position taken by it on the matter is tenable
and hence, no adjustiment has been made to the financial statements. The Company

has filed an appeal with Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) against the demand
received.

The Company has received the order from the Commissioner of Income Tax
(Appeals) wherein the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) accepted the grounds
in part and in respect of unfavorable grounds, the Company has filed an appeal before
Income Tax Appellate Tribunal. The final order giving effect by the Assessing
Officer is completed and the demand is reduced to Rs 33. The Company has
deposited Rs 5 with the departiment against this demand.

The Company has received a draft assessment order for financial year 2009-10 from
the Deputy Commissioner of Income Tax with a demand amounting 10 Rs 60 due 1o
non-adjustment of brought forward losses and wransfer pricing adjustments.
Management believes that the position taken by it on the matter is tenable and hence,
no adjustment has been made to the financial statements. The Company will file an
appeal with Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) once the final order is received.

Quantitative details

The Company is engaged in software development services. Such services arc not
capable of being expressed in any generic unit and hence, it is not possible o give the
guantitative details required under parapraphs S5(viii)(c) of general instructions for

preparation of the statement of profit and loss as per revised Schedule VI to the
Companies Act, 1956.

’
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Signifieant accounting potictes and notes to the nccounts (continued)

Far the year ended March 31,2014

(Rupees in mililons, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3,10 Vatue of imports on CIF basis

Particulars For the year ended March 31,

2014 2013
Capilal goods 292 238
Others - 4
Total 292 242

3,11  Expenditure in foreigh currency

Particulars For the year ended March 31,

2014 2013
Branch office expenses 11,203 7,821
Travel expenses 251 134
Professional charges 28 21
Others 288 97
Total 11,70 8,073

3.12  Esarnings in foreign currency

Particulars For the year ended March 31,

2014 2013
Income from software development 29,484 22,598
Other income 5 17
Total 29,489 22,615

0
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2014

(Rupees in miljons, except shave and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3,13 During the year ended March 31, 2014, the Company has remitted in foreign currency
dividend of Rs 21 (year ended March 31, 2013: Rs 8 million)

For the vear ended Magtceh 31, 2014

Year (o

which it Number of Number of Amount
Dividend relates shares held  sharcholders remitted
Second interim dividend 2012-13 §,125,384 78 4.5
IFinal dividend 2012-13 1,124,402 79 5.6
First interim dividend 2013-14 1,098,098 50 5.4
Second interim dividend 2013-14 1,121,908 51 5.6

For the vear ended March 31, 2013

Year to

which it Number of Number of Amount
Dividend relates shares held  shareholders remitted
Final dividend 2011-12 1,743,465 46 3
First interim dividend 2012-13 1,693,943 45 5

&
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (conlinued)

For the year ended Marceh 31, 2014

(Rupees in millions, excep share and per share data, unfess otherwise stated)

3.14

Segmental reporiing

Effective April 1, 2013, the Company has restructured its organisational and management
structure and its internal financial reporting structure 1o be better aligned to market needs.
Pursuant to such re-organization, the Company has identified Manufacturing, BFSI,
Hitech, Travel and Transport and Others as its reportable business segiments.
Accordingly, as required by the accounting standards, comparatives have been restated
and presented in line with the current segments.

The accounting principles consistently used in the preparation of the financial statements
are also consistently applied to record income and expenditure in individual segments.

Income and direct expenses in relation to segments are calegorised based on items that are
individually identifiable to that segment, while the remainder of costs are apportioned on
an appropriate basis. Certain expenses are not specifically allocable to individual
segments as the underlying services are used imterchangeably. The Company therefore
believes that it {s not practical (o provide segment disclosures relating 1o such expenses
and accordingly such expenses are separately disclosed as unaliocable and directly
charged against tolal income.

The assets of the Company ave used interchangeably between segments, and the
management believes that it is currently not practical to provide segment disclosures
relating to 1ofal assets and liabilities since a meaningful segregation is not possible.

Business segments

Statenient of profit and loss For the year ended March 31,
2014 2013
Segment revenue
Manufacturing 6,528 4,498
BIESI 6,986 5,293
Hitech 8,464 7,210
Travel & Transportation 6,077 4,691
Others - 2.261 1,926
Total N 30,316 23,618
Segment operating income
Manufacturing 1,594 875
BIS} 450 642
Hitech 1,811 1,543
Travel & Transportation 1,363 1,103
Others 888 697
Total 6,106 4,860
Unallocable expenses (809) (964)
Profit for the year before interest, other 5,297 3,896
income and tax
Inlerest expense ) (10)
Other income 494 350
Net profit before taxes 5,787 4,236
Income taxes (1,278) (847)
Net profit after taxes 4,512 3,389

it 8] ;'\\.()i‘\k';

Lot 011 38



Mindtree Limited
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2014
(Rupees in millions, except share and per shave data, unless otherwise stated)

3.15

Geographical segments

Revenues For the year ended March 31,
2014 2013
America 17,558 13,411
Burope 8,540 6,944
India 1,449 1,462
Rest of World 2,769 1,801
Total 30,316 23,618

Related party (ransactions

Name of related party

Nature of relationship

Mindtree Software
{8hanghai) Co,, Lid
(*MSSCL’), Republic of
China

Subsidiary

Janaagraha Centre for
Citizenship & Democracy

Entity with common key management person

Amalgamated Bean Coffee
Trading Company Limited
(‘ABCTCL")

Tanglin Developments

These entities are part of Coffee Day Group which
through various entities and its promotets holds 19.84 %
equity stake in Mindtree, and the group has a nominee on
the Mindtree Board,

Limited (‘TDL")

(.h
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Slgnificant acceuntlng policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended Mareh 31,2014

{Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unfess otherwise stated)

Transactions with the above related parties during the year were:

party (ransaction 2014 2013
Amalgamated Bean  Procurement of 117 13
Coffee Trading supplies

Company Limited

Janaagraha Centre  Donation paid 3 -
for Citizenship &

Democracy

Tanglin Leasing office buildings and 399 310
Developments land

Limited

Advances/ deposits paid

- towards electricity deposit/

charges 3 220
- towards lease renfals 486 259
Advances/ deposits received back:
- towards eleclricity deposit/
charges 48 108
- lowards lease rentals 327 147
Interest on advance towards
electricity charges/ deposit 22 3
Balances payable 1o related parties are as follows:
Name of related party As at As at
March 31, 2014 March 31,2013
Tanglin Developments Limited - 9
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Significant accounting policies and notes (o the accounts {continned)
Far the year ended March 31, 2014

(Rupees v millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Balances receivable from related parties ave as follows:

Na'ne of relatcd Natlu'e Of AS at AS at
party {ransactions March 31,2014  March 31, 2013
Tanglin Rental Advance
D oRiments - Current 126 12
Limited
- Non-current 94 -
Advance towards
electricity charges
- Current 48 48
- Non-current 16 64
Security deposit 399 345
(including
clectricity deposit)
returnable on
termination of lease
Interest accrued on 3 3
advance towards

electricity charges

Key Managerial Personnel:

Subroto Bagchi

Executive Chairman

Krishnakumar Natarajan CLEO & Managing Director
Executive Director, President and Chief Technology

S. Janakiraman
N.S. Parthasarathy
Dr. Albert HMieronimus

V.G.Siddhartha
Prof. David B. Yoffie
Prof. Pankaj Chandra
Ramesh Ramanathan
Apurva Purohit

Rostow Ravanan

Anjan Lahiri**

R. Srinivasan*

Officer

Executive Director, President and Chief Operating

Officer

Independent Direclor and Non-Executive Vice

Chairman
Non-Executive Director

Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director

Independent Director

Chief Financial Officer and Alternate Director to Mr,

N.S.Parthasarathy

*R Srinivasan retired with effect from July 19, 2013
*¥Anjan Lahiri resigned with effect from May 6, 2013,
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2014
(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.16

3.17

The Board of Directors appoinied Apurva Purohit as an Independent Director and N S
Parihasarathy as an Executive Director, effective January 1, 2014. Further, the Board of
Directors appoinied Rostow Ravanan as an Alternate Director to N § Parthasarathy,
effective January 17, 2014,

Remuneration paid 1o key managerial personnel during the year ended March 31, 2014
amounts to Rs 151 (for the year ended March 31, 2013: Rs 96). Dividends paid to
directors during the year ended March 31, 2014 amounts 1o Rs 134 (year ended March 31,
2013 amounts to Rs 30).

The above remuneration excludes gratuity and compensated absences which cannot be
separately identified from the composite amount advised by the actuary.

Lease transactions
Lease rental expense under non-cancellable operating lease during the year ended March

31, 2014 amounted to Rs 266 (for the year ended March 31, 2013: Rs 161). Future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease are as below:

Particulars As at As at

March 31,2014 March 31, 2013
Payable -- Not later than one year 267 203
Payable - Later than one year and not later 473 521

than five years

Additionally, the Company leases office facilities and residential facilities under
cancellable operating leases. The rental expense under cancelable operating lease during
the year ended March 31, 2014 was Rs 271 (for the year ended March 31, 2013: Rs 251).

Earnings per equity share

Reconciliation of number of equity shares used in the computation of basic and diluted
earnings per share is set out below:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2014 March 31,2013

Basic EPS  Diluted EPS  Basic EPS  Diluted EPS
Weighted average number of 41,588,758 41,588,758 40,974,712 40,974,712
equity shares outstanding
during the yeat
Weighted average number of - 307,651 . 521,584
equity shares resuliing from
assumed exercise of
employee stock options
Weighted average number of 41,588,758 41,896,409 40,974,712 41,496,296
equity shares for calcujation
of earnings per share

9 m{;m(:.m-.
60 [<XA
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes o thoe accounts {continued)
For the year ended Mareh 31, 2014

(Rupees in millions, except sharve and per share data, unless ofherwise siated)

3.18

3.19

Auditor’s remuneration

Particulars For the year ended March 31,
2014 2013
Statutory audil 15 14
Certification 2 2
Total 17 16

The Company has a development center at Gainesville, Florida, US. The state of Florida
has offered various incentives targeted 1o the needs of the development center. The nature
and the extent of the government grant is given below:

Nature of expenses For the year ended March 31,
2014 2013
Relmbursement of rent 3 2
Grant towards workforce training 28 4
Total 31 6

The Company has availed a non-monetary grant of USD 950,000 for renovation of
project facility in the previous year. This pgrant is subject to fulfillment of certain
conditlons such as creation of minimum employment with specified average salary and
capital investment at the development center at Gainesvilfe, Florida, US,

e
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Significant gccounting policies and nolces (o the accounts (continucd)

For the year ended March 31,2014

(Rupees in milfons, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

320 Ducs to micro, small and medium enterprises

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum
dated August 26, 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should
mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum
Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum in accordance with the ‘Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006° (‘the Act’). Accordingly, the
disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as at March 31, 2014 Tas
been made in the financial statements based on information received and available with
the Company. Further in view of the Management, the impact of interest, if any, that may
be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Act is not expected to be material.
The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier as at the balance
sheet date.

For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
The principal amount and the interest
due thereon (10 be shown separately)
remaining unpaid to any supplier as at
the end of accounting year; Nil Nil

The amount of interest paid by the
buyer under the Act along with the
amounts of the payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day
during each accounting year; Nil Nii

The amount of interest due and
payable for the year (where the
principal has been paid but interest
under the Act not paid); Nif Nil

The amount of interest accrued and
remaining unpaid at the end of
accounting year; and Nil Nil

The amount of further interest due
and payable even in the succeeding
year, until such date when the
interest dues as above are actually
paid to the small enterprise, for the
purpose of disallowance as a
deduciible expenditure under section
23. Nil Nil

LY

)
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Significant accounting policies and notes ta the accounts (continucd)
For the year ended Marech 31, 2014

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share daia, unless otherwise stated)

3.21  The financial stalements are presented in Rs in million. Those items which are required to
be disclosed and which were not presented in the financial statement due 1o rounding off
fo the nearest Rs in mililon are glven as follows:

Balance Sheet items Amount in Ry

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013

Share appiication money pending 27,235 -
atiotment

Cash ot hand 25,277 12,328

3.22  Corresponding figwres for the previous year presented have been regrouped, where
necessary, to conform to the current year's classification.

As per our report attached For Mindtrec Limited
ForBS R & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 101248W

g Je—
Supreet Sachdev Subroto Bagchi N. Krishnakumar

Partner Chaig 1an CEO & Managing Director
Membership No. : 205385

Pﬂ IVUSIN

/
_~Rostow R 'anan Rajesh Srichand Narang

,.-.-,/-- Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Bangalore Place: Bangalore
Date: Aprif 16,2014 Date: Aptil 16, 2014
Sk
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BSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Maruthi Info-Tech Centre
11-12/1 Inner Ring Road
Koramangala

Bangalore 560 071 India

Telephone: +
Fax: +H

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Mindtree Limited

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Mindtree Lin

91 80 3980 6000
91 80 3980 6999

ited (‘Mindtree’ or ‘the

Company’), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2015, the statement of profit and loss and the
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accousting policies and other

explanatory information. |

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 1

and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the

34(5) of the Companies

“ompany in accordance

Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial stz}temcnls that give a true

with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting S
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records i accordance with the prq
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds :
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate int

andards specified under
This responsibility also
visions of the Act for
ind other irregularities;
and estimates that are
ernal financial controls,

that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant

to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

view and are free from

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements
have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing stand
are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified unde
Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan a

ased on our audit. We
ards and matters which
Rules made thereunder.

Section 143(10) of the
d perform the audit to

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from matérial misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amount

the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, ir

s and the disclosures in
cluding the assessment

of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Compiny’s preparation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedureq that are appropriate in

the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the C

pmpany has in place an

adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such

controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting

policies used and the

reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well 4s evaluating the overall

presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

provide a basis for our

: o5

Mahalakshmi

Eor Mindtree Limited
- B S R & Co. (a partnership firm with Reglsiared Office:
\__/ A Registration No. BAG1223) converted into 18t Floor, Lodhe Excalus
h / B S R & Co. LLP (a Limited Liability Partnership Apollo Mills Compgund
Q - with LLP Reglstration No. AAB-8181) N.M, Jashi Marg,
with effect from October 14, 2013 Mumbai - 400 011
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations gi
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the mannej

ven to us, the aforesaid
" so required and give a

true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of

affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2015 and its profit and its cash flows for the y

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

ear ended on that date.

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2015 (“the Order”), issued by the Central

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we g
statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent app

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d

(e)

ve in the Annexure a
icable.

we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the{ best of our knowledge

and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
as it appears from our examination of those books;

the Company  so far

the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss and the cash flow statement d¢alt with by this Report

are in agreement with the books of account;

in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the

Accounting Standards

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (/Accounts) Rules, 2014;

on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 3] March 2015 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2015 from being

appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; and

b3~
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(f)  with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in acclrdancc with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the }mst of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in 1tp
financial statements — Refer Note 3.8 to the financial statements;

b. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contragts including derivative
contracts — Refer Note 3.3.2 to the financial statements;

c. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

JorBSR & Co, LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration number; 101248W/W-100022

Q 2
Supreet Sachdev
Partmer

Membership number: 205385

Bangalore
16 April 2015
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Annexure to the Independent Auditors’ Report

With reference to the Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 in Report on Other Lggal and Regulatory
Requirements of the Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on the standalone
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015, we report that:

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, includirig guantitative details

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

W)
(vi)

and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed ass‘rﬂs by which its fixed

assets are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In our opinion, this periodicity

of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Compan;

and the nature of its

fixed assets. In accordance with this programme, certain fixed assets were verified during the year

and no material discrepancies were observed on such verification.

The Company is a service company, primarily rendering software development services.

Accordingly, it does not hold any physical inventories. Thus, paragraph 3(i
applicable.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies,
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us

internal control system commensurate with the size of the Company and the

) of the Order is not

firms or other parties

there is an adequate
hature of its business

with regard to purchase of fixed assets and with regard to the sale of serviceg. The Company does
not have any purchase of inventories or sale of goods since it is a service Cdmpany. We have not
observed any major weakness in the internal control system during the cours¢ of the audit.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records
of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company.

under section 148(1)

(vii)(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis ¢f our examination of
the records of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account in respect of
undisputed statutory dues including Provident fund, Income tax, Wealth tax, Sales-tax, Service tax,
Value added tax, cess and any other material statutory dues have generally begn regularly deposited
during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities. As explained to us, the Company
did not have any dues on account of Employees’ State Insurance, Custom Duty and Excise duty.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed

amounts payable in

respect of Provident Fund, Income tax, Wealth tax, Sales-tax, Service tax, Value added tax, cess

and other material statutory dues were in arrears, as at 31 March 2015, for 4

six months from the date they became payable.

period of more than
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no |dues of Wealth tax,
Customs duty and Cess which have not been deposited with the appropriate duthorities on account
of any dispute. The Company, however, disputes the following Income tax, Service tax and Sales
tax dues:

Name of the | Nature of the | Amount Period to which | Forum where
statute dues (Rs in millions) the amount | dispute is pending
relates
Income Tax Act, | Tax and | 197.74* Assessment year | Assessing Officer,
1961 interest 2002-03 Bangalore**
Income Tax Act, | Tax and | 46.70* Assessment year | Commissioner  of
1961 interest 2003-04 ncome Taxes
Appeals),
Bangalore
Income Tax Act, | Tax and | 60.84 Assessment year | Commissioner  of
1961 interest 2004-05 Income Taxes
(Appeals),
Bangalore
Income Tax Act, | Tax and | 8.45* Assessment year | [ncome Tax
1961 interest 2007-08 Appellate Tribunal,
Bangalore
Income Tax Act, | Tax and | 11.16 Assessment year | Commissioner  of
1961 interest 2007-08 Income Taxes
Appeals),
Bangalore
Income Tax Act, | Tax and | 10.10 Assessment year | Commissioner of
1961 interest 2008-09 Income Taxes
Appeals),
Bangalore
Income Tax Act, | Tax and | 27.91* Assessment year | Income Tax
1961 interest 2007-08 Appellate Tribunal,
Bangalore
Income Tax Act, | Tax and | 23.56 Assessment year | Commissioner  of
1961 interest 2009-10 Income Taxes
(Appeals),
Bangalore®®
¢ )'/_




B SR &Co. LLP

<

Name of the | Nature of the | Amount Period to which | [forum where
statute dues (Rs in millions) the amount | dispute is pending
relates

Income Tax Act, | Tax and | 122.95% Assessment year | Income Tax

1961 interest 2008-09 Appellate Tribunal
Bangalore

Income Tax Act, | Tax and | 62.90 Assessment year | Income Tax

1961 interest 2009-10 Appellate Tribunal,
Bangalore

Income Tax Act, | Tax and | 61.46 Assessment year | Commissioner  of

1961 interest 2010-11 Income Taxes
Appeals),
Bangalore

The Finance Act, | Service tax | 11.29 June 2005 to | Customs, Excise

1994 and interest March 2007 and  Service Tax
Appellate Tribunal,
Bangalore***

The Finance Act, | Service tax | 24.27 July 2003 to | Customs, Excise

1994 and interest March 2006 and  Service Tax
Appellate Tribunal,
lBanga]ore***

The Finance Act, | Tax, interest | 64.47 July 2004 to | Customs, Excise

1994 and penalty November 2005 nd Service Tax
ppellate Tribunal,
angalore****

The Finance Act, | Tax, interest | 3.11% April 2007 to | Customs, Excise

1994 and penalty March 2008 and Service Tax
Appellate Tribunal,
Bangalore ¥k

The Finance Act, | Tax, interest | 22.68 September 2004 | Customs,  Excise

1994 and penalty to March 2007 and Service Tax
Appellate Tribunal,
Bangalore* i

The Finance Act, | Tax, interest | 4.68 April 2007 to | Customs, Excise

1994 and penalty February 2008 and Service Tax
Appellate Tribunal,
Bangalore

\__
2
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(viii)

(ix)

x)

(xi)

Name of the | Nature of the | Amount Period to which | forum where
statute dues (Rs in millions) the amount | fispute is pending
relates

The Finance Act, | Tax, interest | 4.80 April 2008 to | Assistant

1994 and penalty March 2009 Commissioner  of
Commercial taxes
[Recovery),
Bangalore

Karnataka  Sales | Tax and | 0.28* Upto July 2004 Assistant

Tax Act, 1957 penalty Commissioner  of
Commercial taxes
(Recovery),
Bangalore

()

* The above amounts are net of amount paid under protest.

$3 The Company is awaiting the order giving effect order from the Assessing
date of this report

** The Company has not obtained the final assessment order as at the date of]

*** Stay granted by Customs, Excise and Service Tax Appellate Tribunal, Ba
order dated 6 January 2012 and further order received dated 21 February 201

Officer as at the

this report.

gngalore vide original

*#x* Stay granted by Customs, Excise and Service Tax Appellate Tribunal, Banggalore vide order

dated 27 September 2012.

Note: The Income-Tax authorities have adjusted refund amounting to Rs.162
the aforementioned demands without earmarking amounts to the Assessment
been reflected in the above disclosure.

According to the information and explanations given to us the amounts whic}
transferred to the investor education and protection fund in accordance with th

million in respect of
Year which has not

were required to be

e relevant provisions

of the Companies Act, 1956 (1 of 1956) and rules there under has been transferred to such fund

within time. |

The Company does not have any accumulated losses at the end of the fi inangial year and has not

incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding fir

The Company did not have any outstanding dues to financial institutions,
holders during the year.,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
guarantee for loans taken by others from banks or financial institutions.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
loans during the year.

ancial year,

banks or debenture

has not given any

not taken any term

\-




BSR & Co. LLP

(xii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud (,Ln or by the Company
has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

for BSR & Co, LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration No. 101248W / W-100022

Supreet Sachdev
Partrier

Membership No. 205385

Bangalore
16 April 2015




Mindtree Limited

Balance sheet
Rs in million
Note As at As at
March 31, 20158 March 31,2014
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES |
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital LR R 837 417
Reserves and surplus 312 19,271 15,992
20,108 16,409
Share application money pending allotment 3.L1(g) 4 -
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 321 23 27
Other long-term liabilities 322 334 129
Long-term provisions 323 - 39
kL) 195
Current liabilities
Trade payables 503 82
QOther current liabilities 33.1 3,443 2,737
Short-term provisions 332 2,046 1,574
5,992 4,393
16,461 20,997
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 341 4,507 3,266
Intangible assets 341 119 170
Capital work-in-progress 354 496
Non-current investments 342 L3 189
Deferred tax assets (net) 343 449 402
Long-term loans and advances 344 653 758
Other non-current assets 345 1,003 1,039
8,198 6,320
Current assets
Current investments 351 5343 5,160
Trade receivables 352 6,798 6,004
Cash and bank balances 353 3.669 1,175
Short-term loans and advances 354 R36 612
Other current assets 355 1,617 1,726
18,263 14,677
26,461 20,997
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts 2&3
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
ForBSR & Co.LLF For Mindtree Limited

Chartered Accountants
FirmyRegistration Number, 101248W/W-100022

Supreet Sachdev Subroto Bagchi
Puartner Chairman

Membership Number: 205385

ngannathan Chakravarthi
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Bangalore
Date : April 16, 2015

Place: Bangalore
Date : April 16,2015

N S heolr—on

N. Krishnakumar
CFEO & Managing Director




Mindtree Limited
Statement of profit and loss

|
Rs in mitlion, except share and per share data

Particulars Note For thc‘ year ended

March 31, 2015 March 31,2014
Revenue from operations 35,474 30,316
Other income 3.6 831 | 494
Total revenues 36,305 30,810
Expenses:
Employee benefits expense 37 20,646 17,820
Finance costs 37 1] 4
Depreciation and amortisation expense 341 1,017 | 809
Other expenses 37 7,764 | 6,390
Total expenses 29,428 | 25,023

|
Profit before tax 6,877 | 5,787
Tax expense: 343
Current tax 1,581 | 1,317
Deferred tax (47)| (42)
Profit for the year 5,343 | 4,512
Earnings per equity share 7
Equity shares of par value Rs 10/- each
Basic 63.90| 54.25
Diluted 63,62‘ 53.90
Weighted average number of equity shares used in computing carnings per share
Basic 83,619,436 ‘ 83,177,516
Diluted 83,998,716 | 83,716,693
[

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts 2&3

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of cven date attached

ForBSR & Co. LLP For Mindtree Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 101248W/W-100022
4

! i - [ ! a

ML’ Vd:é E - / ‘ w N ‘2 *) &
Supreet Sachdev Subroto Bagchi ) [ N. Krishnakumar
Partner Chairman CEO & Managing Director

Membership Number: 205385

Jagannathan Chakravarthi
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Bangalore Place: Bangalore
Date : April 16,2015 Date : April 16,2015
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Mindtree Limited
Cash flow statement

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation
Amortization of stock compensation cost
Interest expense
Interest/ dividend income
Profit on sale of fixed assets
Profit on sale of investments
Exchange difference on derivatives
Effect of exch diffe on lati
currency borrowings

of foreign

Effect of exchange differences on translation of foreign
currency cash and cash equivalents

Operating profit before working capital changes
Changes in trade receivables
Changes in loans and advances and other assets
Changes in linbilities and provisions

Net cash provided by operating activities before taxes
Income taxes paid

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flow from Investing activitles

Purchase of fixed assets

Proceeds from sale of fixed assels

Investment in Subsidiary

Interest/ dividend received from invesiments

Purchase of investments

Sale/ maturities of investments

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities

Issuc of share capital (net of issue expenses paid)

Intereat paid on loans

Repayment of borrowings

Proceeds from loans

Dividends paid (including distribution 1ax)

Net cash used in financing activities

Effect of exchange differences on translation of foreign

currency cash and cash equivalents

Net Increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer note 3.5.3)

The notes referred to above fonm an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even dete attached
ForBSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

egistration Number 101248W/W-100022

Firm,

Supreet Sachdev

Partner
Membership Number: 205385

Place: Bangalore
Date : April 16,2015

Rs in milllon
For the year enfied March 31,
2018 2014
6,877 5,787
1,007 809
168 79
! 4
(294) (215)
) (3)
(286) (130)
2n -
B 25
9 69
7,465 | 6,287
194y ' (1,496
(33) (837)
879 568
7517 4,522
(1.540) (1.257)
5,977 3228
(1,995) (1,520)
8 3
(600) o
219 222
9.982) (11.444)
10,252 10,495
(2,098) (2,244)
67 63
[§)] 5)
@) (811)
. 564
(1,438) (924)
(1,376) (1,113)
(9) 69
2,494 (63)
1,175 1,298
3,669 1,178

For Mindtree Limited

Subrato Bagcht
Chairman

-

Jagannathan Chakravarthi
Chief Financial Officer

CEO & Mupaping Director

Place Bangalore
Date - April 16,2015 3
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Mindtree Limited
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

For the year ended March 31, 2015
(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated).

1.

2.1

2.2

Background |

Mindtree Limited (‘Mindtree’ or ‘the Company’) is an international Information
Technology consulting and implementation company that delivers business solutions
through global software development. The Company is structured into five verticals —
Retail, CPG and Manufacturing (RCM), Banking, Financial Services and Insurance
(BFSI), Hitech and Media Services (HTMS), Travel and Hospitality (TH) and Others.
The Company offers services in the areas of agile, analytics and information management,
application development and maintenance, business process management, business
technology consulting, cloud, digital business’s, independent leslingl infrastructure
management services, mobility, product engineering and SAP services. |

The Company is head quartered in Bangalore and has offices in India, lT|Jnited States of
America, United Kingdom, Japan, Singapore, Malaysia, Australia, Germany, Switzerland,

b

Sweden, UAE, Netherlands, Canada, Belgium, France, Ireland and Republ[c of China.
Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation of financial statements |

These financial statements are prepared and presented in accordance with Indian
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) under the historical ¢ost convention
on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair
values. GAAP comprises mandatory accounting standards as prescribed under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014, the provisions of the Act (to the extent notified and applicable) and
guidelines issued by the Securities and exchange Board of India (SEBI).

Use of estimates |

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the genérally accepted
accounting principles in India requires management to make estimates ahd assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of income and expenses of the period, assets and
liabilities and disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as of the date pf the financial
statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Any revision to accounting

estimates is recognised prospectively in future periods. %/

)




Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2015
(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

23

2.3.1

232

233

234

235

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets are carried at cost of acquisition (including directly a
such as freight, installation, etc.) or construction less accumulate

tributable costs
d depreciation.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of those fixed

assets, which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get|
intended use, are capitalised.

Acquired intangible assets are capitalised at the acquisition p

generated intangible assets are recorded at cost that can be md
during the development phase and when it is probable that fi

Leases under which the Company assumes substantially all the riy

ready for their

rice. Intermnally
asured reliably

jture economic
benefits that are attributable to the assets will flow to the Company.

ks and rewards

of ownership are classified as finance leases. Such assets are capitalised at fair

value of the asset or present value of the minimum lease p
inception of the lease, whichever is lower. Lease payments under (
are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss o
basis over the lease term.

ayments at the
hperating leases
h a straight-line

Advances paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets, outstanding at each

balance sheet date are shown under capital advances. The cost of
not ready for its intended use on such date, is disclosed under ¢
progress.

the fixed asset
apital work-in-

Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on the straight-line method over the
useful lives of assets estimated by the Company. Depreciation for assets
purchased/ sold during a period is proportionately charged. Intangible assets are
amortised over their respective individual estimated useful lives oh a straight-line
basis, commencing from the date the asset is available to the Company for its use.

The Company estimates the useful lives for fixed assets as follows

Asset classification Useful life
Buildings 5-30 years
Computer systems 2-3 years
Computer software 2 years
Test equipment 3 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Electrical installations 3 years
Office equipment 4 years
Motor vehicles 4 years
Plant and machinery 4 years
Intellectual property 5 years

The Company believes that the useful lives as given above be

useful lives of these assets based on internal assessment and

technical advice where necessary which is different from the

prescribed under Part C of Schedule IT of the Companies Act 2013|

o

t represent the
supported by
useful lives as




Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

2.3.6 The cost of leasehold land is amortised over the period of the lease. Leasehold

improvements and assets acquired on finance lease are amortise
term or useful life, whichever is lower.

é over the lease

2.4 Investments o
!\'ﬁi

2.4.1  Non-current investments are carried at cost less any othersthan-temporary
diminution in value, determined on the specific identification basiy.

2.42 Current investments are carried at the lower of cost and fair value. The
comparison of cost and fair value is carried out separately in respect of each
investment.

2.43  Profit or loss on sale of investments is determined as the difference between the
sale price and carrying value of investment, determined individually for each
investment.

25 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash-in-hand and balance in bank in current
accounts and deposit accounts.

2.6 Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profjt before tax is

adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any defefrals or accruals

of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from fegular revenue
generating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

2.7 Employee benefits
2.7.1  Gratuity is a defined benefit scheme and is accrued based on actuarial valuations

at the balance sheet date, carried out by an independent actuaryi, The Company

has an employees’ gratuity fund managed by ICICI Prudential
Company, SBI Life Insurance Company and Life Insurance Corp
Actuarial gains and losses are charged to the statement of profit ar

Life Insurance
bration of India.
d loss.

272 Compensated absences are a long-term employee benefit and is agcrued based on
actuarial valuations at the balance sheet date, carried out by jan independent
actuary. The Company accrues for the expected cost of short-tcljm compensated
absences in the period in which the employee renders services.

2.7.3  Contributions payable to the recognised provident fund, which is a defined
contribution scheme, are charged to the statement of profit and logs.

PRI
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

2.8 Revenue recognition

2.8.1 The Company derives its revenues primarily from software ser

vices, Revenue

from software development on time-and-material basis is recognised as the

related services are rendered. Revenue from fixed price contrac

using the proportionate completion method, which is determined
actual project cost of work performed to date to the estimated td

for each contract. Unbilled revenue represents cost and earnin

billings while unearned revenue represents the billing in excq

s is recognised
by relating the
tal project cost
rs in excess of
ss of cost and

eamnings. Provision for estimated losses, if any, on incomplete contracts are
recorded in the period in which such losses become probable basell on the current

contract estimates.

Maintenance revenue is recognised ratably over the period of 1
contract.

2.8.2
discount.

2.8.3 Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment

2.8.4 Interest income is recognised using the time proportion metho
transactional interest rates.

2.9 Foreign exchange transactions

29.1 The Company is exposed to foreign currency transactions in

he maintenance

Provision for discounts is recognised on an accrual basis in #ccordance with
contractual terms of agreements with customers. Revenues arg

stated net of

is established.

1, based on the

cluding foreign

currency revenues, receivables and borrowings. With a view to minimize the
volatility arising from fluctuations in currency rates, the Company enters into
foreign exchange forward contracts and other derivative instrumerjts.

2.9.2 Foreign exchange transactions are recorded using the exchange

rates prevailing

on the dates of the respective transactions. Exchange differences arising on

foreign exchange transactions settled during the period are re
statement of profit and loss for the period.

2.9.3 Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign curre

tognised in the

1cies as at the

balance sheet date are translated at the closing exchange rates dn that date; the
resultant exchange differences are recognised in the statement of| profit and loss.
Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost|denominated in

a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction.

%‘,,
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

294

295

2.9.6

In respect of integral operations, monetary assets and liabilities are translated at

the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the balance sheet. Non-
are translated at the historical rate. The items in the statement of

monetary items
profit and loss

are translated at the rates prevailing on the dates of the respectiye transactions.

The differences arising out of the translation are recognised in t
profit and loss.

Forward exchange contracts and other similar instruments that ar
of forecasted transactions are accounted for using the guidance
Standard (‘AS’) 11, ‘The effects of changes in foreign exchange
forward exchange contracts and other similar instruments cove
based on the nature and purpose of the contract, either the contrag

he statement of

> not in respect
in Accounting
rates’. For such
red by AS 11,
't are recorded

based on the forward rate/ fair value at the reporting date, or based on the spot

exchange rate on the reporting date. For contracts recorded at thg
rates, the premium or discount at the inception is amortized as inc
over the life of the contract.

For forward exchange contracts and other derivatives that are

spot exchange
bme or expense

10t covered by

AS 11 and that relate to a firm commitment or highly probable forecasted

transactions, the Company has adopted Accounting Standard ('AS|

) 30, ‘Financial

Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ to the extent that the adoption did

not conflict with existing accounting standards and othe

r authoritative

accordance with AS 30, such derivative financial instruments,

which qualify for

pronouncements of the Company Law and other regulatory r[quiremems. In

cash flow hedge accounting and where the Company has met all the conditions of
cash flow hedge accounting, are fair valued at balance sheet date and the resultant
exchange loss/ gain is debited/ credited to the hedge reserve unti| the transaction
is completed. Other derivative instruments are recorded at fair value at the
reporting date and the resultant exchange loss/ gain is debited/ credited to
statement of profit and loss.
2.10 Warranties
Warranty costs (i.c. post contract support services) are estimated by the management on the
basis of technical evaluation and past experience. Provision is made for estimated liability
in respect of warranty costs in the period of recognition of revenue,

2.11  Provision and contingent liabilities

The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past
event that probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimpte can be made
of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there
is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an
outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a presept obligation in
respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is rgmote, fio provision or
disclosure is made. Qf
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

2.12

2.13

Provisions for onerous contracts, i.e. contracts where the expected unavc

meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits

idable costs of
expected to be

received under it are recognised when it is probable that an outfloy of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle a present obligation as a result of

an obliga;t‘jng event, based on a reliable estimate of such obligation.

Taxation

The current income tax charge is determined in accordance with tl)
regulations applicable to the Company. Deferred tax charge or credit arg

the future tax consequences attributable to timing difference that result be
offered for income taxes and the profit as per the financial statements.

e relevant tax
recognised for
ween the profit
Deferred tax in

respect of timing difference which originate during the tax holiday period but reverse
after the tax holiday period is recognised in the period in which the timing difference
originate. For this purpose the timing differences which originate first are considered to

reverse first. The deferred tax charge or credit and the correspondir

liabilities or assets are recognised using the tax rates that have b

substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are req

g deferred tax
ten enacted or
ognised only to

the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be realised in future; however,

when there is a brought forward loss or unabsorbed depreciation unde
deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty of re

taxation laws,
flisation of such

assets. Deferred tax assets are reviewed as at each balance sheet date and written down or
written up to reflect the amount that is reasonably/ virtually certain to be realised.

Minimum alternate tax (‘MAT”) paid in accordance with the tax laws, wh
future economic benefits in the form of tax credit against future income

ch gives rise to
tax liability, is

recognised as an asset in the balance sheet if there is a convincing evidence that the

Company will pay normal tax after the tax holiday period and the resulta

ht assets can be

measured reliably. MAT credit entitlement can be carried forward and utilized for a

period of ten years from the period in which such credit is availed.

The Company offsets, on a year on year basis, the current tax assets and |
it has a legally enforceable right and where it intends to settle such asse
on a net basis.

Earnings per share
In determining earnings per share, the Company considers the net pro

includes the post-tax effect of any extra-ordinary item. The number of eq
in computing basic eamings per share is the weighted average number

iabilities, where
s and liabilities

it after tax and
uity shares used
of equity shares

outstanding during the period. The number of equity shares used in computing diluted

earnings per share comprises weighted average number of equity share;
deriving basic eamnings per share and also weighted average number ¢
which could have been issued on the conversion of all difutive potential e

BANGALORE
560 071

LY}
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

2.14

2.15

2.16

Impairment of assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any in

dication that an

asset (including goodwill) may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company
estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely

independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the
unit to which the asset belongs. If such recoverable amount of the asset or
amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less

cash-generating
the recoverable
an its carrying

amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is
treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. If at the

balance sheet date there is an indication that if a previously assessed im

irment loss no

longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is feflected at the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the carrying
amount of asset does not exceed the net book value that would have been determined, if
no impairment loss had been recognised. In respect of goodwill, impairment loss will be
reversed only when it is caused by specific external events and their effects have been

reversed by subsequent external events:

Employee stock based compensation

The Company measures the compensation cost relating to stock options, restricted shares

and phantom stock options using the intrinsic value method. The comp
amortised over the vesting/ service period.

Government grants
Grants from the government are recognised when there is reasonable assu

@ the Company will comply with the conditions attached to them; a|
(ii)  the grant will be received.

Ersation cost is

rance that:

d

Government grants related to revenue are recognised on a systematjc basis in the
statement of profit and loss over the periods necessary to match them yvith the related

costs which they are intended to compensate. Such grants are deducted
related expense. Where the Company receives non-monetary grant
accounted for on the basis of its acquisition cost. In case a non-monetar]
free of cost it is recognised at a nominal value. @

o .P". Col-"“-.
LTt
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3. Notes to the accounts
3.1 Shareholders’ funds
3.1.1 Share capital
a)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2015 March 31,2014
Authorised
800,000,000 (March 31, 2014: 79,620,000) equity 8,000 796
shares of Rs 10/- each
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
83,732,372 (March 31, 2014: 41,689,731) equity 837 417
shares of Rs 10/- each fully paid
Total 837 417
b) Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the
end of the reporting year is as given below:
Partlculars As at As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Noof shares  Rs No of shares R
Number of shares autstiniling at the beginning of the year 41,689,731 417 4),535,055 415
Add: Shares issued on exercise of employee stock options and 276,980 2 154,676 2
restricted shares
Add: Bonus shares issued * 41,765,661 418 - -
Number of shares outstanding at the end of the year 83,732,372 837 4] 689,731 417

*Refer note 3.1.1 ().

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shai
value of Rs 10 each.

Each holder of the equity share, as reflected in the records of the Col
date of the shareholder meeting, is entitled to one vote in respect of
for all matters submitted to vote in the shareholder meeting.

The Company declares and pays dividends in Tndian rupees and foreig
dividend proposed by the Board of Dircctors is subject to the :
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting.

es having a par

mpany as of the
cach share held

n curtency. The
1pproval of the

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on October 15, 2014 dec
dividend of 30% (Rs 3 per equity share of par value Rs 10/- cach)

ared an interim
for the quarter

ended September 30, 2014. At its meeting held on January 19, 3015, the Board

declared a second interim dividend of 40% (Rs 4 per equity share of

each) for the quarter ended December 31, 2014. Further, the Board o
meeting held on April 16, 2015 have recommended a final dividend
per equity share of par value Rs 10 each).

During the year ended March 31, 2014, the amount of per share divig
as distributions to equity shareholders was Rs 25 per equity share.

BANGALORE
560 07

ar value Rs 10/-
I Directors at its
bf 100% (Rs 10

{end recognized
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

In the event of liguidation of the Company, the holders of equity|shares will be
entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all
preferential amounts, However, no such preferential amounts exist| currently. The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the
shareholders.

d) Equity shareholder holding more than 5 percent of equity shares along with the
number of equity shares held at the beginning and at the end of the year is as given

below: _
Sr. No. Name of the sharcholder As at Murch 31, 2015 As at|Mareh 31,2014
Number of shares % Numberof shares %
I Coffec Day Enterprises Limited 8,730,884 10.4% i 4365442 10.5%
2 Nalanda India Fund Limited 7,898,178 9.4% | 3,949,089 9.5%
3 Global Technology Ventures Limited 5,297,122 63% 2,648,561  6.4%

|

e) In the period of five years immediately preceding March 31, 2015: '

a. The Company has allotted 41,765,661 fully paid up equity sl&ares during the
quarter ended June 30, 2014 pursuant to 1:1 bonus share issiic approved by
shareholders. Consequently, options/ units granted und?r the various
employee share based plans are adjusted for bonus share issue}

. The Company has not bought back any class of equity shares. |

c. The Company has allotted a total of 1,300,965 equity shares as fully paid up
without payment being received in cash. These shares were allotted to the
shareholders of erstwhile Aztecsoft Limited pursuant to the scheme of

amalgamation during the financial year ended March 31, 2010.
f) Employee stock based compensation

The Company instituted the Employees Stock Option Plan (‘ESOP’) in fisgal 2000, which
was approved by the Board of Directors (‘the Board’). The Corq'pmly currently
administers seven stock option programs, a restricted stock purchase pian; and a phantom
stock option plan.

|

Program 1 [ESOP 1999/

Options under this program are exercisable at an exercise price of Rs 10 per option. All
stock options have a four-year vesting term and vest at the rate of 15%, 20%, 30% and
35% at the end of 1, 2, 3 and 4 years respectively from the date of grant and become fully
exercisable. Each option is entitled to 1 equity share of Rs 10 each. This program extends
to employees who have joined on or before September 30, 2001 or have been issued
employment offer letters on or before August 7, 2001. This plan was terminated on
September 30, 2001. The contractual life of each option is 11 years after the date of grant.
There are no options outstanding as at the reporting date. %

BANGALORE
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Program 2 [ESOP 2001]

Options under this program have been granted to employees at an exercis

price of Rs 50

per option (Rs 25 per option post bonus issue). All stock options have a four-year vesting

term and vest at the rate of 15%, 20%, 30% and 35% at the end of 1, 2

3 and 4 years

respectively from the date of grant and become fully exercisable. Each option is entitled

to | equity share of Rs 10 each. This program extends to employees who
or after October 1, 2001 or have been issued employment offer letters on

have joined on
or after August

8, 2001 or options granted to existing employees with grant date on or gdfter October 1,

2001. This plan was terminated on April 30, 2006. The contractual life o
11 years after the date of grant.

" each option is

Particulars Year ended March 31,

2015 2014
Outstanding options, beginning of the year 54,777* 47,918
Granted during the year - -
Exercised during the year 29,401 12,868
Lapsed during the year 2,3 04] 3,821
Forfeited during the year - -
Outstanding options, end of the year 23,072 31,229
Options vested and exercisable, end of the year 23,072 31,229

*Adjusted for bonus issue. Refer note 3.1.1 (e)
Program 3 [ESOP 2006 (a)]

Options under this program have been granted to employees at an e

ercise price of

Rs 250 per option. All stock options have a four-year vesting term and vast at the rate of
15%, 20%, 30% and 35% at the end of 1, 2, 3 and 4 years respectively ffom the date of
grant and become fully exercisable. Each option is entitled to 1 equity share of Rs 10
each. This program extends to employees to whom the options are granted on or after

May 1, 2006. This plan was terminated on October 25, 2006. The contrac

fual life of each

option is 5 years after the date of grant. There are no options outstanding as at the
reporting dates.




Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Program 4 [ESOP 2006 (b)]

Options under this program are granted to employees at an exercise price periodically

determined by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. All stock
four-year vesting term and vest at the rate of 15%, 20%, 30% and 35% at

options have a
the end of 1, 2,

3 and 4 years respectively from the date of grant and become fully exercisable. Each
option is entitled to 1 equity share of Rs 10 each. This program extends to employees to
whom the options are granted on or after October 25, 2006. The contractual life of each

option is 5 years after the date of grant.

Particulars Year ended March 31,

: 2015 2014
Outstanding options, beginning of the year 213,750* 304,650
Granted during the year - -
Exercised during the year 92,000 57,600
Lapsed during the year - 28,475
Forfeited during the year 47,750 71,325
Outstanding options, end of the year 74,000 147,250
Options vested and exercisable, end of the year 74,000 89,175

*Adjusted for bonus issue. Refer note 3.1.1 (e)

Program 5 [ESOP 2008A]

Options under this program are granted to employees of erstwhile Azteanﬂ Limited as
1

per swap ratio of 2:11 as specified in the merger scheme. Each optio|

1 equity share of Rs 10 each.

is entitled to

Particulars Year entled March 31,

2015 2014
Outstanding options, beginning of the year 168,295* 108,248
Granted during the year o “
Exercised during the year 51,293 20,614
Lapsed during the year 33,926 2,610
Forfeited during the year - -
Outstanding options, end of the year 83,076 85,024
Options vested and exercisable, end of the year 83,076 85,024
* Adjusted for bonus issue. Refer note 3.1.1 (e) %
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Directors’ Stock Option Plan, 2006 (‘DSOP 2006°)

Options under this program have been granted to independent directors

at an exercise

price periodically determined by the Nomination and Remuneration Comnjittee. All stock

options vest equally over three year vesting term at the end of I,
respectively from the date of the grant and become fully exercisable.

2 and 3 years
Each option is

entitled to 1 equity share of Rs 10 each. The contractual life of each option is 4 years after

the date of the grant.

Particulars Year ended March 31,
2015 2014
Outstanding options, beginning of the year 75,000* 135,000
Granted during the year - -
Exercised during the year 35,000 45,000
Lapsed during the year - 10,000
Forfeited during the year 2 | 25,000
Outstanding options, end of the year 40,000 55,000
Options vested and exercisable, end of the year 26,666 41,666
* Adjusted for bonus issue. Refer note 3.1.1 (g)
Program 7 [ESOP 2010A]
In-principle approvals for administering the seventh stock option program f.e. ESOP 2010

(A) has been received by the Company from the BSE and NSE for 1,

shares of Rs 10 each. No options have been granted under the
March 31, 2015.

Employee Restricted Stock Purchase Plan 2012 (‘ERSP 2012°)

135,000 equity
program as at

ERSP 2012 was instituted with effect from July 16, 2012 to issue cquity shares of
nominal value of Rs 10 each. Shares under this program are granted to employees at an
exercise price of not less than Rs 10 per equity share or such higher pric¢ as determined
by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. Shares shall vest ovér such term as

determined by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee not exce
from the date of the grant. All shares will have a minimum lock in peri

from the date of allotment. %/

:ding ten years
od of one year

15



Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2015
(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended March 31,

2015 2014
Outstanding shares, beginning of the year - -
Granted during the year 69,286 18,594
Exercised during the year 69,286 18,594
Lapsed during the year - -
Forfeited during the year - -

Outstanding shares, end of the year -
Shares vested and exercisable, end of the year -

During the year ended March 31, 2015, 69,286 equity shares were
Company under Employee Restricted Stock Purchase Plan 2012 (‘ERSP 2

The weighted average fair value of each unit under the above mentioned E
granted during the year was Rs 840 using the Black-Scholes model wit
assumptions:

rranted by the
D12")

RSP 2012 plan,
h the following

Weighted average grant date share price
Weighted average exercise price
Dividend yield %

Expected life

Risk free interest rate

Volatility

Rs 851
Rs 10
0.31%

1-2 years

8.53%

84.99%

The Company has also granted phantom stock options and letter of intent
under ERSP 2012 plan to certain employees which is subject to

conditions. Details of the grant/issue as at March 31, 2015 are given below):

to issue shares
certain vesting

Particulars Phantom stock ERSP 2012
options plan* plan*
Total no. of units/ shares 765,000 230,000
Vested units/ shares 100,980 28,248
Lapsed units/ shares 13,770 3,852
Forfeited units/ shares B 16,000
Cancelled units/ shares (Refer note below) 497,250 -
Outstanding units/ shares as at the end of the
year 153,000 181,900
Contractual life 2 years 5 years
Date of grant 18-Jul-13 18-Jul-13%*
Price per share/ unit Grant price of Exercise price of
Rs 455 Rs 10**

*Adjusted for bonus issue. Refer note 3.1.1 (e).
**Based on Letter of Intent

During the year ended March 31, 2015, the Phantom stock units which w

ere expected to

vest during the financial years 2015-16 and 2016-17 have been capcelled by the

Company. As a result of the cancellation of these units, the Company h
stock based compensation recorded in earlier years of Rs 57 in the statemd
loss for the year ended March 31, 2015. %/

§ ¥

as reversed the
nt of profit and

16




Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated) |

The following table summarizes information about the weighted average exercise price of
options/ shares exercised under various programs: !
Amount in Rs

Particulars Year ended March 31,

2015* 2014
Program 1 - -
Program 2 30.25 50.00
Program 3 - B
Program 4 34477 507.14
Program 5 201.88 | 387.64
DSOP 2006 560.00 | 560.00
ERSP 2012 10.00 10.00

*Exercise price is adjusted post bonus issue.

The following tables summarize information about the options/ shares outstanding under
various programs as at March 31, 2015 and March 31, 2014 respectively:

Particulars As at March 31,2015
Number of Weighted average | Weighted
options/ remaining  average exercise
shares* contractual life I price*
(in years) (in Rs)
Program 1 - - -
Program 2 23,072 0.70 25.00
Program 3 - - | B
Program 4 74,000 0.32 | 265.07
Program 5 83,076 2.32 215.18
DSOP 2006 40,000 1.10 278.00
ERSP 2012 - - | -
*Adjusted for bonus issue. Refer note 3.1.1 (¢). |
Particulars As at March 31,2014
Number of Weighted average Weighted
options/ remaining  average exercise
shares contractual life price
(in years) (in Rs)
Program 1 - - E
Program 2 31,229 1.13 | 50.00
Program 3 - - B
Program 4 147,250 1.78 496.58
Program 5 85,024 228 393.90
DSOP 2006 55,000 1.24 i 558.55
ERSP 2012 - - -

The Company has recorded compensation cost for all grants using the|intrinsic value-
based method of accounting, in line with prescribed SEBI guidelines.

2
A\y




Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated) '

Had stock based compensation been determined under the fair value appn!*oach described
in the Guidance Note on, “Accounting for employee share based payments” issued by
ICAI, the Company’s net profit and basic and diluted earnings per share would have
reduced to the proforma amounts as indicated:

Particulars Year ended March 31,
20015 2014

Net profit as reported 5,343 4,512

Add: Stock-based employee

compensation expense (intrinsic value 168 79

method)

Less: Stock-based employee

compensation expense (fair value (173) 18

method)

Pro forma net profit 5,338 | 4,609

Basic eamings per share as reported 63.90 54.25

Pro forma basic earnings per share 63.85 | 55.42

Diluted earnings per share as reported 6362 | 53.90

Pro forma diluted earnings per share 63.56 55.06

g) The Company has received Rs 4 towards allotment of 15,000 equity |shares and 276
equity shares at exercise prices of Rs 285 each and Rs 25 each respectively and is
shown under Share application money pending allotment. The Company expects to
make the allotment during the quarter ended June 30, 2015. The Company has
sufficient authorized share capital to cover the share capital amount pn allotment of

shares out of share application money. %
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Mindtree Limited
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2015
(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.1.2

Reserves and surplus

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Capital reserve 5
Opening balance & 87 87
87 87
Securities premium reserve
Opening balance 2,208 2,125
Additions during the year on exercise ot employee 108 83
stock options/ restricted shares
Less: Amount utilised for bonus shares (418) -
1,898 2,208
General reserve
Opening balance 1,542 1,091
Add: Transfer from statement of profit and loss - 451
1,542 1,542
Share option outstanding account
Opening balance 68 48
Additions during the year 10 20
78 68
Hedge reserve
Opening balance 49 173
Movement during the year (49) (124)
- 49
Surplus (Balance in the statement of proft and loss)
Opening balance 12,038 9,198
Add: Amount transferred from statement of profit 5,343 4,512
and loss
Amount available for appropriations 17,381 13,710
Appropriations:
Interim dividend (586) (624)
Final dividend (838) 417
Dividend distribution tax (291) (180)
Amount transferred to general reserve - (451)
15,666 12,038
Total 19,271 15,992




Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.2

KIv A |

3.2.2

3.2.3

Non-current liabilities

Long-term borrowings

Particulars As at
March 31, 2015

As at
March 31,2014

(Unsecured)
Other loans and advances 23 27
Total 23 27

Long-term borrowings represent the amount received from Council for
Industrial Research (CSIR) to develop a project under “Development of I
Surveillance Server (IVSS) system”.

The loan is an unsecured loan carrying a simple interest of 3% p.a on
amount of loan, Repayment of loan is in 10 equal annual installments fi
Any delay in repayment entails a liability of 12% p.a. compounded 1
period of delay.

Scientific and
itelligent Video

the outstanding
rom June 2011.
wonthly for the

There is no continuing default in the repayment of the principal loan and interest

amounts.

Other long-term liabilities

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2015 March 31,2014
Other long-term liabilities 334 97
Employee related liabilitics - 32
Total 334 129
Long-term provisions
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Provision for discount - 39
Total - 39
Refer note 3.3.2 for the disclosure of provisions movement as required under the
provisions of Accounting Standard — 29 ‘Provisions, Contingent [Liabilities and

Contingent Assets’ (‘AS 29°). %/
e




Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.3 Current liabilities

3.3.1 Other current liabilities

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2015

| As at

March 31, 2014

3.3.2

Current maturities of long-term debt* 5 5
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 1 1
Uneamed income 225 100
Unpaid dividends 5 4
Creditors for capital goods 218 175
Advances from customers 27 103
Employee related liabilities 1,462 1,264
Book overdraft 155 85
Other liabilities** 1,345 1,000
Total 3,443 2,737

*The details of interest rates, repayment and other terms are disclosed under note 3.2.1.

**Includes derivative liability of Rs 3 (As at March 31, 2014: Rs 44).

As at March 31, 2015, the Company has outstanding forward contract
USD 32 million (As at March 31, 2014: USD 47. 5 million), GBP 2.2
March 31, 2014: Nil) and Euro 4.5 million (As at March 31, 2014: Euro 5
derivative instruments have been entered to hedge highly probable forecas

5 amounting to
million (As at
million). These
ted sales.

In accordance with the provisions of AS 30, those forward contracts which qualify for

cash flow hedge accounting have been fair valued at balance sheet date and the resultant

exchange gain/ (loss) has been credited/ (debited) to hedge reserve (Re;

fer Note 3.1.2).

Other derivative instruments have been fair valued at the balance sheet date and resultant

exchange gain of Rs 21 for the year ended March 31, 2015 (for the year ¢
2014: Nil) has been recorded in the statement of profit and loss.

Short-term provisions

nded March 31,

Particulars As at
March 31, 2015

As at
March 31,2014

Provision for employee benefits

- Gratuity 18 2
- Compensated absences 352 320
Provision for taxes, net of advance tax and tax 227 219
deducted at source

Provision for discount 367 231
Dividend payable 837 626
Dividend distribution tax payable 172 106
Provision for foreseeable losses on contracts - 3
Provision for post contract support services 5 4
Provision for disputed dues* 68 63
Total 2,046 1,574

*Represents disputed tax dues provided pursuant to unfavourable order r¢

ceived from the

tax authorities against which the Company has preferred an appeal with the relevant
authority. In respect of the provisions of AS 29, the disclosures required have not been

provided in accordance with paragraph 72 of AS 29.

¢y

%,
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

The following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan as required under AS 15-

Employee Benefits.
= Particulars As at As at
# March 31,2015 March 31,2014
Change in projected benefit obligations
Obligations at the beginning of the year 365 324
Service cost 81 74
Interest cost 29 26
Benefits settled (55) (36)
Actuarial (gain)/ loss ) (23)
Obligations at end of the year 413 365
Change in plan assets
Plan assets at the beginning of the year, at fair
value 363 313
Expected return on plan assets 29 26
Actuarial gain/ (loss) 5 B
Contributions 53 60
Benefits settled (55) (36)
Plan assets at the end of the year, at fair
value 395 363

Reconciliation of the present value of the obligation and the fair value of the plan

assets
Particulars As at March 31,
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 395 363 P13 275 257
Present value of defined obligations at the end of
the year (413) (365) (324) (276) (265)
Asset/ (liability) recognised in the balance
sheet (18) (2) [11) (1) (8)
1l
’?j'- 'c‘:“-\ -
é =2
[ .
[ ¥ [ gANGALORE
0l ss00M
o ~
)F;I»é.{““lr-‘:l g )
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Mindtree Limited
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended March 31,
2015 2014
Gratuity cost
Service cost 81 74
Interest cost 29 26
Expected return on plan assets (29) (26)
Actuarial (gain)/loss (12) (23)
Net gratuity cost 69 51
Actual return on plan assets 29 26
Assumptions
Interest rate 7.80% 8.80%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 8.75% 8.00%
Salary increase 6.00% 6.00%
Attrition rate 14.23% 13.00%
Retirement age 60 60

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valualion, takes into

account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such

demand factors in the employment market.

The disclosure of provisions movement as required under the provisions

follows:-

Provision for post contract support services

as supply and

of AS 29 is as

Particulars For the year ended March 31,
2015 2014

Balance at the beginning of the year 4 3
Provisions made during the year 2 !
Utilisations during the year N -
Released during the year m N
5 4

Provision at the end of the year

[ it { anGALORE
'Q\ 56007}

F
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Mindtree Limited
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Provision for discount

Particulars For the year ended March 31,
2015 2014

Balance at the beginning of the year 210 145
Provisions made during the year 433 290
Utilisations during the year (324) (154)
Released during the year ] (1)
Provision at the end of the year 367 270
Current 347 231
Non-current " 39

Provision for foreseeable losses on contracts

Particulars For the year ended March 31,
2015 2014

Balance at the beginning of the year 3 =
Provisions made during the year . 3
Released during the year (0 -
- 3

Provision at the end of the year

The current provisions are expected to be utilized over a period of one year and the non-
current provisions are expected to be utilized over a period of two to three jycars.

A |

&
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupces in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated).

3.4.2 Non-current investments

Particulars As at
March 31, 201§

May

As at
ch 31, 2014

Investment in mutual funds (quoted) -
Trade investments (unquoted)
- Investment in equity instruments 16
- Investment in preference shares 7
- Investment in Limited Liability Company 1,091
Less: Provision for diminution in value of
investments (1)

168

15
7

(1)

Total 1,113

189

Aggregate amount of quoted investments -
Aggregate market value of quoted investments -
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 1,114

Details of investment in mutual funds are as given below:

168
170
22

Partlculars As at Murch 31, 2015

No of units Amount No of uniis

As at

March 31, 2014
Amount

Tata Mutual Fund - - 4,000,000
Reliance Mutual Fund . - 2,850,000
UITT Mutual Fund - - 10,000,000

a0
28
100

Total - -

168

Details of investment in equity instruments are as given below:

Particulars As at
March 31, 2015

v

As at
arch 31, 2014

2,400 (previous year: 2,400) equity shares in Career 1
Community.com Limited

12,640 (previous year: 12,640) cquity shares in -
Worldcast Technologies Private Limited

950,000 (previous year: Nil) equity shares of 1
Re.1 each in NuvePro Technologies Private Limited

Tnvestment in wholly owned subsidiary - Mindtree 14
Software {Shanghai) Co., Ltd (‘MSSCL’)

1

Total 16

15

Details of investment in preference shares are as given below:

Particulars As at
March 31, 2015

As at
arch 31, 2014

643,790 (previous year: 643,790) Series A 7
Convertible Preferred Stock at US$ 0.0001 each

fully paid at premium of US $ 0.2557 each in 30

Second Software Inc

7

Total 7

27




Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Details of investment in Limited Liability Company is as given below:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2015 Narch 31,2014

Investment in wholly owned subsidiary - 1,091 -

Discoverture Solutions L.L.C.

Total 1,091 -

The Company has acquired 100% equity interest in Discoverture S¢lutions L.L.C.
(Discoverture), a US based IT solution provider to the insurance industry, for a
consideration of Rs 1,091. The consideration includes future payments which are based
on achievement of certain specific milestones which have currently be¢n provided for
based on best estimate of the Company. The transfer of membership interests and control
of Discoverture is effective February 13, 2015 and consequently, Discoverture has
become a 100% subsidiary of the Company effective that date.

3.4.3 Taxes

Particulars For the year ended March 31,
2015 2014

Tax expense

Current tax 1,581 1,317

Deferred tax (47) (42)

Total 1,534 1,275

The Company has units at Bangalore, Hyderabad, Chennai and Bhubaneshwar registered
as Special Economic Zone (SEZ) units which are entitled to a tax holiday under Section
10AA of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

The Company also has STPI units at Bangalore and Pune which are registered as a 100
percent Export Oriented Unit, which were earlier entitled to a tax |holiday under

Section 10B and Section 10A of the Income Tax Act, 1961. g
-2

’ ._:,//
 { BANGALORE

560 071

5
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Mindtree Limited
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.4.4

345

Deferred tax assets (net):

Deferred tax assets included in the balance sheet comprises the following:

Particulars As at A,s at
March 31,2015  Mirch 31,2014
Excess of depreciation as per 205 13
books over depreciation allowed
under Income Tax Act, 1961
Provision for doubtful debts 16 31
Provision for  compensated 117 100
absence
Provision for volume discount 39 29
Others 72 29
Total deferred tax assets 449 402
Long-term loans and advances
Particulars As at As at

March 31,2015

=z

Tarch 31,2014

(Unsecured considered good)

Capital advances 107 136
Security deposits* 546 512
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value - 110
to be received*

Total 653 758
*Refer note 3.15 for related party balances.

Other non-current assets

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2015

>

arch 31, 2014

(Unsecured considered good)

Advance tax and tax deducted at source, net of 834 853
provision for taxes

MAT credit entitlement 110 160
Other non-current assets 59 26
Total 1,003 1,039

=2
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.5 Current assets

3.5.1 Current investments

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Investment in mutual funds (quoted) 4,643 4,760
Tenn deposits 700 400
Total 5,343 5,160
Aggregate amount of quoted investments 4,643 4,760
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 4,790 4912
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 700 400

Details of investment in mutual funds are as given below:

Particulars As at March 31, 2015 As at March 31,2014
No of units A t No aof unjis Amount
ICICT Prudential Mutual Fund 28,722,324 472 36,627,6f7 366
IDFC Mutual Fund 37,530,726 433 36,124,257 365
UTI Mutuat Fund 13,456,138 158 27,011,610 193
HSBC Mutual Fund - - 79,904 80
Franklin Templeton Mutwal Fund 11,695,643 290 26,91 ﬁ.JEI 449
DSP Blackrock Mutual Fund 14,790,537 351 41,938 435 419
Birla Sun Lite Mutual Fund 20,007,295 454 44,008,900 440
Reliance Mutual Fund 23,725,772 428 34,640,082 367
Tata Mutual Fund 36,229,022 422 32,316,197 306
DWS Mutual Fund 4,483,697 45 15,626,178 156
SBI Mutual Fund 13,787,278 358 25,554,712 315
HDFC Mutual Fund 27,872,023 424 51,091,613 513
Axis Mutual Fund 100,840 104 103,111 103
Bank of India AXA Mutual Fund 10,000,000 100 - -
Kotak Mutual Fund 5,681,936 58 5,3:’}5.%'2 54
JP Morgen India Mutual Fund 16,989,901 189 20,253,910 203
Sundaram Mutual Fund - - 10,462,576 106
Prinebridge Mutual Fund - - 20641 30
L & T Mutual Fund 98,576 100 140,743 142
IDBI Mutual Fund 254,281 257 152,373 153
Total 4,643 4,760
Details of investments in term deposit are as given below:
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2015 March 31,2014
HDFC Limited 700 400
Total 700 400
a & C oT-;?
1]
/o
f * [ G ANGALORE
1o

560 071
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupces in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwisc stated)

3.5.2 Trade receivables
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2015 Malrch 31, 2014

(Unsecured)
Debts overdue for a period exceeding six months

- considered good 62 95

- considered doubtful 72 131
Other debts

- considered good 6,736 5,909

- considered doubtful 9 5
Less: Provision for doubtful debts (81) (136)
Total 6,798 6,004

3.5.3 Cash and bank balances

Particulars As at As at
Marvch 31, 2015 Mdrch 31,2014

Balances with banks in current and deposit 3,664 LI

accounts™ *

Cash on hand " ®

Other bank balances** 5 4

Total 3,669 1,178

AThe deposits maintained by the Company with banks comprises time deposits, which can be
withdrawn by the Company at any point without prior notice or penalty on the principal.

* Balances with banks include the following:
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 Mitreh 31, 2014

Balance with banks held as margin money towards
guaraniees - |

*+QOther bank balances represent balances in respect of unpaid dividends and :1;’:: considered

restricted in nature, 2'

\“-’J
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.54

3.5.5

3.6

Short-term loans and advances

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2015 March 31,2014
(Unsecured considered good)
Advances recoverable in cash or #i kind or for value 856 627
to be received*
Less: Provision for doubtful advances (20) (15)
Total 836 612

*Refer note 3.15 for related party balances. This also includes amounfs pertaining to

housing deposits, vehicles, medical emergencies and salary advances giv

to the extent of Rs 194 as at March 31, 2015.

Other current assets

Tl to employees

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Unbilled revenue 981 1,014
MAT credit entitlement 36 -
Other current assets* 600 712
Total 1,617 1,726

*Includes derivative asset of Rs 24 (As at March 31, 2014: Rs 93).

Other income

Particulars For the year ended March 31,
2015 2014
Interest income 140 66
Dividend income 154 150
Net gain on sale of investments 286 130
Foreign exchange gain/ (loss) 177 118
Other non-operating income 74 30
Total 831 494

Sy
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.7 Expenses

Employee benefits expense For the year ended March 31,
2015 2014
Salaries and wages 18,680 16,189
Contribution to provident and other funds 1,623 ! 1,404
Expense on employee stock based 168 79
compensation*
Staff welfare expenses 175 148
Total 20,646 17,820

Finance costs

For the year

ended March 31,

2015 2014

Interest expense 1 4
Total 1 4
Other expenses For the year|ended March 31,
2015 2014

Travel expenses 1,732 1,466
Communication expenses 436 370
Sub-contractor charges 2,107 1,406
Computer consumables 441 325
Legal and professional charges 406 383
Power and fuel 275 255
Rent (Refer note 3.16) 625 537
Repairs to buildings 51 42
Repairs to machinery 35 28
Insurance 49 39
Rates and taxes 93 74
Other expenses 1,514 1,465
Total 7,764 6,390

*Refer note 3.1.1 (f)

{ * BANGM?:‘E
ol ss00
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2015
(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.8

Contingent liabilities and commitments

a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital gecount and not

b)

c)

d)

" 2008-09 wherein demand of Rs 198, Rs 49, Rs 61, Rs 28, Rs 58, Rs

provided for as at March 31, 2015 is Rs 508 (March 31, 2014: Rs 854)

wherein demand of Rs 24 has been raised against the Company on ac

:ount of certain

The Company has received an income tax assessment for the ﬁnancijj year 2008-09

disaliowances, adjustments made by the income tax department. A si
of this amount arises from the manner of adjustment of brought fo

ificant portion
rward losses in

arriving at the taxable profits of the Company and disallowance of fjortion of profit

eamed outside India from the STP and SEZ units.

Management believes that the position taken by it on the matter is ten

able and hence,

no adjustment has been made to the financial statements. The Company has filed an

appeal against the demands received.

The Company has received a favourable order from the Commissioner of Income tax

(Appeals) for majority of grounds and considering the order passed, t
any demand on the Company. On the other grounds which are not

here will not be
favourable, the

Company has filed an appeal before the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal (‘ITAT’).

The Company has received income tax assessments for financial yedrs 2006-07 and
2007-08 for the erstwhile subsidiary Mindtree Technologies Private Liimited (MTPL)

with demands amounting to Rs 11 and Rs 10 on account of certain

' disallowances/

adjustments made by income tax department. Management believes that the position
taken by it on the matter is tenable and hence, no adjustment has bgen made to the
financial statements. The Company has filed an appeal against the demand received.
The Company has not deposited the amount of demand with the department.

The Company has received income tax assessments under Section
Income-tax Act 1961 pertaining to erstwhile subsidiary Aztecsoft

143(3) of the
Limited for the

financial years 2001-02, 2002-03, 2003-04, 2004-05, 2005-06, 2006-07, 2007-08 and

19, Rs 214 and

Rs 63 respectively has been raised against the Company. These demands have arisen

mainly on account of transfer pricing adjustments made in the order

The Company

has not accepted these orders and has been advised by its legal courjsel/ advisors to

prefer appeals before appellate authorities and accordingly the Con
appeals before the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) and ITAT
has deposited Rs 15 with the department against these demands. The
adjusted pending refunds amounting to Rs 450 against these demands.

ipany has filed
. The Company
department has
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

The Company received a favourable order from the Commissioner bf Income Tax
(Appeals) for the year 2001-02 where in the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals)
accepted the Company’s contentions and quashed the demand raised. The Income tax
department appealed against the above mentioned order with ITAT. ITAT, in an
earlier year passed an order setting aside both the orders of the Commissioner of
Income Tax (Appeals) as well as the Assessing Officer and remanded the matter back
to the Assessing Officer for re-assessment. The Company preferred an appeal with the
Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka against the order of the ITAT. The Hon’ble High
Court of Karnataka has dismissed the appeal filed against the order of ITAT and
upheld the order passed by the ITAT and accordingly the case is pending before
Assessing Officer for re-assessment. The Assistant Commissioner of [ncome tax has
completed the reassessment & has issued a draft assessment order |with a revised
demand amounting to Rs 198 due to transfer pricing adjustments. Management
believes that the position taken by it on the matter is tenable and hence, no adjustment
has been made to the financial statements. The Company will file %m appeal with
Dispute Resolution Panel.

During the year, the Company has received the order from the Commissioner of
Income Tax (Appeals) for the year 2004-05 and on the unfavorable grounds, the
Company has a filed an appeal with ITAT, Bangalore.

The Company has appealed against the demands received for financial years 2002-03,
2003-04, 2004-05, 2005-06, 2006-07, 2007-08 and 2008-09. Based on favourable
order received by the Company for the financial year 2001-02 from the
Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) and an evaluation of |the facts and
circumstances, no provision has been made against the above orders (in the financial
statements,

e) The Company reccived an assessment order for financial year 2006-07 for the
erstwhile subsidiary Mindtree Wireless Private Limited from | the Assistant
Commissioner of Income-tax (‘ACIT’) with a demand amounting to Rs 39 on account
of certain other disallowances/ transfer pricing adjustments made by income tax
department. Management believes that the position taken by it on the matter is tenable
and hence, no adjustment has been made to the financial statements| The Company
has filed an appeal with Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) against the demand
received.

The Company has received the order from the Commissioner of Income Tax
(Appeals) wherein the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) accepted the grounds
in part and in respect of unfavorable grounds, the Company has filed dn appeal before
Income Tax Appellate Tribunal. The final order giving effect by| the Assessing
Officer is completed and the demand is reduced to Rs 33, The| Company has
deposited Rs 5 with the department against this demand.

f) The Company has received a final assessment order for financial year 2009-10 from
the Deputy Commissioner of Income Tax with a demand amounting fo Rs 61 due to
non-adjustment of brought forward losses and transfer pricing adjustments.
Management believes that the position taken by it on the matter is tenable and hence,
no adjustment has been made to the financial statements. The Company has filed an
appeal with Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals). %_’
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.9

3.10

3.un

3.12

Quantitative details

The Company is engaged in software development services. Such services|are not capable
of being expressed in any generic unit and hence, it is not possible to give [he quantitative
details required under paragraphs S(viii)(c) of general instructions for preparation of the

statement of profit and loss as per Schedule TII to the Companies Act, 2013,

Value of imports on CIF basis

Particulars For the year en¢led March 31,

2015 2014
Capital goods 339 292
Total 339 292

Expenditure in foreign currency

Particulars For the year engled March 31,

2015 2014
Branch office expenses 15,822 11,203
Travel expenses 244 : 251
Professional charges 52 [ 28
Others 363 288
Total 16,481 11,770

Earnings in foreign currency

Particulars For the year engled March 31,

2015 2014
Income from software development 34,452 29,484
Other income 3l 5
Total 34,483 29,489

&
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.13  During the year ended March 31, 2015, the Company has remitted in foreign currency

dividend of Rs 29 (for the year ended March 31, 2014: Rs 21)

Particulars O e 31,2015 o e 31, 2014
Number of shares held
Final dividend 2012-13 - 1,124,402
Second interim dividend 2012-13 - 1,125,384
First interim dividend 2013-14 - 1,098,098
Second interim dividend 2013-14 B 1,121,908
Third interim dividend 2013-14 1,119,693 -
Final and special dividend 2013-14 2,150,288 -
First interim dividend 2014-15 1,870,871 '- .
Second interim dividend 2014-15 1,878,172 -
Number of shareholders
Final dividend 2012-13 - 79
Second interim dividend 2012-13 - 78
First interim dividend 2013-14 - 50
Second interim dividend 2013-14 - 51
Third interim dividend 2013-14 53 -
Final and special dividend 2013-14 51 -
First interim dividend 2014-15 52 -
Second interim dividend 2014-15 56 B
Amount Remitted (in Rs)
Final dividend 2012-13 - 5 million
Second interim dividend 2012-13 - 5 million
First interim dividend 2013-14 - 6 million
Second interim dividend 2013-14 - 5 million
Third interim dividend 2013-14 6 million -
Final and special dividend 2013-14 10 million -
First interim dividend 2014-15 6 million -
Second interim dividend 2014-15 7 million -
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.14

Segmental reporting

The Company is structured into five verticals — RCM, BFSI, HTMS,
During the year, the Company has classified results of Media Services
results were previously classified with TH segment. Accordingly, as 1
accounting standards, comparatives have been restated and presented i

TH and Others.

in HTMS. The
equired by the

in line with the

current segments. The Company considers business segment as the primary segment and

geographical segment based on the location of customers as the secondary

segment,

The accounting principles consistently used in the preparation of the financial statements
are also consistently applied to record income and expenditure in individugl segments.

Income and direct expenses in relation to segments are categorised based ¢
individually identifiable to that segment, while the remainder of costs are
an appropriate basis, Certain expenses are not specifically allocablg
segments as the underlying services are used interchangeably. The Con
believes that it is not practical to provide segment disclosures relating td
and accordingly such expenses are separately disclosed as unallocab
charged against total income.

/& CS*
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n items that are
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

|
The assets of the Company are used interchangeably between segments, and the
management believes that it is currently not practical to provide segment disclosures
relating to total assets and liabilities since a meaningful segregation is not rlmssible.

Business segments
|
Statement of profit and loss For the year ended March 31,
2015 2014
Segment revenue
RCM 7,720 6,528
BFSI 8,233 6,986
HTMS 11,641 | 9,806
TH 5,843 4,735
Others 2,037 2,261
Total 35474 | 30,316
Segment operating income '
RCM 1,503 1,594
BFSI 912 450
HTMS 2,738 2,477
TH 1,136 697
Others 793 | 888
Total 7,082 | 6,106
Unallocable expenses (1,035) | (809)
Profit for the year before interest, other 6,047 5297
income and tax |
Interest expense (1) ()]
Other income 831 | 494
Net profit before taxes 6,877 5,787
Income taxes (1,534) (1,275)
Net profit after taxes 5,343 4,512
Geographical segments
Revenues For the year ended March 31,
2015 r 2014
America : 21,921 17,558
Europe 8,964 | 8,540
India 1,350 1,449
Rest of World 3,239 | 2,769
Total 35,474 | 30,316

=
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.15

Related party transactions

Name of related party

Nature of relationship

Mindtree Software
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd

(*‘MSSCL’), Republic of

Subsidiary

China

Discoverture Solutions L.L.C, Subsidiary with effect from February 13, 2015,
gliccévmure Eolutions Subsidiary with effect from February 13, 2015.
e o Scutions Subsidiary with effect from February 13, 2015,

Europe Limited

Mindtree Foundation

Entity with common key managerial pers(

=

Janaagraha Centre for

Citizenship & Democracy

Entity with common key managerial pers(

mn

Coffee Day Global Limited

Tanglin Developments
Limited (*TDL")

through various entities and its promotg
equity stake in Mindtree, and the group }
the Mindtree Board.

These entities are part of Coffee Day Group which

rs holds 19.76%
as a nominee on

Transactions with the above related parties during the year were:

Name of related Nature of transaction For the year ended
party March 31,
2015 2014

Mindtree Software Software services received 19 -
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd
Discoverture Software services rendered 22 -
Solutions L.L.C.
Mindtree Donation paid 13 -
Foundation
Janaagraha Centre Software services rendered | -
for Citizenship &
Democracy

Donation paid 4 3
Coffee Day Global  Procurement of supplies 17 17
Limited q

40



Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2015
(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)
Tanglin Leasing office buildings and land 321 399
Developments
Limited
Advances/ deposits paid
- towards electricity deposit/
charges 9 3
- towards lease rentals - 486
Advance/ deposits received back:
- towards electricity deposit/
charges 51 i 48
- towards lease rentals 156 | 327
Interest on advance towards
electricity charges/ deposit
- amount recovered -
- amount accrued 22
Balances payable to related parties are as follows:
Name of related party As at As at
March 31, 2015 March 31,2014
Mindtree Software (Shanghai) Co., Ltd 6 -
Balarnces receivable from related parties are as follows:
Name of related Nature of As at As at
party transactions March 31,2015 WNarch 31,2014
Discoverture Trade receivables 22 -
Solutions L.L.C.
Tanglin Rental Advance
D.e v;lopments - Current 94 126
Limited
- Non-current - 94
Advance towards
electricity charges
- Current 16 48
- Non-current - 16
Security deposit 375 399
(including
electricity deposit)
returnable on gr
termination of lease
/G
{ % [ gAnGALORE
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2015
(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)
Interest accrued on - 8
advance towards
electricity charges
Key Managerial Personnel: w
Subroto Bagchi Executive Chairman
Krishnakumar Natarajan CEO and Managing Director
S. Janakiraman’ President, Chief Technology Officer and Executive
Director
N.S. Parthasarathy President, Chief Operating Officer and Executive
Director
Rostow Ravanan®* Chief Financial Officer and Executive Ditector
Dr. Albert Hieronimus Independent Director and Non-Executive [Vice
Chairman
Apurva Purohit Independent Director
Prof. David B. Yoffie™ Independent Director
Manisha Girotra Independent Director
Prof. Pankaj Chandra Independent Director
Ramesh Ramanathan Independent Director
V.G Siddhartha Non-Executive Director
Rajesh Srichand Narang™™**  Vice President - Legal and Company Secietary

*S Janakiraman resigned with effect from October 20, 2014. |

**Rostow Ravanan has been designated as Head — Europe and has also ta(lrcn over certain

Key Accounts and Service Lines effective April 1, 2015 and Jagannath:
has been appointed as the Chief Financial Officer, effective April 1, 2015,
***Prof. David B, Yoffie resigned with effect from March 30, 2015.

n Chakravarthi

**+* Rajesh Srichand Narang resigned with effect from February 13, 2015,

The Board of Directors appointed Ms. Manisha Girotra as an Independent Director and

Mr. Rostow Ravanan as an Executive Director, effective May 20, 2014.

Remuneration to key managerial personnel during the year ended M
amounts to Rs 224 (for the year ended March 31, 2014: Rs 151). Diy
directors during the year ended March 31, 2015 amounts to Rs 173 (for
March 31, 2014 amounts to Rs 134).

The above remuneration excludes gratuity and compensated absences w
separately identified from the composite amount advised by the actuary.,

arch 31, 2015
idends paid to
the year ended

hich cannot be
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.16 Lease transactions
Lease rental expense under non-cancellable operating lease during the year ended March
31, 2015 amounted to Rs 361 (for the year ended March 31, 2014: Rs 266). Future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease are as belgw:
Particulars Asat As at
March 31,2015 March 31, 2014
Payable -- Not later than one year 390 267
Payable -- Later than one year and not later 541 473
than five years
Payable -- later than five years 106 | 4
Additionally, the Company leases office facilities and residential facilities under
cancellable operating leases. The rental expense under cancelable operatipg lease during
the year ended March 31, 2015 was Rs 264 (for the year ended March 31, 2014: Rs 271).
3.17 Earnings per equity share

Reconciliation of number of equity shares used in the computation of bz
eamnings per share is set out below:

sic and diluted

Particulars For the year ended Far the year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014*

Basic EPS Diluted EPS Basic EFS Diluted EPS

Weighted average number of 83,619,436 83,619,436 83,177,516 83,177,516

equity shares outstanding

during the year

Weighted average number of - 379,280 - 539,177

equity shares resulting from

assumed exercise of

employee stock options

Weighted average number of 83,619,436 83,998,716 83,177,516 83,716,693

equity shares for calculation
of carnings per share

*Tn accordance with Accounting Standard 20 on ‘Earnings Per Share’, b:
earnings per share is adjusted for 1:1 bonus issue for previous year present

prr——
% Co, ™

o) £
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.18

3.19

3.20

Auditor’s remuneration

Particulars For the year endpd March 31,

2015 2014
Statutory audit 16 15
Certification 2 2
Total 18 17

The Company has a development center at Gainesville, Florida, US. The
has offered various incentives targeted to the needs of the development ce|
and the extent of the government grant is given below:

state of Florida
hter. The nature

Nature of expenses

For the year ¢nded March 31,

2015 2014
Reimbursement of rent 3 3
Grant towards workforce training 24 28
Total 24 | 31

The Company had availed a non-monetary grant of USD 950,000 fo

renovation of

project facility. This grant is subject to fulfillment of certain conditions guch as creation

of minimum employment with specified average salary and capital iny
development center at Gainesville, Florida, US.

Dues to micro, small and medium enterprises

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an offig
dated August 26, 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small En
mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs

estment at the

e memorandum
erprises should
Memorandum

Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum in accordance wiith the ‘Micro,

Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006’ (‘the Act’). A
disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as at Mar,

ccordingly, the
ch 31, 2015 has

been made in the financial statements based on information received and available with

the Company. Further in view of the Management, the impact of interest,
be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Act is not expected

f any, that may
to be material.

The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier a5 at the balance
sheet date.
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2015

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2015

Wi

rch 31,2014

The principal amount and the interest
due thereod*(to be shown separately)
remaining unpaid to any supplier as at
the end of accounting year; Nil
The amount of interest paid by the
buyer under the Act along with the
amounts of the payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day
during each accounting year; Nil
the amount of interest due and payable
for the year (where the principal has
been paid but interest under the Act
not paid); Nil
The amount of interest accrued and
remaining unpaid at the end of
accounting year; and Nil
The amount of further interest due and

payable even in the succeeding year,

until such date when the interest dues

as above are actually paid to the small

enterprise, for the purpose of

disallowance as a  deductible

expenditure under section 23. Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

3.21
year ended March 31, 2015 is Rs 40.

BANGALORE
560 071

Total of expenditure incurred on Corporate Social Responsibility activ

ties during the
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued) !
For the year ended March 31, 2015 |

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated) |

]

|

322 The financial statements are presented in Rs in million. Those items which are required to

be disclosed and which are not presented in the financial statement due to frounding off to
the nearest Rs in million are given as follows:

Balance Sheet items Amount in Rs

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2015 March 31,2014

Share application money pending - 27,235
allotment ’

Cash on hand 21,148 25,277

12,640 (previous year: 12,640) equity 126,400 126,400

shares in Worldcast Technologies
Private Limited

3.23  As of the balance sheet date, the Company’s net foreign currency exposure that is not ;
hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise is Rs 6,319 (March 31, 2014: Rs 5,683). |

3.24  Corresponding figures for the previous year presented have been rcgirwupcd, where
necessary, to conform to the current year's classification.

As per our report of even date attached For M ilrtltrm: Limited
ForBSR & Co. LLP '
Chartered Accountants ‘
Firm Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

Supreet Sachdev Subroto Bﬁ'ﬁiﬁ//’

Partner Chairman CEO & Managing Director

Membership No. : 205385

Jagannathan
Chakravarthi |
Chief Financial Officer I

Place: Bangalore Place: Bangalore i'
Date: April 16, 2015 Date: April 16, 2015 .

A |
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Fax: + 91 {80) 66276013

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF MINDTREE LIMITED

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of MINDTREE
LIMITED (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016, the
Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134 (5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles

generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133
of the Act, as applicable.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our
audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules made thereunder and the Order under section 143 (11) of the Act.

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing specified under Section 143 (10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

\\ For Mindtree Limited -
N

S . S
Y )\~
Company Secretary



An audit involves performing procedures (o obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment. including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statemenis, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting
policics used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
marner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2016, and its
profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account,

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, as applicable.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2016 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified

as on March 31, 2016 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of
the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting.

L.
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g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, m our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred,
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 008072S)

S

V. Balaji
BENGALURU, April 18, 2016 Partner
VB/UB/VMS/2016 (Membership No. 203685)

S
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of MINDTREE
LIMITED (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2016 in conjunction with our audil of the
standalone financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of [ndia. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under Section 143 (10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. O
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of wternal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting,

"\
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2016, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 008072S)

VL

V. Balaji
BENGALURU, April 18, 2016 Partner ‘
VB/UB/VMS/2016 (Membership No. 203685)
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

M

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(a)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b)  The Company has a program of verification of fixed assets to cover all the items
in a phased manner over a period of 3 years which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to
the program, certain fixed assets were physically verified by the Management
duting the year, According to the information and explanations given to us, no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

() According to the information and explanations given to us and the records
examined by us and based on the examination of the registered conveyance deed/
approved building plan provided to us, we report that, the title deeds, comprising
all the immovable properties of buildings which are freehold as at the balance
sheet date, are held in the name of the Company. In respect of immovable
properties of land that have been taken on lease and disclosed as fixed asset in
the financial statements, the lease agreements are in the name of the Company,
where the Company is the lessee in the agreement.

The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause (i1) of the
Order is not applicable.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Act.

Tn our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 186 of the Act in respect of
investments made. According to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not granted any loan or provided any guarantees and securities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits during the year and does not have any unclaimed deposits.

Having regard to the nature of the Company’s business/ activities, reporting under
clause (vi) of the Order with regard to cost records is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company has been regular in deposiling undisputed statutory dues, including
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service
Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, cess and other material
statutory dues applicable to it to the appropriate authorities.
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(b)

(©)

(viii) In our

There werc no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund.

Employees® State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax. Service Tax, Customs Duty,
Fxcise Duty, Value Added Tax. cess and other material statutory dues in arrears

as at Mareh 31, 2016 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

Details of dues of Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise
Duty and Value Added Tax which have not been deposited as on March 31,2016
on account of disputes are given below:

Name of
Statute

{ncome-
tax Act,
1961

The
Finance

Act, 1994

The
Karnataka

Sales Tax
Act, 1957

“The

Central
Sales Tax
Act, 1956

Natuare
of Dues

Income-
tax

Service
lax

Value
added
tax

Sales tax

Income

Customs,

‘Commissioner

Forum where
Dispute is
pending

Commissioner of |
Income Taxes
{Appeals)

Tax
Appellate Tribunal
Excise
and Service Tax
Appellate Tribunal
Assistant
Commissioner of
Commercial Taxes
(Recovery)
Assistant

Commissioner of

Commercial Taxes |

(Recovery)

(Appeals)

Period to
which the
amount
relates
AY 2002-03
to 2004-05
AY 2007-08
and 2008-09
AY 2010-11
AY 2013-14

“AY 2005-06

to 2009-10

July 2003 to
May 2008

| April 2008 to

March 2009

| Upto July

2004

12011-12

" Amount l Amount |

| Involved
(Rs. in
millions)

21.26

61.47
15.30

0.79

0.46

!

324.75 |

538.10 |

14170 | 131.00

4.80 |

Unpaid
(Rs. in
millions)

202.29

3.14

61.47 |
15.30
163.00

4.80

029 |

0.46

opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans to bank and government. There are
no borrowings from financial institutions and the Company has not issued any
debentures.

(ix)

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public

offer (including debt instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under clause (ix)

of the Order is not applicable,



(x)

(xi)

(xif)

(xii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given
to us. no fraud by the Company and no fraud on the Company by its officers or
employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has paid / provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the
Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the
Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act for all transactions with
the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.

During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting under
clause (xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during
the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors
or directors of its subsidiaries or petsons connected with them and hence provisions of
Section 192 of the Act are not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1 of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 0080725)

N L

V. Balaji

BENGALURU, April 18, 2016 Partner
VB/UB/VMS/2016 (Membership No. 203685)



Mindtree Limited
Balance shcet

Rs in million

Note As at As at
March 31, 2016 Maurch 31,2015
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shursholters’ fusils
Share capital 311 1,678 837
Reserves and surplus 312 22,486 19371
24,164 20,108
Share application money pending all 300 ()
Nop-current Habilities
Long-term borrowings 321 18 23
Other long-term liabilities 322 1,072 334
1,090 357
Current labilitles
Short-term borcowings 331 400
Trade payables
Payable to micio und simall enterprises 320 4 .
Others 1,242 1,188
Other current liabililies 332 372 2,776
Short-term provisions 3aa 2,153 2,028
71511 5,992
32,765 26,461
ASSETS '
Non-current asseta
Fixed assels
Tangible assots 341 4,304 4,507
Intangible assets 4l 92 119
Capital work-in-progress 232 354
WNeon-gurrent investments 342 9,052 1,113
Deferred tax nsscts (net) 343 593 449
Long-term loans and advences 344 1,842 1,639
Other non-cusrent assets 345 276 17
16,391 8,108
Current assets
Current invesiments 3,51 2,101 5,343
Trade receivables 352 8,825 6,798
Cash and bank balances 353 1,924 3,669
Short-term loans and advances 354 1,476 1,448
Other current assets 3,5.5 2,048 1,005
163 18263
26,461
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts 283
The notes refeired to above form an integral part of the financisl stateinenls
As per-our report of even date attached
For Deloitte Hnskins & Sells For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Mindtree Limited

Chariered Accountanis
Firm Registration Number: 0080728

\° A» N A g e (‘ . s

V. Balaji N. Krishnakumar Rostow Ravanan

Pariner Chairman CEO & Manaping Director
Membership Number: 203685 -

&= Jagannathan Chakeavarthi Vedavalli Sridharan
Chiof Financial Officer Company Secrelary

Place: Bengalur
Date : April 18,2016

Place: Bengaluru
Date : April 18,2016
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Mindtree Limited
Statement of profit and loss

Particulars Note

Revenue from operations
Other income 36
Totul revenues

Expenses:

Employee benefits expense 37
Financs costs 37
Depreciation and amortisation expense 34.1
Other expenses 3%
Total expenses

Profit before tax

Tax expense:
Current tax
Deferred tax
Profit for the year

343

Earnings per equity share

Equity shares of par value Rs 10/~ each
Basic

Diluted

Weighted average number of equity shares used in computing carnings per share
Basic

Diluted

Significant accounting policics and notes Lo the accounts 2&3

The notes referied to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 0080728

\

V. Balaji
Partner
Membership Number: 203685

. .
7

1/ CHARTERED \%n
Ui\ ACCOUNTANTS |~

Place: Bengaluru
Date : April 18,2016

Rs in million, except share and per share data
For the year ended

March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
43,565 35,474
939 831
44,504 36,308
25,766 20,608
3 I
1,309 1,017
9,691 1802
36,769 20,428
7,138 6,877
1,830 1,581
__(144). 47)
6,049 5,343
36.08 31.95
35,99 31.83
167,649,773 167,238,371
168,091,689 167,893,221

For and on behanif of the Board of Directors of Mindtree Limited

N. Krishnakumar

b

—=J '.|1.,'.'.m nailian Chakravarthi
) Chief Financial Officer

Place: Bengaluru
Date : April 18,2016

q{ T
Rostow Ravanan
CEO §& Mapoging Director

Vedavalli Sridharan
Company Sceretary
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Mindtree Limited
Cash flow statement

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax

Adjustments for :
Deprecintion and amortisation expense
Exp on employee stock based
Finance costs
Interest/ dividend income
Profit on sale of fixed ascets

Proflt on sale of investments
Exchange difference on derivatives
Effect of exchange differences on Lranslation of foreign
currency cash and cash equivalents

Operating profit before working capital changes
Changes in trode receivables
Changes in loans and advances and other assels
Changes in liabilities and provisions

Net cash provided by operating aclivities before taxes
Income taxes paid

Net cash provided by operating actlvities

Cash flow from Investing actlvities

Purchase of fixed nasets

Proceeda from sale of fixed assets

Investment in subsidiaries

Interest/ dividend received from investmients

Purchase of investments

Sale/ maturitios of investments

Nat cash used In Investing activities

Cash flow from finencing activities

Issuc of share capital (net of issue expenses paid)

Finance costs

Repayment of borrowings

Proceeds from short-term loans

Dividends paid (including distibution tax)

Net cash used In financing activitles

Effect of exchange differences on translation of forcign

currency cash and cash equivalents

Net (decreage)/ Increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash cquivalents at the beginning of the year

Cush and cush equivalents at the end of the year (Refer nole 3.5.3)

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date sttached
For Deloltte Haskins & Sclls
Chartered Accountanis

Firm Registration Number: 008072S

VLSS N AR b

V. Balnji
Partner
Membership Number: 203685

CHARTERED

'tg ACCOUNTANTS )=

Ploce: Bengaluru
Date : April 18, 2016

Rs In million
For the year ended Murch 31,

2016 2015
1,300 1017
90 168
3 1
(400) (294)
(30) (6)
a31) (236)
@n @n
) 9
B 7,465
(2,027) (794)
{1,008) 33)
657 879
5,980 7,517
{1,92%) (1,540)
s sem
(1,570) (1,995)
269 8
(6,659) (600)
479 219
(10,062) (9.982)
13,385 10,252
(4,158) (2,098)
24 67
(3) ()]
(5) “4)
400
@2,151) {1,438)
(1,735) mm.«gfjﬂ:
97 ©@
(1,745) 2,494
3,669 1,175
1,94 3,669

N. Krishnakumar

|, -’? o

- ,gﬁ’
- ON’ L4 5 -
s Jagaunathan Chalaavarthl

Chief Financial Officer

Date : April 18, 2016

For and on behialf of the Board of Directors of Mindiree Limited

Ai ~L£b- ¢ ,Ir‘ LA

Rostow Ravanan
CEQ & Managing Director

.y Rl
Vedavalll Sridharan
Company Secretary



Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

For the year ended March 31, 2016

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated).

1.

2.1

22

Background

Mindtree Limited (‘Mindtree’ or ‘the Company’) is an international Information
Technology consulting and implementation company that delivers business solutions
through global software development. The Company is structured into five verticals —
Retail, CPG and Manufacturing (RCM), Banking, Financial Services and Insurance
(BFSI), Technology, Media and Services (TMS), Travel and Hospitality (TH) and Others.
The Company offers services in the areas of agile, analytics and information management,
application development and maintenance, business process management, business
technology consulting, cloud, digital business’s, independent testing, infrastructure
management services, mobility, product engineering and SAP services.

The Company is head quartered in Bengaluru and has offices in India, United States of
America, United Kingdom, Japan, Singapore, Malaysia, Australia, Germany, Switzeriand,
Sweden, UAE, Netherlands, Canada, Belgium, France and Ireland.

Significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements are prepared and presented in accordance with Indian
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) under the historical cost convention
on the accrual basis except for certain financial insttuments which are measured at fair
values, GAAP, interalia comprises mandatory accounting standards as prescribed under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’), the provisions of the Act (to the extent

notified and applicable) and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (SEBI).

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted
accounting principles in India requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of income and expenses of the period, assets and
linbilities and disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as of the date of the financial
statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates, Any revision to accounting

estimates is recognised prospectively in future periods. —
z o
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2016

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

23

Fixed assets and depreciation

2.3.1

2.3.2

234

Fixed assets are carried at cost of acquisition (including directly attributable costs
such as freight, installation, etc.) or construction less accumulated depreciation.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of those fixed
assets, which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use, are capitalised.

Acquired intangible assets are capitalised at the acquisition price. Internally
generated intangible assets are recorded at cost that can be measured reliably
during the development phase and when it is probable that fulure economic
benefits that are attributable to the assets will flow to the Company.

Leases under which the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as finance leases. Such assets are capitalised at fair
value of the asset or present value of the minimum lease payments at the
inception of the lease, whichever is lower, Lease payments under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets, outstanding at each
balance sheet date are shown under capital advances. The cost of the fixed asset
not ready for its intended use on such date, is disclosed under capital work-in-
progress.

Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on the straight-line method over the
useful lives of assets estimated by the Company. Depreciation for assets
purchased/ sold during a period is proportionately charged. Intangible assets are
amortised over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis, commencing from the date the asset is available to the Company for its use.
The Company estimates the useful lives for fixed assets as follows:

Asset classification Useful life
Buildings 5-30 years
Computer systems 2-3 yeats
Computer software 2 years
Test equipment 3 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Electrical installations 3 years
Office equipment 4 years
Motor vehicles 4 years
Plant and machinery 4 years
Intellectual property 5 years

The Company believes that the useful lives as given above best represent the
useful lives of these assets based on internal assessment and supported by
technical advice where necessary which is different from the useful lives as
prescribed under Part C of Schedule IT of the Companies At 2013,

- Qb
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2016

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share datn, unless otherwise stated)

24

255

2.6

2.7

23.6 The cost of leasehold land is amortised over the period of the lease. Leasehold
improvements and assets acquired on finance lease are amortised over the lease
term or useful life, whichever is lower.

Investments

2.4.1 Non-current investments are carried at cost.less any other-than-temporary
diminution in value, determined on the specific identification basis.

2.42 Current investments are carried at the lower of cost and fair value, The
comparison of cost and fair value is carried out separately in respect of each
investment.

2.4.3  Profit or loss on sale of investments is determined as the difference between the
sale price and carrying value of investment, determined individually for each
investment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash-in-hand and balance in bank in current
accounts and deposit accounts that are highly liquid and are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash,

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals
of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue
generating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated,

Employee benefits

2.7.1 Gratuity is a defined benefit scheme and is accrued based on actuarial valuations
at the balance sheet date, carried out by an independent actuary. The Company
has an employees’ gratuity fund managed by ICICI Prudential Life Insurance
Company, SBI Life Insurance Company and Life Insurance Corporation of India.
Actuarial gains and losses are charged to the statement of profit and loss,

2.7.2 Compensated absences are a long-term employee benefit and is accrued based on
actuarial valuations at the balance sheet date, carried out by an independent
actuary, The Company accrues for the expected cost of short-term compensated
absences in the period in which the employee renders services.

2.7.3  Contributions payable to the social security plans, which are a defined
conttibution scheme, are charged to the statement of profit and loss in the period

in which the employee renders services. . .
: 7 o
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2016

{Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

2.8

2.9

Revenue recognition

2.8.1

2.8.2

283

2.84

The Company derives its revenues primarily from software services. Revenue
from software development on time-and-material basis is recognised as the
related services are rendered. Revenue from fixed price contracts is recognised
using the proportionate completion method, which is determined by relating the
actual project cost of work performed to date to the estimated total project cost
for each contract. Unbilled revenue represents cost and earnings in excess of
billings while unearned revenue represents the billing in excess of cost and
earnings. Provision for estimated losses, if any, on incomplete contracts are
recorded in the period in which such losses become probable based on the cutrent
contract estimates.

Maintenance revenue is recognised ratably over the period of the maintenance
contract.

Provision for discounts is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with
contractual terms of agreements with customers. Revenues are stated net of
volume discount.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

Interest income is recognised using the time proportion method, based on the
transactional interest rates.

Foreign exchange transactions

29.1

2.9.2

2.9.3

The Company is exposed to foreigh currency transactions including foreign
currency revenues, receivables and borrowings. With a view to minimize the
volatility arising from fluctuations in currency rates, the Company enters into
foreign exchange forward contracts and other derivative instruments.

Foreign exchange transactions are recorded using the exchange rates prevailing
on the dates of the respective transactions. Exchange differences arising on
foreign exchange transactions settled during the period are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss for the period.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at the
balance sheet date are translated at the closing exchange rates on that date; the
resultant exchange differences are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in
a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction.
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31,2016

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

2.10

2.11

2.9.4 In respect of integral operations, monetary assets and liabilities are translated at
the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the balance sheet. Non-monetary items
are translated at the historical rate. The items in the statement of profit and loss
are translated at the rates prevailing on the dates of the respective transactions.
The differences arising out of the translation are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

2.9.5 Forward exchange contracts and other similar instruments that arc not in respect
of forecasted transactions are accounted for using the guidance in Accounting
Standard (‘AS’) 11, ‘The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates’. For such
forward exchange contracts and other similar instruments covered by AS 11,
based on the naturc and purpose of the contract, cither the contracts are yecorded
based on the forward rate/ fair value at the reporting date, or based on the spot
exchange rate on the reporting date. For contracts recorded at the spot exchange
rates, the premium or discount at the inception is amortized as income or expense
over the life of the contract.

2.9.6 For forward exchange contracts and other derivatives that are not covered by
AS 11 and that relate to a firm commitment or highly probable forecasted
transactions, the Company has adopted Accounting Standard ('AS") 30, ‘Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Mcasurement’ to the extent that the adoption did
not conflict with existing accounting standards and other authoritative
pronouncements of the Company Law and other regulatory requirements. In
accordance with AS 30, such derivative financial instruments, which qualify for
cash flow hedge accounting and where the Company has met all the conditions of
cash flow hedge accounting, are fair valued at balance sheet date and the resultant
exchange loss/ gain is debited/ credited to the hedge reserve until the transaction
is completed. Other derivative instruments are recorded at fair value at the
reporting date and the resultant exchange loss/ gain is debited/ credited to
statement of profit and loss.

Warranties

Warranty costs (i.e. post contract support services) arc estimated by the management on the
basis of technical evaluation and past experience. Provision is made for estimated liability
in respect of warranty costs in the period of recognition of revenue.

Provision and contingent lahilities

The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past
event that probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there
is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an
outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in
respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or

disclosure is made, %L C -
- -

CHARTERED

ACCORJTANTS .‘-I)
2 3



Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2016

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

2,12

2.13

Provisions for onerous contracts, i.e. contracts where the expected unavoidable costs of
mecting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be
rcceived under it are recognised when it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle a present obligation as a result of
an obligating event, based on a reliable estimate of such obligation.

Taxation

The current income tax charge is determined in accordance with the relevant tax
regulations applicable to the Company. Deferred tax charge or credit are recognised for
the future tax consequences attributable to timing difference that result between the profit
offered for income taxes and the profit as per the financial statements. Deferred tax in
respect of timing difference which originate during the tax holiday period but reverse
after the tax holiday period is recognised in the period in which the timing difference
originate. For this purpose the timing differences which originate first are considered to
reverse first. The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax
liabilities or assets arc recognised using the tax rates that have been cnacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recogniscd only to
the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be realised in future; however,
when there is a brought forward loss or unabsorbed depreciation under taxation laws,
deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty supported by
convincing evidence of realisation of such assets. Deferred tax assets are reviewed as at
each balance sheet date and written down or written up to reflect the amount that is
reasonably/ virtually certain to be realised.

Minimum alternate tax (‘MAT?) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives rise to
future economic benefits in the form of tax credit against future income tax liability, is
recognised as an asset in the balance sheet if there is a convincing evidence that the
Company will pay normal tax afler the tax holiday period and the resultant assets can be
measured reliably. MAT credit entitlement can be carried forward and utilized for a
period of ten years from the period in which such credit is availed.

The Company offsets, on a year on year basis, the current tax assets and liabilities, where
it has a legally enforceable right and where it intends to settle such assets and liabilities
on a net basis.

Earnings per share

In determining earnings per share, the Company considers the net profit after tax and
includes the post-tax effect of any extra-ordinary item. The number of equity shares used
in computing basic earnings per share is the weighted average number of cquity shares
outstanding during the period. The number of equity shares used in computing diluted
earnings per share comprises weighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving basic earnings per share and also weighted average number of equity shares
which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for bonus
shares, as appropriate. ¢ }—
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2016
(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

2.14

2.15

2.16

Impairment of assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an
asset (including goodwill) may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company
estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely
independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is
treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. If at the
balance sheet date there is an indication that if a previously assessed impairment loss no
longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the camying
amount of asset does not exceed the net book value that would have been determined, if
no impairment loss had been recognised. In respect of goodwill, impairment loss will be
reversed only when it is caused by specific external events and their effects have been
reversed by subsequent external events.

Employee stock based compensation

The Company measures the compensation cost relating to stock options, restricted shares
and phantom stock options using the intrinsic value method. The compensalion cost is
amortised over the vesting/ service period.

Government grants
Grants from the government are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that:

@) the Company will comply with the conditions attached to them; and
(ii)  the grant will be received.

Government grants related to revenue are recognised on a systematic basis in the
statement of profit and loss over the periods necessary to match them with the related
costs which they are intended to compensate. Such grants are deducted in reporting the
related expense. Where the Company receives non-monetary grants, the asset is
accounted for on the basis of its acquisition cost. In case a non-monetary asset is given
free of cost it is recognised at a nominal value. Ay
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2016

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.

3.1

Notes to the accounts

Shareholders’ funds

Share capital
) PR —— N =
Particulars Asat As at
- N March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
Authorised
800,000,000 (March 31, 2015: 800,000,000) equity $,000 8,000

shares of Rs 10/- each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
167,786,176 (March 31, 2015: 83,732,372) equity 1,678 837
shares of Rs 10/- each fully paid :

1618 8

_Total

b) Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the

end of the year is as given below:

Particulars Ay at As at
Mareh 31. 2016 March 31. 2015

No ofshares Rs  Noofshares Rs
Number of shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 83,732,372 837 41689731 417

Add: Shares issued on exercise of stock options and 160,716 2 276,980 2
restricled shares

Add: Bonus shares issued * 83,893,088 839 41,765,661 418
Number of shares outstanding at the end of the year 167786,176 1678 83732372 837

*Refer note 3.1.1 (e).

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par
value of Rs 10 each.

Each holder of the equity share, as reflected in the records of the Company as of the
date of the shareholder meeting, is entitled to one vote in respect of each share held
for all matters submitted to vote in the shareholder meeting.

The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees and foreign currency. The
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting.

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on July 16, 2015, October 15, 2015 and
January 18, 2016 had declared an interim dividend of 30% (Rs 3 per equity share of
par value Rs 10/- each) for the quarter ended June 30, 2015, 40% (Rs 4 per equity
share of par value Rs 10/~ each) for the quarter ended September 30, 2015 and 40%
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policics and notes (o the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31,2016

(Rupees in millions, exeept share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

(Rs 4 per equity share of par value Rs 10/~ each) for the quarter ended December 31,
2015 respectively.

During the year, the Company has issued bonus shares in the ratio of 1:1 after
approval of shareholders through postal ballot.

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on March 23, 2016, have declared an
interim dividend of 20% (Rs 2 per equity share (after bonus issue) of par value of Rs
10/- each) for the quarter ended March 31, 2016. Further, the Board of Directors at its
meeting held on April 18, 2016 have recommended a final dividend of 30% (Rs 3 per
equity share (after bonus issue) of par value Rs 10/- each) for the year ended March
31, 2016.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be
entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all
preferential amounts. However, no such preferential amounts exist currently. The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of cquity shares held by the
shareholders.

d) Equity shareholder holding mare than 5 percent of equity shares along with the
number of equity shares held at the beginning and at the end of the year is as given

below:
Sr. No. Nanie of the sharchalder As ol Morch 31, 2016 As at March 31, 2015
Number of shares % Number of shares %
) Coffee Day Entemuises Limited 17,461,768 10 4% §,730,884 10 4%
2 Nalands India Fund Limited 15,796,356 94% 7,898,178 94%
3 Cnche. Dav Trading Limiled 10,594,244  63% 5,297,122 6 3%

*Post bonus issue

¢) In the period of five years immediately preceding March 31, 2016:

a. The Company has allotted 83,893,088 and 41,765,661 fully paid up equity
shares during the quarter ended March 31, 2016 and June 30, 2014
respectively, pursuant to 1:1 bonus share issue approved by shareholders.
Consequently, options/ units granted under the various employee share based
plans are adjusted for bonus share issue.
The Company has not bought back any equity shares.

c. The Company has not allotted any equity shares as fully paid up without

payment being received in cash.

) Employee stock based compensation

The Company instituted the Employees Stock Option Plan (‘ESOP’) in fiscal 2000, which
was approved by the Board of Directors (‘the Board’). The Company has various stock
option programs, a restricted stock purchase plan and a phantom stock option plan.

Program 1 [ESOP 1999/

This plan was terminated on September 30, 2001 and there are no options outstanding as

at the reporting date.
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the ycar ended March 31, 2016

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Program 2 [ESOP 2001]

Options under this program have been granted to employees at an exercise price of Rs 50
per option (Rs 25 per option post bonus issue). All stock options have a four-year vesting
term and vest and become fully exercisable at the rate of 15%, 20%, 30% and 35% at the
end of 1, 2, 3 and 4 years respectively from the date of grant. Each option is entitled to
1 equity share of Rs 10 each. This program extends to employees who have joined on or
after October 1, 2001 or have been issued employment offer letters on or after August 8,
2001 or options granted to existing employees with grant date on or after October 1,
2001. This plan was terminated on Aptil 30, 2006. The contractual life of each option is
11 years after the date of grant.

Particulars Year ended March 31,
2016 2015

Qutstanding options, beginning of the year 32,976* 54,777*
Granted during the year - -
Exercised during the year 10,894 29,401
Lapsed during the year 3,722 2,304
Forfeited during the year - -
Outstanding options, end of the year 18,360 23,072
_Options vested and exercisable, end of the year 18,360 23,072

“*Adjusted for bonus issue. Refer note 3.1.1 (e)
Program 3 [ESOP 2006 (a)]

This plan was terminated on October 25, 2006 and there are no options outstanding as at
the reporting dates.

Program 4 [ESOP 2006 (b)]

Options under this program are granted to employees at an exercise price periodically
determined by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. All stock options have a
four-year vesting term and vest and become fully exercisable at the rate of 15%, 20%,
30% and 35% at the end of 1, 2, 3 and 4 years respectively from the date of grant. Each
option is entitled to 1 equity share of Rs 10 each. This program extends to employees to
whon the options are granted on or after October 25, 2006. The vontiactual life of each
option is 5 years after the date of grant. &
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2016

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended March 31,

2016 2015
Outstanding options, beginning of the year 74,000 213,750
Granted during the year - -
Exercised during the year 74,000 92,000
Lapsed during the year - -
Forfeited during the year - 47,750
Outstanding options, end of the year - 74,000
Options vested and exercisable, end of the year - 74,000

*Adjusted for bonus issue. Refer note 3.1.1 (e)

Program 5 [ESOP 2008A]

Options under this program are granted to employees of erstwhile Aztecsoft Limited as
per swap ratio of 2:11 as specified in the merger scheme. Each option is entitled to
1 equity share of Rs 10 each.

Particulars Year ended March 31,
- 06 2015
Outstanding options, beginning of the year 159,244* 168,295*
Granted during the year -
Exercised during the year 6,908 51,293
Lapsed during the year - 33,926
Forfeited during the year . .
Outstanding options, end of the year 1,52,336 83,076
Options vested and exercisable, end of the 1,52,336 83,076
year

*Adjusted for bonus issue. Refer note 3.1.1 (¢)
Directors’ Stock Optlon Plan, 2006 (‘DSOP 2006°)

Options under this program have been granted to independent directors at an exercise
price periodically determined by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. All stock
options vest and become fully exetcisable equally over three year vesting term at the end
of 1, 2 and 3 years respectively from the date of the grant. Each option is entitled to |
equity share of Rs 10 each. The contractual life of each option is 4 years after the date of
the grant. g
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2016

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended March 31,
2016 2015
Outstanding options, beginning of the year 60,000* 75,000%
Granted during the year - -
Exetcised during the year 20,000 35,000
Lapsed during the year
Forfeited during the year :
Qutstanding options, end of the year 40,000 40,000
Options vested and exercisable, end of the year 40,000 26,666

*Adjusted for bonus issue. Refer note 3.1.1 (¢)
Program 7 [ESOP 2010A4]

In-principle approvals for administering the seventh stock option program i.e. ESOP 2010
(A) has been received by the Company from the BSE and NSE for 1,135,000 equity
shares of Rs 10 each. No options have been granted under the program as at
March 31, 2016.

Employee Restricted Stock Purchase Plan 2012 (‘ERSP 2012°)

ERSP 2012 was instituted with effect from July 16, 2012 to issue equity shares of
nominal value of Rs 10 each. Shates under this program are granted to employees at an
exercise price of not less than Rs 10 per equity share or such higher price as determined
by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. Shares shall vest over such term as
determined by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee not exceeding ten years
from the date of the grant. All shares will have a minimum lock in period of one year
from the date of allotment,

Particulars Year ended March 31,

2016 2015
Outstanding shares, beginning of the year - :
Granted during the year 48,914 69,286
Exercised during the year 48,914 69,286
Lapsed during the year -

Forfeited during the year 5
Outstanding shares, end of the year -

Shares vested and exercisable, end of the year i = -
=
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Mindtree Limited

Significant aceounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2016
(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Other stock based compensation arrangements

The Company has also granted phantom stocks and letter of intent to issue shares under
ERSP 2012 plan to certain employees which is subject to certain vesting conditions.
Details of the grant/issue as at March 31, 2016 are given below:

Particulars Phantom stocks
) o __ plan*
Total no, of units 1,195,000
Vested units -
Lapsed units -
Forfeited units -
Cancelled units -
Outstanding units as at the end of the year 1,195,000
Contractual life 2 years
Date of grant 21-Oct-15

Price per share/ unit

Grant price of Rs 686

Particulars ERSP 2012
et plan*
Outstanding units/shares, beginning of the year 308,000
Number of units/shares issued under letters of 94,250
intent
Vested units/ shares 38,102
Lapsed units/ shares 4,448
Forfeited units/ shares 17,000
Cancelled units/ shares -
Outstanding units/ shares as at the end of
the year 342,700
Contractual life 2 - 4 years

Date of grant**

Price per share/ unit**

*Adjusted for bonus issue. Refer note 3.1.1 (¢).
**Based on Letter of Intent

18-Jul-13, 12-May-15, 21-Oct-
15, 27-Oct-15, 25-Feb-16
Exercise price of Rs 10

The weighted average fair value of each unit under the above mentioned ERSP 2012 plan,
granted during the year was Rs 1,418 (Rs. 705, after bonus issue) using the Black-Scholes

model with the following assumptions:

o B Pre bonus issue Post bonus issue
Weighted average grant date share price Rs 1,435 Rs 717
Weighted average exercise price Rs 10 Rs 10
Dividend yield % 0.22% 0.31%
Expected life 1-4 years 1-4 years
Risk free interest rate 7.43% 7.43%

Valatility 45.53% 45.53%
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2016

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

The following table summarizes information about the weighted average exercise price of
aptions/ shares exercised under various programs:

Amount in Rs
Particulars _ Year ended March 31,
..... 2016 2015
Program 2 = R 25.00 30.25
Program 4 265.07 344.77
Program § 239.25 201.88
DSOP 2006 309.50 560.00
ERSP 2012 10.00 10.00

The following tables summarize information about the options/ shares outstanding under
various programs as at March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015 respectively:

Particulars il As at March 31, 2016
Number of Weighted average Weighted
optlons/ remaining average exercise
shares* contractual life price*
(in years) (in Rs)
Program 2 18,360 0.67 12,50
Program § 152,336 1,33 106.50
DSOP 2006 40,000 0.04 123.25

*f\d_juqtuafoﬁmﬁq issue, Refer note 3.1.1 (e).

Particulars As at March 31,2015
Number of Weighted average Weighted
options/ remaining  average exercise
shares contractual life price
(in years) (in Rs)
Program 2 23,072 0.70 25.00
Program 4 74,000 0.32 265.07
Program § 83,076 232 215.18
DSOP 2006 - 40.000 1.10 278.00
The Company has recorded compensation cost for all grants using the intrinsic value-
based method of accounting. = C. b~
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2016

(Rupees in millions, cxcept share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Had stock based compensation been determined under the fair value approach described
in the Guidance Note on, “Accounting for employee share-based payments” issued by
ICAI, the Company’s net profit and basic and diluted earnings per share would have
reduced to the proforma amounts as indicated:

Particulars Year ended March 31,
i _ - B 2016 2015
Net profit as reported 6,049 5,343

Add: Stock-based employee

compensation expense (intrinsic value 90 168
method)

Less: Stock-based employee

compensation expense (fair value 92) (173)
method)

Pro forma net profit 6,047 5,338
Basic earnings per share as reported 36.08 31.95
Pro forma basic earnings per share 36.07 31.92
Diluted earnings per share as reported 35.99 31.83

Pro forma diluted earnings per share 35.98 31.80

g) As at March 31, 2015, the Company had received Rs 4 towards allotment of 15,000
equity shares and 276 equity shares at exercise prices of Rs 285 each and Rs 25 each
respectively and it was shown under Share application money pending allotment. The
Company made the allotment for these 15,276 equity shares during the year ended March

31,2016.
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2016

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.1.2 Reserves and surplus

Particulars As at As at

- March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
Capital reserve

Opening balance 87 87
87 87
Securitles premium reserve
Opening balance 1,898 2,208
Additions during the year 63 108
Less: Amount utilised for bonus shares (839 (418)
N 1,122 1,898
General reserve
Opening balance 1542 1,542
1,542 1,542
Share aptlon outstanding account
Opening balance 18 68
Additions during the year - w9 o 10
' 107 78
Hedge reserve
Opening balance - 49
Movement during the year ) _ - (19

Sutplus (Balance in the statement of proft and loss)

Opening balance 15,666 12,038
Add: Amount transferred from statement of profit 6,049 5,343
and loss _ | il .
Amount available for approptiations 21,715 17,381
Appropriations;
Interim dividend (1,258) (586)
Final dividend (504) (838)
Dividend distribution tax (net) (325) (291)
o 19,628 15,666
Total ) 22,486 19271
. G b=
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2016
{Rupees in millfons, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.2

3.21

3.2.2

Non-current liabilities

Long-term borrowings

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

(Unsecured)

Other loans - B 18 23

Total 18 23

Long-terin borrowings represent the amount received from Council for Scientific and
Industrial Research (CSIR) to develop a project under “Devclopmcnt of Intelligent Video
Surveillance Server (TVSS) system”.

The loan is an unsecured loan carrying a simple interest of 3% p.a on the outstanding
amount of loan. Repayment of loan is in 10 equal annual installments from June 2011.

Any delay in repayment entails a liability of 12% p.a. compounded monthly for the
period of delay.

There is no continuing default in the repayment of the principal loan and interest
amounts.

Other long-term liabilities

Particulars As at ' As at
March 31,2016 Mareh 31, 2015

Other long-term liabilities* o -

Total e Il 1,072 334

*Includes payable for acquisition of businesses Rs. 990 (As at March 31, 2015: Rs, 227)
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2016
(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.3 Current liabilities

3.3.1

33.2

Short-term borrowings

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

(Secured)

Other loans from banks 400 -

Total 400 5

Short-term borrowings represent the packing credit loan from bank secured against
receivables.

Other current liabilities

Particulars - As at o As at
) e March 31,2016  March 31, 2015
Current maturities of long-term debt* 5 5
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 1 1
Unearned income 230 225
Unpaid dividends 7 5
Dividend payable 336 -

Creditors for capital goods 185 218
Advances from customers 42 27
Employec related liabilities 1,091 1,462
Book overdraft 395 155
Gratuity payable (net) 138 18
Other liahilities™*¥ 1.282 660
Total e ; 7 2,776

#The details of interest rates, repayment and other terms are disclosed under note 3.2.1.
**Includes derivative liability of Rs 1 (As at March 31, 2015: Rs 3) and payable for
acquisition of businesses Rs. 714 (As at March 31, 2015: Rs. 269)

As at March 31, 2016, the Company has outstanding forward contracts amounting to
USD 30.5 million (As at March 31, 2015: USD 32 million), GBP 1.5 million (As at
March 31, 2015: GBP 2.25 million) and Euro 3.25 million (As at March 31, 2015: Euro
4.5 million). These derivative instruments have been entered to hedge highly probable
forecasted sales.

The derivative instruments have been fair valued at the balance sheet date and resultant
exchange gain Rs 31 for the year ended March 31, 2016 (for the year ended March 31,
2015: Exchange gain of Rs 21) has been recorded in the statement of profit and loss.
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year cnded March 31, 2016

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

The following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan as required under AS 15-

Employee Benefits.

Particulars As at
March 31,2016
Change in projected benefit obligations
Obligations at the beginning of the year 413
Service cost 91
Interest cost 29
Benefits settled (50)
Actuarial (gain)/ loss 30
Obligations at end of the year 513

Change in plan assets
Plan assets at the beginning of the year, at fair

value 395
Expected return on plan assets 32
Actuatial gain/ (loss) (6)
Contributions 4
Benefits settled (50)
Plan assets at the end of the year, at fair

value 375

As at
March 31,2015

365
81
29

(55)
9!

413

363
29
5
53
(5)

395

Summary of the present value of the obligation, the fair value of the plan assets and

experience adjustments

Particulars As at March 31,
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 375 395 363 313 275
Present value of defined obligations at the end
of the year (513) (413) (365) (324) (276)
Asset/ (liability) recognised in the balance
sheet (138) asy @ an 1))
Experience adjustment on plan liabilities 30 7 (23) 8 25
Lxperience adjustment on il assets (6) 5 - 1 38
T o\
o>
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2016

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.33

Particulars For the vear ended March 31,
) i 2016 2015
Gratuity cost
Service cost 91 81
Interest cost 29 29
Expected return on plan assets (32) (29)
Actuarial (gain)/loss 36 (12)
Net gratuity cost 124 69
Actual return on plan assets 36 29
Assumptions
Interest rate 7.70% 7.80%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 8.75% 8.75%
Salary increase 5.00% 6.00%
Attrition rate 14.23% 14.23%
Retirementage 60 60

The Company has invested the plan assets in the insurer managed funds. The expected
rate of return on plan asset is based on expectation of the average long term rate of return
expected on investments of the fund during the estimated term of obligation. Expected
contribution to the fund for the year ending March 31, 2017 is Rs. 138,

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, takes into
account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and
demand factors in the employment market.

Short-term provisions

Particulars ~ Asat As at
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

Provision for compensated absences 530 352

Provision for taxes, net of advance tax and tax 270 227
deducted at source

Provision for discount 663 367
Dividend payable 504 837
Dividend distribution tax payable 103 172
Provision for post contract support services 7 5

Provision for disputed ducs* 76 68
Total N 2,153 2,028

*Represents disputed tax dues provided pursuant to unfavourable order received from the
tax authorities against which the Company has preferred an appeal with the relevant
authority. In respect of the provisions of AS 29, the disclosures required have not been
provided in accordance with paragraph 72 of AS 29. 3 ¢ \—
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Mindtree Limited
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31,2016
(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)
The disclosure of provisions movement as required under the provisions of AS 29 is as follows:-

Provision for discount

Particulars For the year ended March 31,
2016 2015

Balance at the beginning of the year 367 270

Provisions made during the year 486 433

Utilisations during the year (172) (328)

Released during the year 13) ®

Provision at the end of the year _663 367

Provision for post contract support services

Particulars For the year ended March 3 1,
Balance at the beginning of the year 3 4
Provisions made during the year 2 2
Utilisations during the year . :
Released during the year = 1)
Provision at the end of the year 7 5

Provision for disputed dues

Particulars For the year ended March 31,
. 2016 2015
Balance at the beginning of the year 68 62
Provisions made during the year 8 6
Utilisations during the year = “
Released during the year N =
Provision at the end of the yoeu 76 [ 68_
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts
For the year ended March 31, 2016

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated).

3.42 Non-current investmenis

Particulars As at As at
. March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
Investment in non-convertible bonds (quoted) 50
Trade investments (unquoted)
- Investment in equity instruments 4,813 16
- Investment in preference shares 7 7
- Investment in Limited Liability Company 4,183 1,091
Less: Provision for diminution in value of
investments _fy (1)
Total 9,082 1,13
Aggregate amount of quoted investments 50
Aggregate matket value of quoted investments 50 -
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 9,003 1,114

Details of investment in non-convertible bonds are as given below:

Particulars As at T Asat
- ‘March 31,2016 ~ Mareh 31,2015
50 secured redeemable non-convertible bonds of 50 -

Rs 1 million in the nature of promissory notes in
PNB Housing Finance Limited
Total 50 z

Details of investment in equity instruments are as given below: I
Partlculars As at As at
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

Investment in equity instruments of wholly owned
subsidiaries

Mindtrce Software (Shanghai) Co., Ltd 14 14

(‘MSSCL?)

1,104,124 (previous year: Nil) fully paid equity 4,236

shares of £0.001 each in Bluefin Solutions

Limited

1,000 (previous year: Nil) fully paid equity 561

shares in Relational Solutions, Inc.

Investment In  equity instruments of other
companies
2,400 (previous year: 2,400) equity shares in 1
Career Community.com Limited
12,640 (previous year: 12,640) equity shares in - -
Worldcast Technologies Private Limited
950,000 (previous year: 950,000) equity shares 1 l
of Re.1 each in NuvePro Technologies Private
Limited

Total 4813 16

[
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Mindtree Limited
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2016

(Rupces in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

The Company has acquired 100% of the equity interest in Bluefin Solutions Limited
(‘Bluefin’), a leading UK based IT solutions provider specializing in SAP HANA
solutions, in an all cash transaction for GBP 42.3 million. The consideration includes an
upfront payment of GBP 34 million and carn out of GBP 8.3 million payable over the
next three years. The transfer of equity interests and control of Bluefin is effective July
16, 2015 and consequently, Bluefin has become a 100% subsidiary of the Company
effective that date.

The Company has also acquired 100% of the equity interest in Relational Solutions, Inc a
US based 1T solutions provider specializing in technology services to the consumer goods
industry, in an all cash transaction for USD 8.6 million. The consideration includes an
upfront payment of USD 7.1 million and earn out of USD 1.5 million payable over the
next two years. The transfer of equity interests and control of Relational Solutions, Inc is
effective July 16, 2015 and consequently, Relational Solutions, Inc has become a 100%
subsidiary of the Company effective that date.

Details of investment in preference shares are as given below:

Particulars As at As at
- March 31,@6_ March 31_._2015
643,790 (previous year: 643,790) Series A 7 7

Convertible Preferred Stock at US$ 0.0001 cach

fully paid at premium of US $ 0.2557 each in 30

‘Sccond Software Inc

Total -~ — Y i

Details of investment in Limited Liability Company is as given below:

Particulars " As at As at
mo March 31,2016 March 31, 2015
Investment in wholly owned subsidiary -

Discoverture Solutions 1..L.C. 1,091 1,091
Magnet 360, L.L.C. e E——— 302 .
Total 4,183 1,091

The Company acquired 100% membership interest in Discoverture Solutions L.L.C.
(Discoverture), a US based 1T solution provider to the insurance industry, for a
consideration of USD 17 million during the year ended March 31, 2015. The
congideration includes future payments which are based on achievement of certain
specific milestones which have currently been provided for based on best estimate of the
Company. The transfer of membership interests and control of Discoverture is effective
February 13, 2015 and consequently, Discoverture has become a 100% subsidiary of the
Company effective that date.

The Company has also acquired 100% membership interest in Magnet 360, LLC, a US-
based platinum salesforce partner specializing in multi-cloud solutions, consulting
services and implementation, in an all cash transaction for USD 45.9 million. The
consideration includes an upfront payment of USD 37.3 million and earn out of up to
USD 8.6 million over the next two years. The transfer of membership interests and
control of Magnet 360, LLC is effective January 19, 2016 and consequently, Magnet 360,
LLC has become a 100% subsidiary of the Company effective that date, -
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2016

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

343 Taxes

Particulars For the year ended March 31,
2016 2018

Tax expense

Current tax 1,880 1,581

= MAT credit entitlement 3 - (50) -

1,830 1,581

Deferred tax (144) 4N

Total 1,686 1,534

The Company has units at Bengaluru, Hyderabad, Chennai and Bhubaneshwar registered
as Special Economic Zone (SEZ) units which are entitled to a tax holiday under Section
10AA of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

The Company also has STPI units at Bengaluru and Pune which are registered as a 100
percent Export Oriented Unit, which were eatlier entitled to a tax holiday under
Section 10B and Section 10A of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

Deferred tax assets (net):
Deferred tax assets included in the balance sheet comprises the following:

Particulars - As at i As at
E— March 31.2016 March 31,2015
Excess of depreciation as per 250 205

books over depreciation allowed
under Income Tax Act, 1961

Provision for doubtful trade

receivables = &
Provision for  compensated 201 117
absence

Provision for volume discount 73 39
Others 47 72
Total deferred tax assets 5l 593 449

3.44 Long-term loans and advances a .
Partlculars As at As at
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
(Unsecured considered good)

Capital advances 42 107

Security deposits* 560 546

Advance tax and tax deducted at source, net of 926 834

provision for taxes

Service tax credit receivable 138 -

MAT credit entitlement 148 110

Other loans and advances = = 28 42

Total 1,842 1,639

* Includes dues from related parties Rs.298 as at March 31, 2016. (As at March 31, 2015

Rs.391) (Refer note 3.15) - g g;
: 29
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2016

(Rupces in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.4.5 Other non-current assets
Particulars

(Unsecured considered good)
Other non-current assets
Total

3.5 Current assets

3.51 Current investments

Particulars

Investment in mutual funds (quoted)

Investinent in non-convertible bonds (quoted)

Term deposits (unquoted)
Total

Apggregate carrying amount of quoted investments
Aggregate market value of quoted investments
Appgregate amount of unquoted investments

Details of investment in mutual funds are as given below:

Particulars

ICICI Prudentia) Mutua! Fund
IDFC Mutual Fund

UTI Mutual Fund

Franklin Templeton Mutual Fund
DSP Blackrock Mutual Fund
Birla Sun Life Mutual Fund
Reliance Mutua! Fund

Tata Mutual Fund

DWS Mutual Fund

SBI Mutual Fund

HDFC Mutual Fund

Axis Mutual Fund

Bank of India AXA Mutual Fund
Kotak Mutual Fund

IP Morgan India Mutual Fund

L & T Mutual Fund

1DBI Mutual Fund

“Total

,{ WA "W.q.

T
CHAR hl“ (i
WGGEU [“

~i’,

No of units
17,401, 890
16,285,532

3,456,138

w

14,185,302
17,651,564
21,243,549

5,597,950
3,635,659

10,000,000

As at March 31,2016

As at As at
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
276 17
276 17
As at As at
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
1,751 4,643
100 -
250 700
2,101 5343
1,851 4,643
2,016 4,790
250 700
~ As at March 31, 2015
Amount No of unlts Amount
296 28,722,324 472
192 37,530,726 433
58 13,456,138 158
- 11,695,643 290
- 14,790,537 351
212 20,007,295 454
303 23,725,772 428
325 36,229,022 422
- 4,483,697 45
87 13,787,278 358
178 27,872,023 424
- 100,840 104
100 10,000,000 100
- 5,681,936 58
16,989,901 189
98,576 100
: 254,281 257
1,751 =y 4,643
G’
T
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2016

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.5.2

353

Details of investment in non-convertible bonds are as given below:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
50 secured redeemable  non-convertible 50

debentwres of Rs 1 million in Kotak Mahindra

Prime Limited

50 secured redeemable  non-convertible 50
debentures of Rs 1 million in Kotak Mahindra

Investments Limited

Total ) 100

Details of investments in term deposit are as given below:

Particulars As at As at
N March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

HDFC Limited - 700

IL&FS Limited 100

Bajaj Finance Limited 50

Kotak Mahindra Investments Limited . 50

UICHousigFinance Limited 50 -

Total 250 e 700

Trade receivables ) - ]
Particulars As at As at
Mareh 31,2016 March 31, 2015

(Unsecured)
Receivables overdue for a period exceeding six
months
- considered good 34 62
- considered doubtful 82 72
Other receivables
- considered good 8,791 6,736
- considered doubtful 20 9
Less: Provision for doubtful receivables (102) (81)
Total 8,825 6,798

Cash and bank balances

Particulars  Asat Asat
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

Balances with banks in current and deposit i 1,581 3,664

accounts®

Cash on hand - =

Other bank balances** 343 5

Total 1,924 3,669

*The deposits malntained by the Company with banks comprises time deposits, which
can be withdrawn by the Company at any point without prior notice or penalty on the
principal.

*%Other bank balances represent earmarked balances in respect of unpaid dividends and
dividend payable. (;54 g =
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2016

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.5.4 Short-term loans and advances
Particulars As at As at
T March 31,2016 March 31, 2015
{Unsecured considered good)

Security deposits 36 143
MAT credit entitlement 49 36
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for 1411 1,289
value to be received*

Less: Provision for doubtful advances (20) (20)
Total 1,476 1,448

* Includes dues from related parties Rs. Nil as at March 31, 2016. (As at March 31, 2015
Rs.94) (Refer note 3.15)

This also includes amounts pertaining to housing deposits, vehicles, medical emergencies,
travel and salary advances given to employees to the extent of Rs 431 as at March 31,
2016. (As at March 31, 2015: Rs 287)

3.5.,5 Other current assets

Particulars As at " Asat

) March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
Unbilled revenue 1,830 981
Other current asscis* 218 — 24
Total ' - 2,048 1,005

*Includes derivative asset of Rs 53 (As at March 31, 2015: Rs 24).

3.6 Other income

Particulars ~ For the year ended March Sf
2016 2015

Interest income . 165 140

PlVldend income from current 7 154

Investments

Dividend income from

subsidiaries 162

Net gain on sale of current

investments 131 286

Foreign exchange gain 365 177

Other non-operating income i - 43 74

Total 939 831
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31,2016

(Rupecs in millions, except sharc and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.7  Expenses

Employce benefits expense For the year énded March 31,

— 2016 2015
Saldries and wages 24,126 19,215
Contribution to provident and 1,375 1,050
other funds**

Expense on employee stock 90 168

based compensation*

Staff welfare expenses 178 175
Total 25,766 = 20,608

Finance_éns ts F‘dr the year c;r:l_c'd MarcTSl ..

: = . 2016 2018
Interest expense 5 +
Total - 3 el 1
Othe !'expé;:e_s . ~ For the year ended March 31,
- 2016 B 2015
Travel cxpcnsés 2,086 1,732
Communication expenses 615 436
Sub-contractor charges 2,599 2,107
Computer consumables 617 441
Legal and professional charges 478 406
Power and fuel 316 275
Rent (Refer note 3.16) 689 625
Repalrs to bulldings 52 51
Repairs to machinery . 47 35
Insurance 57 48
Rates and taxes 123 93
Other expenses 2012 1558
Total 9,691 7,802

*Refer note 3.1.1 ()
**includes contribution to defined contribution plans Rs 1,251 (For the year ended March
31,2015: Rs 981) )
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policics and notes to the accounts (continuced)

For the year ended March 31, 2016

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.8 Contingent liabilities

a) The Company has received an income tax assessment for the financial year 2008-09
wherein demand of Rs 24 has been raised against the Company on account of certain
disallowances, adjustments made by the income tax department. A significant portion
of this amount arises from the manner of adjustment of brought forward losses in
arriving at the taxable profits of the Company and disallowance of portion of profit
earned outside India from the STP and SEZ units.

Management believes that the position taken by it on the matter is tenable and hence,
no adjustment has been made to the financial statements, The Company has filed an
appeal against the demands received.

The Company has received a favourable order from the Commissioner of Income tax
(Appeals) for majority of grounds and considering the order passed, there will not be
any demand on the Company. On the other grounds which are not favourable, the
Company has filed an appeal before the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal (‘TTAT").

b) The Company has received income tax assessments for financial years 2006-07 and
2007-08 for the erstwhile subsidiary Mindtree Technologies Private Limited (MTPL)
with demands amounting to Rs 11 and Rs 10 on account of certain disallowances/
adjustments made by income tax department. Management believes that the position
taken by it on the matter is tenable and hence, no adjusiment has been made to the
financial statements. The Company has filed an appeal against the demand received.
The Company has not deposited the amount of demand with the department. The
department has adjusted pending refunds amounting to Rs 18 against these demands.

c) The Company has received income tax assessments under Section 143(3) of the
Income-tax Act 1961 pertaining to erstwhile subsidiary Aztecsoft Limited for the
financial years 2001-02, 2002-03, 2003-04, 2004-05, 2005-06, 2006-07, 2007-08 and
2008-09 wherein demand of Rs 215, Rs 49, Rs 61, Rs 28, Rs 58, Rs 119, Rs 214 and
Rs 63 respectively has been raised against the Company. These demands have arisen
mainly on account of transfer pricing adjustments made in the order. The Company
has not accepted these orders and has been advised by its legal counsel/ advisors to
prefer appeals before appellate authorities and accordingly the Company has filed
appeals before the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) and ITAT. The Company
has deposited Rs 15 with the department against these demands. The department has

adjusted pending refunds amounting to Rs 478 against these demands.g, o)
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to (he accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2016
(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stuted)

d)

The Company received a favourable order from the Commissioner of Income Tax
(Appeals) for the year 2001-02 where in the Commissioner ol Income Tax (Appeals)
accepted the Company’s contentions and quashed the demand raised. The Income tax
department appealed against the above mentioned order with ITAT. ITAT, in an
earlicr year passed an order setting aside both the orders of the Commissioner of
Income Tax (Appeals) as well as the Assessing Officer and remanded the matter back
to the Assessing Officer for re-assessment. The Company preferred an appeal with the
Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka against the order of the ITAT. The Hon’ble High
Court of Karnataka has dismissed the appeal filed against the order of ITAT and
upheld the order passed by thc ITAT and accordingly the case is pending before
Assessing Officer for re-assessment. The Deputy Commissioner of Income tax has
completed the reassessment & has issued a Final assessment order with a revised
demand amounting to Rs 202 due to transfer pricing adjustments. Management
belicves that the position taken by it on the matter is tenable and hence, no adjustment
has been made 1o the financial statements. The Company has filed an appeal with
Comniissioner of Income Tax (Appeals).

The Company has received the order from thc Commissioner of Income Tax
(Appeals) for the year 2004-05 and on the unfavorable grounds, the Company has a
filed an appeal with ITAT.

The Company has appealed against the demands reccived for financial years 2002-03,
2003-04, 2004-05, 2005-06, 2006-07, 2007-08 and 2008-09. Based on favourable
order received by the Company for the financial year 2001-02 from the
Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) and an evaluation of the facts and

circumstances, no provision has been made against the above orders in the financial
statements.

The Company received an assessment order for financial year 2006-07 for the
erstwhile subsidiary Mindtree Wireless Private Limited from the Assistant
Commissioner of Income-tax (' ACIT?) with a demand amounting to Rs 39 on account
of certain other disallowances/ transfer pricing adjustments made by income tax
department. Management believes that the position taken by it on the matter is tenable
and hence, no adjustment has been made to the financial statements. The Company

has filed an appeal with Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) against thc demand
received.

The Company has received the order from the Commissioner of Income Tax
(Appeals) wherein the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) accepted the grounds
in part and in respect of unfavorable grounds, the Company has filed an appeal before
Income Tax Appellate Tribunal. The final order giving effect by the Assessing
Officer is completed and the demand is reduced to Rs 33. The Company has
deposited Rs 5 with the department against this demand.

The Company has received a final assessment order for financial year 2009-10 from
the Deputy Commissioner of Income Tax with a demand amounting to Rs 61 due to
non-adjustment of brought forward losses and transfer pricing adjustments.
Management believes that the position taken by it on the matter is tenable and hence,
no adjustment has been made to the financial statements. The Company has filed an
appeal with Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals). g
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ecnded March 31, 2016

(Rupecs in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

f) The Company has received a final assessment order for financial year 2012-13 from
the Deputy Commissioner of Income Tax with a demand amounting to Rs 15 on
account of certain disallowances. Management believes that the position taken by it
on the matter is tenable and hence, no adjustment has been made to the financial

statements. The Company has filed an appeal with Commissioner of Income Tax
(Appeals).

RRY Commilments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not
provided for as at March 31, 2016 is Rs 262 (March 31, 2015: Rs 508).

3.10  Value of imports on CIF basis

Particulars For the year ended March 31,

2016 2015
Capital goods Fil 270 339
Total 270 339

3.11 Expenditure in foreign currency

Particulars For the year ended March 31,

2016 2015
Branch office expenses 20,635 15,822
Travel expenses © 269 244
Professional charges 60 52
Others 295 363
Total ' 21,259 16,481

3.12  Earnings in foreign currency

Particulars For the year ended March 31,

2016 2015

Income from software development 42,566 ?47152
Dividend income from subsidiaries 162

Other income 9 31

Total ;T 34,483




Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policics and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2016
(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.13  During the year ended March 31, 2016, the Company has remitted in foreign currency
dividend of Rs 38 (year ended March 31, 2015: Rs 29)

e e
Number of shares held

Final dividend 2014-15 1,870,100

First interim dividend 2015-16 1,870,600

Second interim dividend 2015-16 1,796,998

Third interim dividend 2015-16 1,695,047

Third interim dividend 2013-14 1,119,693
Final and special dividend 2013-14 2,150,288
First interim dividend 2014-15 1,870,871
Second interim dividend 2014-15 1,878,172
Number of shareholders

Final dividend 2014-~15 55

First interim dividend 2015-16 55

Second interim dividend 2015-16 52

Third interim dividend 2015-16 52

Third interim dividend 2013-14 : 53
Final and special dividend 2013-14 - 51
First interim dividend 2014-15 . 52
Second interim dividend 2014-15 - 56
Amount Remitted (in Rs)

Final dividend 2014-15 19

First interim dividend 2015-16 5

Second interim dividend 2015-16

Third intetim dividend 2015-16

Third interim dividend 2013-14 6
Final and special dividend 2013-14 - 10
First interim dividend 2014-15

Second interim dividend 2014-15 . 7
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31,2016

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.14

Segmental reporting

The Comipany is structured into five verticals — RCM, BFSI, TMS, TH and Others. The
Company considers business segment as the primary segment and geographical segment
based on the location of customers as the secondary segment.

The accounting principles consistently used in the preparation of the financial statements
are also consistently applied to record income and expenditure in individual segments.

Income and direct expenses in refation to segments are categorised based on items that are
individually identifiable to that segment, while the remainder of costs are apportioned on
an appropriate basis. Certain expenses are not specifically allocable to individual
segments as the underlying services are used interchangeably. The Company therefore
believes that it is not practical to provide segment disclosures relating to such expenses
and accordingly such expenses are separately disclosed as unallocable and directly
charged against total income.

The assets of the Company are used interchangeably between segments, and the
management believes that it is currently not practical to provide segment disclosures

relating to total assets and liabilities since a meaningful segregation is not possible.

Business segments

Statement of profit and loss

____For the year ended March 31,

2016 2015
Segment revenue
RCM 9,346 7,720
BFSI 10,979 8,233
TMS 14,505 11,641
TH 7,164 5,843
Others 1,571 2,037
Total _ 43.565 35474
Segment operating income
RCM 2,040 1,503
BFSI 1,455 912
T™S 2,681 2,738
TH 1,255 1,136
Others 677 793
Total 8,108 7,082
Unallocable expenses (1,309) (1,035)
Profit for the year before interest, other 6,799 6,047
income and tax
Finance costs 3) 4}
Other income 939 831
Net profit before taxes 7,735 6,877
Income taxes e (1.686) (1.534)
Net profit after taxes 0,049 5,343
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Mindtres Limited
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year endeéd March 31, 2016

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Other information Far the vear 1.
2016 2015
Depreciation and Amortisation 1,309 1,017
(Unallocable)
Other significant non-cash expense
(Allocable)
RCM 15 -
BFSI 8
TMS 33 -
TH 8 i1
Others — - -
Geographical segments
Revenues For the year ended March 31,
2016 2015
America 29,296 21,921
Europe 9,717 8,964
India 1,411 1,350
Rest of World 3,141 3,239
e ) [ 43565 35474
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2016

(Rupees in mlllions, except share and per sharc data, unless otherwise stated)

3.15  Related party transactions

Name of related party

Mindiree Software (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd (“MSSCL’), Republic
of China

Discoverture Solutions L.L.C.

Discoverture Solutions
U.L.C*

Discoverture Solutions Europe
Limited**

Janaagraha Centre for
Citizenship & Democracy

Mindtree Foundation
Bluefin Solutions Limited
Bl\ieﬁn golutions Inc.
Bluefin Solutions Sdn Bhd
Blouvin (Pty) Limited
Bluefin Solutions Pte Ltd
Relatlonnl Solutions, Inc
‘Magnet 360, LLC
Reside, LLC

M360 Investments, LLC
Numetical Truth, LLC
Coffee Day Global Limited

Tanglin Developments
Limited (“TDL")

Mysore Amalgamated Coffee
Estate Ltd

*Dissolved with effect from November 19, 2015,
**Application for dissolution filed on March 24, 2016,

Nature of relationship

Subsidiary

Subsidiary with effect from February 13, 2015
Subsidiary with effect from February 13, 2015
Subsidiary with effect from February 13, 2015

Entity with common key managerial person

Entity with common key managerial person

Subsidiary with effect from July 16, 2015

Subsidiary with effect from July 16, 2015
Subsidiary with effect from July 16, 2015
Subsidiary with effect from July 16, 2015
Subsidiary with effect from July 16, 2015
%bﬂdlary with effect from July 16, 2015

Subsxdlary with effect from January 19, 2016
Subsidiary w1th effect from January 19, 2016

Subsidiary w1th effect from January 19, 2016

Subsidiary with effect from January 19, 2016

These entities are part of Coffee Day Group which
through various entities and its promoters holds 19.72%

equity stake in Mindtree.

Y
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2016

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Transactions with the above related parties during the year were:

Name of related Nature of transaction

For the year ended March 31,

party 2016 2015
Mindtree Software Software services received 20 19
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd
. Relational Software license fees paid 3
Solutions, Inc
Discoverture o Soﬂw-are services rendered 248 22
Solutions L.L.C.
Software services received 92
Bluefin Solutions Software services rendered 4 -
Limited
Software services received 7
M-ys-ore Reimburset;lent of travel - 1 -
Amalgamated expenses
Coffee Estate Ltd
Mindtree Donation paid 36 13
Foundation
Janaagraha Centre -Sof;\f)a_t'; servi_c;s_ rendered ) 1
for Citizenship &
Democracy
Donation paid 4 4
Coffee Day Global Procurement of supplies 23 17
Limited
Sofiware services rendered 27
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Mindtree Limited

Signlficant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2016

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

/N\ M,\,.
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Tanglin Leasing office buildings and land 375 321
Developments
Limited
Advances/ deposits paid
- towards electricity deposit/
charges 9
Advance/ deposits received back:
- towards electricity deposit/
charges 16 51
- towards lease rentals 172 156
Interest on advance towards
electricity charges/ deposit
- amount recovered
- amount accrued
Balances payable to related parties are as follows:
Name of related party As at As at
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
Mindtree Software (Shanghal) Co., Ltd 1 6
Discoverture Solutions L.L.C. 15 -
Bluefin Solutions Limited 4
Coffee Day Global Limited 1
Balances receivable from related parties are as follows:
Name of related Nature of As at As at
party transsactions March 31,2016 March 31, 2015
Discoverture Trade receivables . 98 22
Solutions L.L.C.
Bluefin Solutions Trade receivables 4
Limited
Coffee Day Global Trade receivables 25
Limited



Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2016

(Rupces in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Tanglin Short-term loans
Developments and advances
Limited Rental Advance
94
Long-term loans
and advances:

Advance towards

electricity charges 0

Security deposit
(including
electricity deposit)
returnable on
termination of lease

298 375

Key Managerial Personnel:

Subroto Bagchi'™ Executive Chairman
Krishnakumar Natarajan” CEQ and Managing Director
N.S. Parthasarathy Executive Director, President and Chief Operating
. Officer
Rostow Ravanan” Executive Director, Head — Europe, Service lines and
Key Accounts
Dr. Albert Hieronimus Non-Executive Vice Chairman and Independent
Director
Apurva Purohit Independent Director
Manisha Girotra Independent Director

Prof. Pankaj Chandra Independent Director

Ramesh Ramanathan Independent Director

V.G .Siddhartha Non-Executive Director
Jagannathan Chakravarthi' Chief Financial Officer

Vedavalli Sridharan®’ Company Secretary

*Appointed with effect from April 1, 2015.
*% Appointed with effect from June 22, 2015.
**+Bffective April 1, 2016, Subroto Bagchi ceased to be the Executive Chairman and will
continue as Non-executive director.

AEffective April 1, 2016, Krishnakumar Natarajan has been elevated as Executive Chairman and
Rostow Ravanan, as CEO and Managing Director.

G =
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

Far the year ended March 31, 2016

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Remuneration to key managerial personnel during the year ended March 31, 2016
amounts to Rs 135 (for the year ended March 31, 2015 amounts to Rs 224),

The above remuneration excludes gratuity and compensated absences which cannot be
separately identified from the composite amount advised by the actuary.

Dividends paid to directors during the year ended March 31, 2016 amounts to Rs 230 (for
year ended March 31, 2015 amounts to Rs 173).

3.16  Lease transactions
Lease rental expense under non-cancellable operating lease during the year ended March

31, 2016 amounted to Rs 419 (for the year ended March 31, 2015: Rs 361). Future
minitnum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease are as below:

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2016 March 31, 2015

Payable -- Not later than one year 297 390

Payable -- Later than one year and not later 317 541

than five years

Payable -- later than five years 89 106

Additionally, the Company leases office facilities and residential facilities under
cancellable operating leases. The rental expense under cancellable operating lease during
the year ended March 31, 2016 was Rs 270 (for the year ended March 31, 2015: Rs 264).

3.17  Earnings per equity share

Reconciliation of number of equity shares used in the computation of basic and diluted
earnings per share is set out below:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
I March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015*

Basic EPS  Diluted EPS Basic EPS  Diluted EPS
Weighted average number of 167,649,773 167,649,773 167,238,871 167,238,871
equity shares outstanding
during the year
Weighted average number of - 441,916 - 654,350
equity shares resulting from
assumed exercise of employee
stock options
Weighted average number of 167,649,773 168,091,689 167,238,871 167,893,221
equity shares for caloulation
of earnings per share
* In accordance with Accounting Standard 20 on ‘Earnings Per Share’, basic and diluted
earnings pert share is adjusted for bonus issue for previous period presented. ;
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policles and notes to the accounts (continucd)

For the year endéd March 31, 2016

(Rupees in millions, except share and per sharc data, unless otherwwe stated)

3.18

3.19

Auditor’s remuneration

Particulars For the year ended March 31,
S B 2016 2015
Audit 20 15
Taxation matters 1 1
Other services K 1 |
Reimbursement of expenses and 1 1
levies = .
Total 23 18

The Company has a development center at Gainesville, Florida, US. The state of Florida
has offered various incentives targeted to the needs of the development center. The nature
and the extent of the government grant is given below:

Nature of expenses - For the yea_r ended March 31,

2016 2018

" Grant towards workforce training " . 15 24
“Total = = = =, ==0Mf 24

The Company had availed a non-monetary grant of USD 950,000 for renovation of
project facility. This grant is subjeet to fulfillment of certain conditions such as creation
of minimum employment with specified average salary and capital investment at the
development center at Gainesville, Florida, US, Cor-
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2016

(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.20

Dues to micre, small and medium enterprises

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum
dated August 26, 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should
mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum
Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum in accordance with the ‘Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006" (‘the Act’). Accordingly, the
disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as at March 31, 2016 has
been made in the financial statements based on information received and available with
the Company. Further in view of the Management, the impact of interest, if any, that may
be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Act is not expected to be material.
The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier as at the balance
sheet date.

For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2016 March 31,2015
The principal amount and the
interest due thereon remaining 4 Nil

unpaid to any supplier as at the end
of accounting year;

The amount of interest paid by the

buyer under the Act along with the

amounts of the payment made to the Nil Nil
supplier beyond the appointed day

during each accounting year;

the amount of interest due and
payable for the year (where the
principal has been paid but interest
under the Act not paid);

The amount of interest accrued and
remaining unpaid at the end of Nii Nil
accounting year; and

Nil Nil

The amount of further interest due
and payable even in the succeeding
year, until such date when the
interest dues as above are actually
paid to the small enterprise, for the
purpose of disallowance as a
deductible expenditure under section
23.

Nil Nil
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended Mayrch 31, 2016
(Rupees in millions, except share and per sharc data, unless otherwise stated)

3.21

3.22

3.23

Total of expenditure incurred on Corporate Social Responsibility activities during the
year ended March 31, 2016 is Rs 94 (during the year ended March 31, 2015 is Rs 40).

The financial statements are presented in Rs in million. Those items which are required to
be disclosed and which are not presented in the financial statement due to rounding off to
the nearest Rs in million are given as follows:

Balance Sheet items L Nyull_ g Amount in Rs

Particulars As at As at
o March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

Share application money pending 42,300 4,281,900

allotment

Provision for foresecable losses on 277,996 275,752

contracts

Cash on hand 15,350 21,148

12,640 (previous year: 12,640) equity 126,400 126,400

shares in Worldcast Technologies
Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss items Amount in Rs

Particulars - . For the year ended March 31,
2016 2015

Adjustment to the cariylng (319,056) 3,259,370

amount of investments

As of the balance sheet date, the Company’s net foreign currency exposure that is not
hedged by a derivative instrument is given below:

Partlculars Asat Asat
_____ —_ = March 31,2016 March 31, 2015
Receivable 10,347 6,483
_Payable (3281  (164)
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Mindtree Limited

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2016
(Rupees in millions, except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

3.24

3.25
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The Company has filed an application before the Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka for a
composite scheme of amalgamation (“the scheme™) of Discoverture Solutions L.L.C. and
Relational Solutions Inc., wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company, with the Company
with an appointed date of April 1, 2015. Pending the requisite approvals, no effect has
been given for the scheme in these financial statements.

Corresponding figures for the previous year presented have been regrouped, where
necessary, to conform to the current year’s classification.

As per our report of even date attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 0080728

For and on behalf of the Board of
Directors.of Mindtree Limited

V. Balaji N. Krishnakumar Rostow Ravanan
Partner Chairman CEO & Managing Director
Membership No. : 203685 \ —7
<X TP J {
o Y
Jagannathan Vedavalli Sridharan
Chakravarthi Company Secretary

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 18,2016 Date: April 18,2016
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CONFIDENTIAL

Independent Auditor's Report

The Members
Magnet 360, LLC and Subsidiaries
Minneapolis, Minnesota

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Magnet 360, LLC and Subsidiaries
which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related
consolidated statements of income, equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the
consolidated financial statements,

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Magnet 360, LLC and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the results of
their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America.
Feniee Buuikop Sopidisss. Compunsy, P

) Lurie Besikof Lapidus & Company, LLP
Mindiree L'l&'\\ted Minneapolis, Minnesota
For -
\( (0 Nt March 14, 2014
Company gecretany



Magnet 360, LLC and Subsidiaries CONFIDENTIAL
Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31 2013 2012
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash $ 1,592,580 $ 963,193
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts
of approximately $73,300 and $31,300 4,665,393 4,264,953
Prepaid expenses and other assets 370,552 215,361
Unbilled receivables 218,256 181,770
Current maturities of other receivables 50,778 60,526
Escrow receivable 270,036 E
Total Current Assets 7,168,095 5,685,803
Property and Equipment 614,982 325,260
Investments - 16,000
Other Receivables - less current maturities 48,100 91,724
Goodwill 4,533,430 4,533,430
Intangible Assets 336,087 655,076
Total Assets $12,700,694 $11,307,293
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Line of credit $ - $ 154,286
Current maturities of long-term debt - 133,589
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 620,811 1,094,425
Accounts payable - related parties 64,170 74,474
Due to Gage Group, LLC 2,195,413 1,828,740
Deferred revenue 894,255 948,559
Total Current Liabilities 3,774,649 4,234,073
Long-Term Debt - less current maturities - 310,127
Total Liabilities 3,774,649 4,544 200
Members' Equity 8,926,045 6,763,093
Total Liabilities and Equity $12,700,694 $11,307,293
.Y

See notes to consolidated financial statement



Magnet 360, LLC and Subsidiaries CONFIDENTIAL

Consolidated Statements of Income

Years Ended December 31 2013 2012
Revenue $25,475,142 $17,118,715
Direct Costs 18,787,347 11,680,274
Gross Profit 6,687,795 5,438,441
Operating Expenses 7,029,874 6,023,678
Loss from Operations {342,079) (585,237)
Other Income (Expense)
Gain on sale of Insite - 225,000
Gain on acquisition of Reside, Inc. - 1,631,975
Gain on sale of enStratus 1,177,001 -
Other income (expense) 591 (1,131)
Debt forgiveness (24,650) -
Interest expense (10,411) (30,604)
Total Other Income (Expense) 1,142,531 1,725,240
Net Income $ 800,452 $ 1,140,003
O

See notes to consolidated financial statement



Magnet 360, LLC and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Equity

CONFIDENTIAL

Unit
Subscription Members' Noncontrolling Total
Receivable Equity Interests Equity
Balance, December 31, 2011 - $ 2,067,988 $ 80,706 $ 2,148,694
Acquisition of noncontrolling interest - 58,006 (80,7086) (22,700)
Capital contributions (227,500) 536,030 - 308,530
Purchase of equity for debt - (500,000) - (500,000)
Distribution of investments - (508,004) - (508,004)
Acquisition of Reside, Inc. - 4,176,070 - 4,176,070
Share-based compensation - 20,500 - 20,500
Net income - 1,140,003 - 1,140,003
Balance, December 31, 2012 (227,500) 6,990,593 - 6,763,093
Subscriptions received 227,500 - - 227,500
Capital contributions - 1,035,000 - 1,035,000
Option exercise - 100,000 - 100,000
Net income - 800,452 - 800,452
Balance, December 31, 2013 . $ 8,926,045 - $ 8,926,045

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONFIDENTIAL

Magnet 360, LLC and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31 2013 2012

Operating Activities
Net income $ 800,452 $ 1,140,003

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation 138,672 100,991
Amortization 318,989 564,996
Gain on acquisition of Reside, Inc. - (1,531,975)
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 1,588 33,092
Gain on investments (1,177,001) (225,000)
Interest added to note receivable (915) -
Debt forgiveness 24,650 -
Share-based compensation - 20,500
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (400,940) (2,115,482)
Unbilled receivables (36,486) (181,770)
Prepaid expenses and other assets (155,191) 131
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (117,245) 1,789,111
Deferred revenue (54,304) 769,382
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (657,731) 363,979
Investing Activities
Purchases of property and equipment (429,982) (161,277)
Proceeds from sale of enStratus 1,193,001 -
Escrow receivable (270,036) -
Proceeds from sale of Insite - 675,000
Payments received on notes receivable 29,637 -
Issuance of other receivables - (88,783)
Cash acquired from Reside, Inc. - 37,702
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 522,620 462,642
Financing Activities
Proceeds on line of credit - 409,286
Payments on line of credit (154,286) (505,000)
Payments on long-term debt (443,716) (371,089)
Members' contributions and option exercise 1,135,000 308,530
Collections on unit subscription receivables 227,500 -
Distributions - (22,700)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities 764,498 (180,973)

See notes to consolidated financial statements



CONFIDENTIAL

Magnet 360, LLC and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (continued)

Years Ended December 31 2013 2012
Net Increase in Cash 629,387 645,648
Cash
Beginning of year 963,193 317,545
End of year $ 1,592,580 $ 963,193
Supplementary Disclosures of Cash Flow Information
Cash paid for interest $ 10,611 $ 28,186
Noncash investing and financing activities:
Acquisition of Reside for issuance of shares - 4,176,070
Purchase of equity for debt - 500,000
Note payable assumed - 64,148
Distribution of investments - 508,004
&

See notes to consolidated financial statement



CONFIDENTIAL

Magnet 360, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
1. Nature of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Nature of Business

Magnet 360, LLC (Magnet 360) was organized in Minnesota on March 25, 2008. The Company is a
marketing and technology services consultancy focused on delivering marketing solutions based on
Saleforce.com technology. Marketing services are provided directly by the Company and through its
network of expert, industry leading service providers.

Principles of Consolidation/Accounting for Investments in Affiliated Entities

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Magnet 360 and its majority-
owned affiliated entities (collectively, the Company). All significant intercompany balances and transactions
have been eliminated in consolidation. Noncontrolling interests represented the portion of consolidated
entities not owned by the Company.

Investments in less than 20% owned entities over which the Company does not have the ability to exert
significant influence over the investees' operating and financing activities are accounted for under the cost
method of accounting. Under the cost method, the investment is carried at cost with earnings recognized for
dividends received.

Investments are reduced for any loss in value that is other than temporary.
See Note 5 for additional details on the consolidated and investment entities.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
may affect certain reported amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements and
accompanying notes. Actual result could differ from those estimates. Significant estimates at December 31,
2013 and 2012 include the allowance for doubtful accounts receivable, carrying value of investments,
valuation of goodwill and intangibles, and deferred revenue.

Unit Subscriptions Receivable

The Company records a current asset for the portion of unit subscriptions receivable that were subsequently
collected; the remaining balance is shown as a reduction in members' equity.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is earned by the Company through the delivery of technical consulting services to its clients.
Revenue is recognized based on time and materials tracking of the delivery of services team. The Company
also provides media services. Revenue on media services is recognized upon delivery to the client.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue consists primarily of services and licensing fees billed in advance,
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1.

Nature of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Credit Risk

The Company maintains cash balances which at times may exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation limit. The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts, and management
believes the Company is not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash.

Accounts Receivable

Management reviews individual accounts as they become past due to determine collectibility. The
allowance for doubtful accounts is adjusted periodically based on management's consideration of past due
accounts. Individual accounts are charged against the allowance when collection efforts have been
exhausted.

Unbilled Receivables

The Company recognizes fee revenue as hours are worked on behalf of its clients. Unbilled receivables
include the cost and expected profit on work completed but not billed. Management reviews unbilled
receivables monthly to determine collectability.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Property and equipment
acquisitions which exceed $500 and have an estimated useful life of one year or more are capitalized.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of generally three to
five years. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lesser of the useful lives of the assets or the
lease term.

Intangible Assets

Registered trademarks, website domains and customer lists are recorded at cost and are amortized over
their estimated useful lives. The Company periodically reviews intangible assets for impairment if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. There were no
impairment charges recorded in 2013 or 2012.

Goodwill

Goodwill is not amortized, but is tested for impairment annually. Management determined there was no
impairment in 2013 or 2012.

Marketing

Marketing costs are expensed when incurred. Total marketing expense was $185,764 and $151,602 in
2013 and 2012, respectively.

Income Taxes

Profits and losses at the Company are reported on the income tax returns of the members. Accordingly, no
provision for income taxes is recorded by the Company.

QY. 8
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1.

Nature of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Income Taxes (continued)

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require management to evaluate
tax positions taken by the Company and recognize a tax liability (or asset) if the Company has taken an
uncertain position that more likely than not would not be sustained upon examination by the Internal
Revenue Service. Management has analyzed the tax positions taken by the Company and has concluded
that as of December 31, 2013, there are no uncertain positions taken or expected to be taken that would
require recognition of a liability (or asset) or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. The
Company is subject to routine audits by taxing jurisdictions; however, there are currently no audits for any
tax periods in progress. Management believes the Company is no longer subject to income tax
examinations for years prior to 2010.

Reclassification

Certain reclassifications were made to the 2012 financial statements in order to conform to the 2013
presentation. The reclassification did not affect previously reported members' equity, net income or net cash
flows.

Members' Equity and Stock Subscription Receivable

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company had Class A voting units and Class B nonvoting units.
Although the Class B units will not permit their holders to vote in Company matters, the Member Control
Agreement does require the Company to obtain the consent of certain holders of Class B units prior to
engaging in certain strategic transactions. The Class B units have priority rights to non-tax related
distributions over Class A units until such time as the Class B members shall have received distributions
equal to the total capital contributions relating to their Class B units. Distributions to the Class A holders will
be made in accordance with the particular series of Class A units held, with the holders of Class A-2 units
receiving priority over the holders of Class A-1 units. The different series of Class A units exists solely to
prioritize the rights of the holders of such units to receive non-tax related distributions after the return of
Class B capital. Certain of the investor agreements contain anti-dilution protection provisions, generally for a
period of 6 - 18 months, that require additional units to be issued to the investor in the event units are
subsequently offered at a lower price. The following is a summary of units as of December 31, 2013
and 2012:



Magnet 360, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2,

Members' Equity and Stock Subscription Receivable (continued)

CONFIDENTIAL

Class A-1 Class A-2 ClassB
Units Units Units Total

Balance, December 31, 2011 2,000,000 2,000,000 593,333 4,593,333
Acquisition of:

MB Services, LLC - B 15,443 15,443

Numerical Truth - - 86,298 86,298

Reside, Inc. 1,141,047 - 298,977 1,440,024
Purchase of shares for note payable (172,414) - - (172,414)
Purchased shares - capital raise - - 129,164 129,164
Ba|anceI December 31 - 2012 2,968,633 2,000,000 1 ,1 23,21 5 6,091 ,848
Stock option exercise = . 100,000 100,000
Purchased shares - capital raise - - 249,398 249,398
Balance, December 31, 2013 2,968,633 2,000,000 1,472,613 6,441,246

Additional Investors

In November and December 2012, the Company entered into various stock subscription agreements with
investors to purchase 129,164 of Class B units at a cost of $4.15 per unit for a total of $536,030 in
proceeds. In accordance with the agreements, a total of $308,530 was paid prior to year end and a stock
subscription receivable for $227,500 was recorded for the amounts outstanding. The amounts were

collected in December 2013.

In February 2013, the Company issued an additional 249,398 Class B units at $4.15 for total cash payments

of $1,035,000.

Other Receivables

Other receivables consisted of the following:

December 31, 2013

Long-
Current Term Total

Note receivable - employee
Note receivable - Bannerworks, LLC
Note receivable - former employee

$24,650 $48,100 $ 72,750
19,353 - 19,353
6,775 - 6,775

Other Receivables

$50,778 $48,100 $ 98,878

10
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

3. Other Receivables (continued)

Long-
December 31, 2012 Current Term Total
Note receivable - employee $24,121 $72,364 $ 96,485
Note receivable - Bannerworks, LLC 22,730 19,360 42,090
Note receivable - former employee 13,675 - 13,675
Total $60,526 $91,724 $ 152,250

In October 2012, Magnet 360 entered into a promissory note agreement with an employee for $96,485 plus
interest at .84%. The note was a loan to an employee, the proceeds of which were used to purchase shares
of common stock in Reside. Contingent upon employment, the note will be forgiven at 25% of the
outstanding principal and interest accrued each year until 100% has been forgiven.

in 2012, Magnet 360's ownership interests in Bannerworks, LLC were redeemed for a $15,000 note
receivable (see Note 5).

In November 2011, the Company entered into a separation agreement with a former employee. As part of
the agreement, the Company received a $20,000 tuition reimbursement settlement. The employee pays the
Company, beginning January 2012, 23 installments of $575 with a final payment of $6,775 due
December 2013. The balance of $6,775 was received in January 2014.

4. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following:

December 31 2013 2012

Computers and office equipment $ 354,538 $ 237,767
Software 17,617 16,452
Furniture and fixtures 170,242 111,183
Leasehold improvements 331,623 116,134
Total cost 874,020 481,536
Less accumulated depreciation 259,038 156,276
Property and Equipment $ 614,982 $ 325,260

cr
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

5.

Investments

MB Services, LLC

Effective January 1, 2012, MB Services, LLC, an entity that was substantially owned by Magnet 360,
assigned to Magnet 360 all of its assets and liabilities and sold all outstanding units to Magnet 360 in
exchange for 15,443 Class B units of Magnet 360 valued at $2.81 per unit. Upon the completion of this
transaction Magnet 360 became the sole owner in MB Services, LLC (MB Services Reorganization). MB
Services, LLC was recapitalized to provide for three classes of units-Class A-1 voting, Class A-2 voting and
Class B non voting units and Magnet 360 distributed its ownership interests in MB Services, LLC to Magnet
360’s members as of December 31, 2011. The ownership in MB Services, LLC was structured to allow for
the owners in Magnet 360 to have the identical ownership and class of units in MB Services, LLC. Effective
January 1, 2012, Magnet 360 distributed all of its ownership interests in Kruskopf Coontz Advertising, Inc.,
ARAnet, Inc., Valtira, LLC and Relationship One, LLC to MB Services, LLC. The distribution was recorded
at cost of $508,004, which approximated fair value.

Cost Method Investments

enStratus Network, LLC

In May 2013, Magnet 360 sold its ownership interest and recorded a gain on the sale of $1,177,001, which
represented the proceeds in excess of their cost. Magnet received $922,965 in cash and the remaining
$270,036 is in an escrow receivable account at year end. The Company expects to collect the receivable in
November 2014.

ARAnet, Inc.

In 2012, as part of the MB Services, LLC reorganization, the Company distributed its investment in ARAnet,
Inc. to MB Services, LLC.

Bannerworks

On December 30, 2010, Magnet 360 purchased $80,000 in equipment from Bannerworks, LLC
(Bannerworks). The Company paid $30,000 on December 30, 2010 and the remaining $50,000 (acquisition
payable) was outstanding as of December 31, 2010. In 2011, the equipment and liability were transferred to
MB Services. MB Services then transferred the equipment and liability to Bannerworks for a $15,000
investment in Bannerworks (18.8%) and a $15,000 receivable from Bannerworks. The total note receivable
from Bannerworks at December 31, 2011, including this $15,000, was $28,467. The note bears interest at
4%. MB Services receives monthly principal and interest of $2,025 beginning January 2012 with the final
amount due in March 2013.

As part of the MB Services, LLC reorganization, the note receivable and ownership interests were
transferred to Magnet 360. In October 2012, Magnet 360 sold its ownership interest in Bannerworks for a
note receivable. In October 2012, this note receivable was consolidated with the existing note receivable for
a total of $44,440 due in monthly installments of $2,000, including interest at 4%, beginning
November 1, 2012, with a final payment due October 1, 2014.

Insite Software Solutions. Inc.

In December 2012, the Company sold their investment in preferred stock for $675,000 and recorded a gain
on the sale of $225,000, which represented the proceeds in excess of their cost.

12
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5.

Investments (continued)

The following is a summary of investments at cost:

Maanet 360
Inslite enStratus MB Services, LLC
Description Kruskopf Coontz  Software Network, Bannerworks,
December 31, 2013 Advertising, Inc. Solutions, Inc. ARAnet, Inc. Valtira, LLC LLC LLC
Ownership % 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% Total

Cost, December 31, 2011 $ 132,000 $ 450,000 $ 237500 $ 5425 $ 16,000 $ 15,000 § 855925

Sale of investment - (450,000) - - - - (450,000)
Converted to a note receivable - - - - - (15,000) (15,000)
Distribution (132,000) - (237,500) (5,425) - - (374,925)
Cost, December 31, 2012 - - - - 16,000 - 16,000
Sale of investment - - - - (16,000) - (16,000)
Cost, December 31, 2013 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $

Investments at December 31, 2012 were not evaluated for impairment because (a) it is not practicable to
estimate their fair values due to insufficient information being available and (b) management did not identify
any events or changes in circumstances that might have a significant adverse effect on the fair value of the
investment.

Consolidated Investments

M360 Investments, LLC and Numerical Truth

On December 1, 2010, Magnet 360 contributed $90,300 to form M360 Investments, LLC (M360
Investments), which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Magnet 360. M360 Investments then purchased
56.25% of Numerical Truth, LLC (Numerical Truth) for a total of $90,000. In 2011, an additional investor
contributed $20,000 to Numerical Truth and Magnet 360 invested $3,500 in M360 Investments, who then
invested $3,500 in Numerical Truth. At December 31, 2011, Magnet 360 owned 51% of Numerical Truth.

On January 1, 2012, the remaining owners of Numerical Truth sold all outstanding units in Numerical Truth
to Magnet 360 in exchange for a total of 86,298 Class B units of Magnet 360 valued at $2.81 per unit and
$22,700 in cash. Upon receipt of the outstanding shares of Numerical Truth, Magnet 360 transferred all the
units to its wholly owned subsidiary, M360 Investments. Upon receipt of the units, M360 Investments owns
100% of Numerical Truth,

Reside. Inc.

Effective January 1, 2012, Magnet 360 acquired all of the outstanding shares, on a dilutive basis, in
Reside that it did not own for 1,440,024 Magnet 360 units valued at $2.90 each ($4,176,070). Magnet 360
acquired Reside to further its business relationship in alignment with the Companies’ business model to
provide technical consultancy services focused on delivering marketing solutions based on Salesforce.com
technology. The fair value of Reside was as follows:

13
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5. Investments (continued)

Description Amount

Cash $ 37,702
Receivables 816,464
Other current assets 91,957
Property and equipment 77,018
Customer relationships 984,000
Goodwill 4,533,430
Total assets acquired 6,540,571
Accounts payable and other current liabilities 189,722
Line of credit 250,000
Long-term debt 114,805
Total liabilities assumed 554,527
Net Assets Acquired $5,986,044

As required by ASC 805, Accounting for Business Combinations, when a company has a pre-existing
ownership in another company and an acquisition is completed where control is obtained of the acquired
company, the buyer must first measure the acquisition-date fair value of its previously held equity interest in
the acquired company and recognize either (1) a gain for the excess of the fair value of the previously held
interest over its carrying value or (2) a loss for the excess of carrying value over fair value. As a result of
this acquisition, the Company recorded a $1,531,975 gain for the year ended December 31, 2012, for the
excess fair value over its carrying cost of Reside.

The fair values recorded are Level 3 inputs determined by a third party valuation based on various market
and income analyses. Significant assumptions used include a 23.9% cost of equity and 4.0% terminal
growth value.

The purchase involved various transactions with the owners of Reside. The first transaction was an
exchange of 2,001,877 shares of common stock in Reside for the issuance of 1,141,047 Class A-1 units of
Magnet 360 valued at $2.90 per unit. Magnet 360 granted to an owner, and the owner exercised on
October 31, 2012, an option to require Magnet 360 to purchase from the owner a total of 172,414
Magnet 360 units in exchange for a $500,000 promissory note (see Note 8).

Magnet 360 entered into an agreement to purchase all 400,000 outstanding preferred shares of Reside in
exchange for 229,000 Class B units of Magnet 360 valued at $2.90 per unit. The previous owner was
granted anti-dilution protection through the igsuance of additional Class B units as defined in the agreement
as well as a redemption right causing Magnet 360 to redeem the Class B units at the defined redemption
price. The redemption request can be made at any time after January 1, 2017 and is payable in five equal
annual installments.

Magnet 360 issued a promissory note in the amount of $96,485, the proceeds of which were used by the
individual to exercise the option to purchase 122,113 shares of Reside. Magnet 360 then purchased these
122,113 shares of Reside common stock in exchange for 69,977 Class B units of Magnet 360 valued at
$2.90 per unit.

a7
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5.

Investments (continued)

Other Investments

Relationship One

tn January 2010, the Company acquired a 25% ownership interest in Relationship One, LLC (Relationship
One) for $125,000. Effective January 1, 2012, the Company distributed its investment in Relationship One
to MB Services, LLC. The distribution was recorded at the carrying value of $133,079, which approximated
fair value.

Intangible Assets

Other intangible assets are stated at their cost less accumulated amortization computed on the straight-line
basis except for certain customer lists that are amortized on an accelerated method and consist of the
following:

Estimated Accumulated
December 31, 2013 Useful Life Cost Amortization Net
Trademark Syears $ 16,085 $ 16,085 $ -
Website domain 5 years 11,693 11,693 -
Customer lists 3-5years 1,316,700 980,613 336,087
Total $ 1344478 $ 1,008,391 $§ 336,087
Estimated Accumulated

December 31, 2012 Useful Life Cost Amortization Net
Trademark Syears $ 16,085 $ 12,872 § 3,213
Website domain 5 years 11,693 9,354 2,339
Customer lists 3-5years 1,316,700 667,176 649,524
Total $1,344478 $ 689,402 $ 655,076

Future amortization of intangible assets is estimated to be as follows:

Year Amount
2014 $ 312,540
2015 23,547
Total $ 336,087
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7.

Bank Line of Credit

The Company had a $750,000 bank line of credit that was paid off in January 2013. Interest was payable
monthly at prime plus 1.75% with a minimum rate of 5.25%. Borrowings could not exceed a predetermined
percentage of eligible accounts receivable, were collateralized by substantially all Company assets, and
were subject to certain financial requirements. In addition, three of the Company's members had personally
guaranteed the line of credit.

In September 2013, the Company changed banks and obtained a $1,500,000 line of credit, subject to a
borrowing base. The line matures in September 2014, has no personal guarantees required from the
Company's members, and bears monthly interest at the greater of prime plus 0.75% (the prime rate at
December 31, 2013 was 3.25%) or 4.50%. Borrowings are collateralized by substantially all Company
assets, and are subject to certain financial requirements. The line of credit was not drawn on in 2013.

Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consisted of the following:

December 31 2013 2012

Term note payable in monthly installments of $4,741, with interest at 6.25%,
paid in full in September 2013. $ - $ 155,089

Note payable - member payable in monthly installments totaling $1,606 through
August 2015, with interest at 5.125%, subordinated to term note, paid in full in
November 2013. - 47,856

Note payable - related party payable in monthly installments ranging from $5,000
to $15,000, with interest at 0.93%, subordinated to term note, paid in full in

November 2013. - 240,771
Total - 443,716
Less current maturities - 133,589
Long-Term Debt, less current maturities $ - $310,127

In May 2011, the Company entered into a $200,000 multiple advancing term loan agreement bearing
interest at 6.25%. On December 5, 2011, the loan agreement was drawn upon in the amount of $200,000.
Effective December 15, 2011, the loan was converted into a term loan bearing interest at 6.25%, an interest
only payment was due through December 31, 2011 with monthly principal and interest payments of $4,741
beginning January 31, 2012 through December 31, 2015. The agreement contained restrictive financial
covenants as to levels of tangible net worth, and other nonfinancial covenants, and was collateralized by
substantially all Company assets. This loan was paid in full in September 2013.

Effective January 1, 2012, the Company assumed a note payable between a member and Reside with an
outstanding balance of $64,148. The note was due in monthly installments of $1,606 including interest at
5.125%. The note was subordinated to the term note; the Company was permitted to make the scheduled
principal and interest payments; however, no prepayments could be made on the note until the term note
was paid in full. This note was paid in full in November 2013.

In October 2012, the Company entered into a related party $500,000 note payable with interest at 0.93%.
The note was a result of the related party exercising a put option (see Note 5) and was subordinated to the
term note. The Company was permitted to make the scheduled principal and interest payments; however,
no prepayments could be made on the note until the term note was paid in full. The note had monthly
payments due of $5,000 per month for the first twelve months, $10,000 for the next twelve months, and
$15,000 for each month thereafter until paid i fGll This note was paid in full in November 2013.

fe.
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8.

10.

1.

Long-Term Debt (continued)

Interest expense paid to related parties was $3,829 and $3,951 for the years ended December 31, 2013
and 2012, respectively.

Retirement Plan

The Company sponsors a 401(k) profit sharing plan for employees who are 18 years of age and have met
certain other eligibility requirements. The Plan allows an employee to contribute up to the limitation
established by the Internal Revenue Service. The Company may make discretionary matching and other
voluntary contributions to the Plan, as determined annually. The Company made matching contributions of
$146,027 and $78,492 for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Share-Based Compensation

In July 2009, the Company granted an employee options to purchase 200,000 Class B units, for ten years,
at $2.50 per unit. The options vest over three years or immediately upon an 80% or more change in
ownership of the Company. In 2012, the 200,000 options became fully vested. Total compensation expense
recognized in 2012 was approximately $20,500.

In May 2013, the Company granted certain executive officers of the Company options to purchase a total of
200,000 Class B units for 10 years at $4.15 per unit. The options vest immediately prior to, but conditioned
upon, the occurrence of any merger, consolidation or sale of all or substantially all of the assets or
membership interests of the Company. The vested portion of options is exercisable only upon a change in
control, as defined. No unit option compensation expense was recorded due to uncertainty that these
events would occur.

Employee Option Plan

On November 23, 2010, the Company adopted the Magnet 360 Employee Option Plan. The Plan has
reserved 9,120,000 employee units for issuwance pursuant to the Plan. In 2013 and 2012, the Board
approved the grant of options up to 3,940,000 and 3,000,000, respectively, at an exercise price of $.30 per
unit. As of December 31, 2013, there are 1,365,750 units available for issuance. The term of each option
shall not exceed ten years from the date of the grant. The options vest over three years, or immediately
upon a change in control, as defined. The options are forfeited upon termination of employment.

During 2013, the Company issued 2,000,000 options at an exercise price of $.30 per unit to a consultant.
Upon an exit event, as defined, the Company is required to pay the consultant a contingent bonus of the
lesser of $600,000 or the current value of these options. In the event the consulting service agreement with
the Company is terminated for any reason, the consultant has agreed to provide services to the Company
under a retainer agreement.

The vested portion of options is exercisable only upon a change in control, as defined. No unit option
compensation expense was recorded due to uncertainty that a change in control would occur.

S~
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11. Employee Option Plan (continued)
Unit option changes were as follows:
Weighted-
Average

Weighted- Remaining
Average Contractual
Exercise Term (in

Description Options Price years)
Outstanding, December 31, 2012 3,802,500 $ 0.30 8.89
Granted 4,108,250 0.30 -
Forfeited, including 31,123 vested units (156,500) 0.30 -
Outstanding, December 31, 2013 7,754,250 0.30 8.76
Vested at December 31, 2013 3,206,716 $ 0.30 8.09

Nonvested unit option changes during 2013 were as follows:

Description Options

Nonvested - December 31, 2012 2,398,968
Granted 4,108,250
Forfeited (125,377)
Vested (1,834,307)
Nonvested - December 31, 2013 4,547,534

12. Operating Leases

In January 2011, the Company entered into a sublease agreement with a nonrelated party through
December 2015. In 2011, monthly rent was set at approximately $12,500 and includes the Company's
share of property taxes and common area expenses based on the office space. In August 2012, the
Company increased the space leased, increasing the monthly rent to $19,300 per month. Effective
December 1, 2013, the sublease agreement was amended due to increase in the office space leased and
extended through November 2018. The renewed lease requires monthly base payments of $39,408,
increasing 2.5% annually. Total rent expense was $287,386 and $184,049 in 2013 and 2012, respectively.

18
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13.

Operating Leases (continued)

Future minimum rents under this lease agreement are as follows:

Year Total

2014 $ 474,000
2015 486,000
2016 498,000
2017 510,000
2018 478,000
Total $2,446,000

Effective May 2011, the Company entered into a lease agreement with a nonrelated party for office space in
New York on a month-to-month basis for use of phones, common space, and certain office equipment. In
2012, rent was $3,000 per month. In 2013, monthly rent was $2,400 for January through November. In
December 2013, monthly rent increased to $4,500 for additional space rented. Total rent expense was
$30,900 and $33,080 in 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Effective February 2011, Relationship One and Numerical Truth began subleasing from the Company on a
month-to-month basis, each at $890 per month which includes their share of office space, common space,
use of phones, certain office equipment, and shared services. In January 2012, Relationship One was
distributed to MB Services, LLC and Numerical Truth was acquired by Magnet 360. Rental income from
Relationship One for 2012 was $11,705.

Effective October 2013, the Company entered into a lease agreement with a nonrelated party for office
space in Chicago on a month-to-month basis at $1,050 per month plus fees for use of phones, common
space, and certain office equipment. Total rent expense was $4,020 in 2013.

Related Party Transactions

3._-::;;,“;‘— i

Service Agreement

The Company has an aggeement with Gage Marketing Group, LLC to pay them 50% of its gross channel
marketing revenue for licensing, client support and professional services and 97.5% for certain media and
listed services. Total amounts paid to Gage Marketing Group, LLC under this agreement were $10,970,843
and $3,442,414 for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Employment Agreements

The Company has various employment agreements with several members of management. The
agreements include profit sharing and/or bonus arrangements, liquidation event bonuses, and other
provisions.

Sk
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14. Concentrations

15.

The following summarizes customers representing 10% or more of the Company's consolidated revenue
and accounts receivable as of and for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012:

% of % of
Revenue Accounts Receivable
December 31 2013 2012 2013 2012
Customer
1 47 % 14 % 49 % 35%
2 2 18 % d &
3 X * G 10 %

* less than 10%
Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated subsequent events through March 14, 2014, the date at which the consolidated
financial statements were available to be issued.

During the period of January 1, 2014 through March 14, 2014, the Company issued an additional 270,000
units under the employee option plan at an exercise price of $.30 per unit.- In addition, 83,000 units were
forfeited during this period.

For Mindtreerti"gi‘ed
J A=
6 “/_’,_,-f
Gompany Secretary
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Independent Auditor's Report

The Members
Magnet 360, LLC and Subsidiaries
Minneapolis, Minnesota

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Magnet 360, LLC and Subsidiaries
which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, members' equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the
related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Magnet 360, LLC and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the results of
their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Magnet 360, LLC and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets

CONFIDENTIAL

December 31 2014 2013
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash $ 22,743 $ 1,592,580
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts
of approximately $25,000 and $73,300 5,703,577 4,665,893
Prepaid expenses and other assets 728,077 370,552
Unbilled receivables 216,292 218,256
Current maturities of other receivables 24,650 50,778
Escrow receivable - 270,036
Total Current Assets 6,695,339 7,168,095
Property and Equipment 797,396 614,982
Other Receivables - less current maturities 288,556 48,100
Goodwill 6,955,863 4,533,430
Intangible Assets 686,980 336,087
Total Assets $15,424,134 $12,700,694
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Line of credit $ 600,000 $ -
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 831,398 620,811
Accounts payable - related parties 30,471 64,170
Due to Gage Group, LLC 19,334 2,195,413
Deferred revenue 2,186,439 894,255
Total Current Liabilities 3,667,642 3,774,649
Members' Equity 11,756,492 8,926,045
Total Liabilities and Equity $15,424,134 $12,700,694

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Magnet 360, LLC and Subsidiaries

Consolldated Statements of Operations

CONFIDENTIAL

Years Ended December 31

2014

2013

Revenue $26,699,678 $25,475,142
Direct Costs 16,745,298 18,787,347
Gross Profit 9,854,378 6,687,795
Operating Expenses 10,105,689 7,029,874
Loss from Operations (251,211) (342,079)
Other Income (Expense)
Galn on sale of enStratus - 1,177,001
Other income (expense) (148) 591
Debt forglveness (24,660) (24,650)
Interest expense (11,182) (10,411)
Total Other Income (Expense) (35,980) 1,142,531

Net Income (Loss)

$ (287,191) §

800,452

See notes to consolidated financlal statements.
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Magnet 360, LLC and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Members' Equity

Unit Members'
Subscription Capital Equity
Balance, December 31, 2012 $ (227,500) $ 6,990,593 $ 6,763,093
Subscriptions received 227,500 - 227,500
Capital contributions - 1,035,000 1,035,000
Option exercise - 100,000 100,000
Net income - 800,452 800,452
Balance, December 31, 2013 - 8,926,045 8,926,045
Acquisition of ADC B 1,617,638 1,617,638
Acquisition of Irgonomics - 1,600,000 1,500,000
Net loss B (287,191) (287,191)

Balance, December 31, 2014 $

$11,766,492  $11,756,492

See notes to consolidated financial statements.



Magnet 360, LLC and Subsidiaries CONFIDENTIAL

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31 2014 2013

Operating Activities
Net income (loss) $ (287,191) $ 800,452

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash used by
operating activities:

Depreciation 242,009 138,672
Amortization 749,107 318,989
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 1,671 1,588
Gain on investments - (1,177,001)
Interest added to notes receivable (1,106) (915)
Debt forgiveness 24,650 24,650
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (340,076) (400,940)
Unbilled receivables 1,964 (36,486)
Prepaid expenses and other assets (287,928) (155,191)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (434,538) (473,614)
Accounts payable - related parties (33,699) (10,304)
Due to - Gage Group, LLC (2,176,079) 366,673
Deferred revenue 1,292,184 (54,304)
Net Cash Used by Operating Activities (1,249,032) (857,731)
Investing Activities
Purchases of property and equipment (426,094) (429,982)
Proceeds from sale of enStratus - 1,193,001
Escrow receivable 270,036 (270,036)
Payments received on notes receivable 26,128 29,637
Acquisition of Irgonomics and ADC, net of cash acquired (526,875) -
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities (656,805) 522,620
Financing Activities
Proceeds on line of credit 1,300,000 -
Payments on line of credit (700,000) (154,286)
Issuance of note receivable - ADC (264,000) -
Payments on long-term debt - (443,716)
Members' contributions and option exercise - 1,135,000
Collections on unit subscription receivables - 227,500
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 336,000 764,498
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash (1,569,837) 629,387
Cash
Beginning of year 1,592,580 963,193
End of year $ 22,743 $ 1,592,580

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONFIDENTIAL

Magnet 360, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
1. Nature of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Business

Magnet 360, LLC (Magnet 360) was organized in Minnesota on March 25, 2008. The Company is a
marketing and technology services consultancy focused on delivering marketing solutions based on
Saleforce.com technology.

Principles of Consolidation/Accounting for Investments in Affiliated Entities

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Magnet 360 and its wholly
owned affiliates Reside, Inc. and M360 Investments (including its wholly owned subsidiary Numerical
Truth) (collectively, the Company). All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
may affect certain reported amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements and
accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Significant estimates include the
allowance for doubtful accounts receivable, purchase price allocation, useful lives and carrying value of
goodwill and intangible assets, and value of units issued for acquisitions.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is earned by the Company through the delivery of technical consulting services to its clients.
Revenue is recognized based on time and materials provided to clients. The Company also provides media
services. Revenue on media services is recognized upon delivery to the client.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue consists primarily of services and licensing fees billed in advance.
Credit Risk

The Company maintains cash balances which at times may exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation limit. The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts, and management
believes the Company is not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash.

Accounts Receivable

Management reviews individual accounts as they become past due to determine collectibility. The
allowance for doubtful accounts is adjusted periodically based on management's consideration of past due
accounts. Individual accounts are charged against the allowance when collection efforts have been
exhausted.

Unbilled Receivables

The Company recognizes fee revenue as hours are worked on behalf of its clients. Unbilled receivables
include the cost and expected profit on work completed but not billed. Management reviews unbilled
receivables monthly to determine collectability.



CONFIDENTIAL

Magnet 360, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1.

Nature of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Property and equipment
acquisitions which exceed $500 and have an estimated useful life of one year or more are capitalized.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of generally three
to five years. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lesser of the useful lives of the assets or the
lease term.

Intangible Assets

Registered trademarks, website domains and customer lists are recorded at cost and are amortized over
their estimated useful lives. The Company periodically reviews intangible assets for impairment if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. There were no
impairment charges recorded in 2014 or 2013.

Goodwill

Goodwill is not amortized, but is tested for impairment annually. Management determined there was no
impairment in 2014 or 2013.

Marketing

Marketing costs are expensed when incurred. Total marketing expense was $212,718 and $185,764 in
2014 and 2013, respectively.

Income Taxes

Profits and losses at the Company are reported on the income tax returns of the members. Accordingly, no
provision for income taxes is recorded by the Company.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require management to evaluate
tax positions taken by the Company and recognize a tax liability (or asset) if the Company has taken an
uncertain position that more likely than not would not be sustained upon examination by the Internal
Revenue Service. Management has analyzed the tax positions taken by the Company and has concluded
that as of December 31, 2014, there are no uncertain positions taken or expected to be taken that would
require recognition of a liability (or asset) or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. The
Company is subject to routine audits by taxing jurisdictions. Currently the 2012 tax year is being examined
by the Internal Revenue Service. Management believes the Company is no longer subject to income tax
examinations for years prior to 2011.



Magnet 360, LLC and Subsidiaries CONFIDENTIAL

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2,

Acquisitions
American Data Company (ADC)

In April 2014, the Company acquired certain assets and liabilities of American Data Company (ADC) for
$1,927,638. The purchase included the issuance of 294,116 Class B units valued at $5.50 per unit
($1,617,638) and $310,000 cash.

Under the purchase agreement, the Company has held back 61,528 units as security for representations
made by ADC and any final working capital adjustment. The holdback period is for 18 months following the
closing. In addition, 48,000 units are pledged for the $264,000 note receivable (see Note 3). The previous
owner was granted anti-dilution protection through the issuance of additional Class B units as defined in
the agreement.

The fair value of ADC was as follows:

Description Amount
Cash $ 70,919
Receivables 372,608
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 69,597
Employment agreement 380,000
Customer relationships 230,000
Goodwill 1,449,639
Total assets acquired 2,572,763
Accounts payable and other current liabilities assumed (645,125)
Net Assets Acquired $1,927,638
Irgonomics

In January 2014, the Company acquired certain assets of Irgonomics for $1,787,974. The purchase price
included the issuance of 272,728 Class B units valued at $5.50 per unit ($1,500,000) and $287,794 cash.

Under the purchase agreement, the Company has held back 132,728 units as security for representations
made by Irgonomics and any final working capital adjustment. The holdback period is for 18 months
following the closing.

The fair value of Irgonomics was as follows:

Description Amount
Receivables $ 325,000
Employment agreement 360,000
Customer relationships 130,000
Goodwill 972,794
Total Assets Acquired $1,787,794
8

A



Magnet 360, LLC and Subsidiaries D

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.

Acquisitions (continued)
The above acquisitions were made for the purpose of business expansion.
Members' Equity and Stock Subscription Receivable

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company had Class A voting units and Class B nonvoting units.
Although the Class B units will not permit their holders to vote in Company matters, the Member Control
Agreement does require the Company to obtain the consent of certain holders of Class B units prior to
engaging in certain strategic transactions. The Class B units have priority rights to non-tax related
distributions over Class A units until such time as the Class B members shall have received distributions
equal to the total capital contributions relating to their Class B units. Distributions to the Class A holders will
be made in accordance with the particular series of Class A units held, with the holders of Class A-2 units
receiving priority over the holders of Class A-1 units. The different series of Class A units exists solely to
prioritize the rights of the halders of such units to receive non-tax related distributions after the return of
Class B capital. Certain of the investor agreements contain anti-dilution protection provisions, generally for
a period of 6 - 18 months, that require additional units to be issued to the investor in the event units are
subsequently offered at a lower price. The following is a summary of units as of December 31, 2014
and 2013:

Class A1 Class A-2 ClassB

Units Units Units Total
Balance, December 31, 2012 2,068,633 2,000,000 1,123,215 6,091,848
Stock option exercise - - 100,000 100,000
Purchased shares - capital raise - - 249,398 249,398
Balance, December 31, 2013 2,968,633 2,000,000 1,472,613 6,441,246
Acquisition of ADC : C 294,116 294,116
Acquisition of Irgonomics - - 272,728 272,728
Balance, December 31, 2014 2,968,633 2,000,000 2,039,457 7,008,090

Additional Investors

In November and December 2012, the Company entered into various stock subscription agreements with
investors to purchase 129,164 of Class B units at a cost of $4.15 per unit for a total of $536,030 in
proceeds. In accordance with the agreements, a total of $308,530 was paid prior to December 31, 2012,
and a stock subscription receivable for $227,500 was recorded as of that date for the amounts outstanding.
The amounts were collected in December 2013.

In February 2013, the Company issued an additional 249,398 Class B units at $4.15 for total cash
payments of $1,035,000.

In April 2014, the Company issued an additional 294,116 Class B units at $5.50 as part of the acquisition of
ADC.

In January 2014, the Company issued an additional 272,728 Class B units at $5.50 as part of the
acquisition of Irgonomics.



Magnet 360, LLC and Subsidiaries CONFIDENTIAL

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

4,

Other Receivables

Other receivables consisted of the following:

Long-
December 31, 2014 Current Term Total
Note receivable - employee $ 24,650 $ 24,029 $ 48,679
Note receivable - ADC - 264,527 264,527
Other Receivables $ 24,650 $288,556 $ 313,206
Long-
December 31, 2013 Current Term Total
Note receivable - employee $24,650 $48,100 $ 72,750
Note receivable - Bannerworks, LLC 19,353 - 19,353
Note receivable - former employee 6,775 - 6,775
Other Receivables $50,778 $48,100 $ 98,878

In October 2012, Magnet 360 entered into a promissory note agreement with an employee for $96,485 plus
interest at .84%. The note was a loan to an employee, the proceeds of which were used to purchase
shares of common stock in Reside. Contingent upon employment, the note will be forgiven at 25% of the
outstanding principal and interest accrued each year until 100% has been forgiven.

Note Receivable - ADC

In April 2014, Magnet 360 entered into a promissory note agreement, as amended, with ADC for $264,000
plus interest at 0.28%. Principal and interest are due on the earlier of a change in control, as defined, or
April 15, 2017. If a change in control does not occur prior to April 15, 2017 ADC may extend the maturity
date to April 15, 2022 and the interest rate will be changed to the lowest applicable federal rate then in
effect. The loan is secured by 48,000 pledged units at a unit price of $5.50. Magnet 360 will be permitted
to redeem the pledged units in connection with a change in control and ADC will be permitted to put the
pledged units back to Magnet 360 to repay the loan at any time prior to maturity at a per unit price of $5.50.
If the call or put is not exercised, the note and accrued interest are payable to Magnet 360 upon the
maturity date.
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Magnet 360, LLC and Subsidiaries CONFIDENTIAL
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following:

December 31 2014 2013

Computers and office equipment

$ 513,076 $ 354,538

Software 135,594 17,617
Furniture and fixtures 278,434 170,242
Leasehold improvements 368,875 331,623
Total cost 1,295,979 874,020
Less accumulated depreciation 498,583 259,038
Property and Equipment $ 797,396 $614,982

Investments
Cost Method Investments

enStratus Network, LLC

In May 2013, Magnet 360 sold its ownership interest and recorded a gain on the sale of $1,177,001, which
represented the proceeds in excess of their cost. Magnet received $922,965 in cash and the remaining
$270,036 is in an escrow receivable account at December 31, 2013. The balance of $270,036 plus

interest was received in December 2014.

Intangible Assets

Other intangible assets are stated at their cost [ess accumulated amortization computed on the straight-line
basis except for certain customer lists that are amortized on an accelerated method and consist of the

following:
Estimated Accumulated

December 31, 2014 Useful Life Cost Amortization Net
Trademark 5 years 16,085 $ 16,085 § -
Website domain 5 years 11,693 11,693 -
Customer lists/relationships 3-5years 1,676,699 1,495719 180,980
Employment agreements 2 -3 years 740,000 234,000 506,000
Total $2,444477 § 1,757,497 $686,980

C 11
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Magnet 360, LLC and Subsidiaries CONFIDENTIAL

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

7.

Intangible Assets (continued)

Estimated Accumulated
December 31, 2013 Useful Life Cost Amortization Net
Trademark Syears $ 16,085 $ 16,085 § -
Website domain 5 years 11,693 11,693 -
Customer lists/relationships 3-5years 1,316,700 980,613 336,087
Total $1,344,478 $ 1,008,391 $ 336,087

Future amortization of intangible assets is estimated to be as follows:

Year Amount
2015 $ 383,397
2016 294,000
2017 9,583
Total $ 686,980

Bank Line of Credit

in September 2013, the Company obtained a $1,500,000 line of credit, subject to a borrowing base,
maturing September 2015. The line of credit bears monthly interest at the greater of prime (3.25% at
December 31, 2014 and 2013) plus 0.75% or 4.50%. Borrowings are collateralized by substantially all
Company assets, and are subject to certain financial requirements. At December 31, 2014, the balance
outstanding on the line of credit was $600,000.

The Company had a $750,000 bank line of credit that was paid off in January 2013. Interest was payable
monthly at prime plus 1.75% with a minimum rate of 5.25%.

Long-Term Debt

In May 2011, the Company entered into a $200,000 multiple advancing term loan agreement bearing
interest at 6.25%. On December 5, 2011, the loan agreement was drawn upon in the amount of $200,000.
Effective December 15, 2011, the loan was converted into a term loan bearing interest at 6.25%, an
interest only payment was due through December 31, 2011 with monthly principal and interest payments of
$4,741 beginning January 31, 2012 through December 31, 2015. The agreement contained restrictive
financial covenants as to levels of tangible net worth, and other nonfinancial covenants, and was
collateralized by substantially all Company assets. This loan was paid in full in September 2013.

12



Magnet 360, LLC and Subsidiaries

CONFIDENTIAL

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

10.

1.

12,

Long-Term Debt (continued)

Effective January 1, 2012, the Company assumed a note payable between a member and Reside with an
outstanding balance of $64,148. The note was due in monthly installments of $1,606 including interest at
5.125%. The note was subordinated to the term note; the Company was permitted to make the scheduled
principal and interest payments; however, no prepayments could be made on the note until the term note
was paid in full. This note was paid in full in November 2013.

In October 2012, the Company entered into a related party $500,000 note payable with interest at 0.93%.
The note had monthly payments due of $5,000 per month for the first twelve months, $10,000 for the next
twelve months, and $15,000 for each month thereafter until paid in full. This note was paid in full in
November 2013.

Interest expense paid to related parties was $3,829 for the year ended December 31, 2013,
Retirement Plan

The Company sponsors a 401(k) profit sharing plan for employees who are 18 years of age and have met
certain other eligibility requirements. The Plan allows an employee to contribute up to the limitation
established by the Internal Revenue Service. The Company may make discretionary matching and other
voluntary contributions to the Plan, as determined annually. The Company made matching contributions of
$189,098 and $146,027 for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Share-Based Compensation

In May 2013, the Company granted certain executive officers of the Company options to purchase a total of
200,000 Class B units for 10 years at $4.15 per unit. The options vest immediately prior to, but conditioned
upon, the occurrence of any merger, consolidation or sale of all or substantially all of the assets or
membership interests of the Company. The vested portion of options is exercisable only upon a change in
control, as defined. No unit option compensation expense was recorded due to uncertainty that these
events would occur.

Employee Option Plan

On November 23, 2010, the Company adopted the Magnet 360 Employee Option Plan. The Plan has
reserved 9,120,000 employee units for issuance pursuant to the Plan. The Board has approved the grant of
options up to 3,940,000 at an exercise price of $.30 per unit. As of December 31, 2014, there are
1,968,750 units available for issuance. The term of each option shall not exceed ten years from the date of
the grant. The options vest over three years, or immediately upon a change in control, as defined. The
options are forfeited upon termination of employment.

During 2013, the Company issued 2,000,000 options at an exercise price of $.30 per unit to a consultant.
Upon an exit event, as defined, the Company is required to pay the consultant a contingent bonus of the
lesser of $600,000 or the current value of these options. In the event the consulting service agreement
with the Company is terminated for any reason, the consultant has agreed to provide services to the
Company under a retainer agreement. These options were forfeited in 2014 due to the Irgonomics
acquisition.

The vested portion of options is exercisable only upon a change in control, as defined. No unit option
compensation expense was recorded due to uncertainty that a change in control would occur.

G 13



Magnet 360, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

12,

13.

Employee Option Plan (continued)

Unit option changes were as follows:

CONFIDENTTIAL

Weighted-
Average
Weighted- Remaining
Average Contractual
Exercise Term (in
Description Options Price years)
Outstanding, December 31, 2013 7,754,250 $ 0.30 8.76
Granted 2,112,500 0.30 -
Forfeited, including 435,289 vested units (2,715,500) 0.30 -
Outstanding, December 31, 2014 7,151,250 0.30 7.98
Vested at December 31, 2014 4,579,343 $ 0.30 7.35
Nonvested unit option changes during 2014 were as follows:
Description Options
Nonvested - December 31, 2013 4,547,534
Granted 2,112,500
Forfeited (2,280,211)
Vested (1,807,916)
Nonvested - December 31, 2014 2,571,907

Operating Leases

In January 2011, the Company entered into a sublease agreement with a nonrelated party through
December 2015. Effective December 1, 2013, the sublease agreement was amended due to increase in
the office space leased and extended through November 2018. The renewed lease requires monthly base
payments of $39,408, increasing 2.5% annually. Total rent expense was $499,156 and $287,386 in 2014

and 2013, respectively.

Future minimum rents under this lease agreement are as follows:

Year Total
2015 $ 600,000
2016 635,000
2017 545,000
2018 479,000
Total $2,259,000
14



Magnet 360, LLC and Subsidiaries

CONFIDENTIAL

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

13.

14.

185.

16.

Operating Leases (continued)

Effective May 2011, the Company entered into a lease agreement with a nonrelated party for office space
in New York on a month-to-month basis for use of phones, common space, and certain office equipment. In
2014, monthly rent was $4,500 for January through July. In August 2014, monthly rent increased to
$10,250 for additional space rented. Total rent expense was $102,183 and $30,900 in 2014 and 2013,
respectively.

Effective October 2013, the Company entered into a lease agreement with a nonrelated party for office
space in Chicago on a month-to-month basis at $1,050 per month plus fees for use of phones, common
space, and certain office equipment. In 2014, monthly rent was $1,750 plus fees for January - August. In
September 2014, monthly rent increased to $4,410 for additional space rented. Total rent expense was
$34,085 and $4,020 in 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Effective April 2014, in connection with the ADC acquisition, the Company entered into a lease agreement
with a non-related party for office space in Los Angeles through March 2017. The agreement requires
monthly base payments of $8,463, increasing annually. Total rent expense was $83,187 in 2014.

Related Party Transactions

Service Agreement

The Company has an agreement with Gage Marketing Group, LLC to pay them 50% of its gross channel
marketing revenue for licensing, client support and professional services and 97.5% for certain media and
listed services. Total amounts paid to Gage Marketing Group, LLC under this agreement were $8,199,645
and $10,970,843 for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Employment Agreements

The Company has various employment agreements with several members of management. The
agreements include profit sharing and/or bonus arrangements, liquidation event bonuses, and other
provisions.

Concentrations

One customer accounted for 24% and 47% of the Company's consolidated revenue as of December 31,
2014 and 2013, respectively.

The same customer accounted for 49% of accounts receivable for the year ended December 31, 2013.
Supplementary Disclosures of Cash Flow Information

Additional cash flow information consisted of the following:

Year Ended December 31 2014 2013
Cash paid for interest $ 11,482 § 10611
Noncash investing and financing activities:
Units issued as a result of acquisitions 3,117,638 -
15
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Magnet 360, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
17. Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated subsequent events through March 13, 2015, the date at which the
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.

During the period January 1, 2015 through March 13, 2015, the Company issued an additional 452,000
units under the employee option plan at an exercise price of $.30 per unit. In addition, 158,500 units were
forfeited during this period.
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BEST. 1940

Independent Auditor's Report

The Members
Magnet 360, LLC and Subsidiaries
Minneapolis, Minnesota

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Magnet 360, LLC and Subsidiaries
which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, members' equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the
related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Magnet 360, LLC and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the results of
their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.
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Magnet 360, LLC and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31 2015 2014
ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash $ 83,607 $ 22,743

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts

of approximately $47,000 and $25,000 4,603,683 5,703,577

Prepaid expenses and other assets 398,799 728,077

Member contributions receivable - transaction costs 3,608,157 -

Unbilled receivables 690,908 216,292

Current maturities of other receivables 348,911 24,650
Total Current Assets 9,734,065 6,695,339
Property and Equipment 708,032 797,396
Other Receivables - less current maturities - 288,556
Goodwill 6,955,863 6,955,863
Intangible Assets - 686,980
Total Assets $17,397,960 $15,424,134
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities

Line of credit $ - $ 600,000

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 992,945 831,398

Accrued transaction costs - current portion 3,689,232 -

Accounts payable - related parties - 30,471

Due to Gage Group, LLC 11,462 19,334

Deferred revenue 1,372,480 2,186,439
Total Current Liabilities 6,066,119 3,667,642
Accrued Transaction Costs, net of current portion 1,126,162 -
Total Liabilities 7,192,281 3,667,642
Members' Equity 10,205,679 11,756,492
Total Liabilities and Equity $17,397,960 $15,424,134

~<].
Y

See notes to consolidated financial statements.



Magnet 360, LLC and Subsidiaries

Consolldated Statements of Operations

Years Ended December 31

2015

2014

Revenue $ 25,078,816 $ 26,599,676
Direct Costs 13,197,102 16,745,298
Gross Profit 11,881,713 9,854,378
Operating Expenses 12,015,759 10,105,589
Loss from Operations (134,046) (251,211)
Other Expense
Other expense (22,011) (148)
Debt forgiveness (49,055) (24,850)
Interest expense (1,067) (11,182)
Transaction costs (4,926,059) -
Total Other Expense {4,998,192) (35,980)
Net Loss $ (5,132,238) $  (287,191)

See notes to consolidated financlal statements.



Magnet 360, LLC and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Members' Equity

Members'
Equity
Balance, December 31, 2013 $ 8,926,045
Acquisition of ADC 1,617,638
Acquisition of rgonomics 1,500,000
Net loss (287,191)
Balance, December 31, 2014 11,756,492
Redemption of units (15,000)
Member contributions - transaction costs 3,608,157
Member distributions (11,732)
Net loss (5,132,238)
Balance, December 31, 2015 $ 10,205,679

See notes to consolidated financial statements.



Magnet 360, LLC and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31 2015 2014
Operating Activities
Net loss $(5132,238) $ (287,191)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided (used)
by operating activities:
Depreciation 301,044 242,009
Amortization 383,400 749,107
Impairment of intangible assets 303,580 -
Transaction costs 4,734,319 -
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 23,605 1,671
Interest added to notes receivable (1,592) (1,108)
Debt forgiveness 49,055 24,650
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 1,099,894 (340,076)
Unbilled receivables (474,613) 1,964
Prepaid expenses and other assets 329,278 (287,928)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 242,619 (434,538)
Accounts payable - related parties (30,471) (33,699)
Due to - Gage Group, LLC (7,872) (2,176,079)
Deferred revenue (813,959) 1,292,184
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 1,006,049 (1,249,032)
Investing Activities
Purchases of property and equipment (236,435) (426,094)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 1,150 -
Escrow receivable - 270,036
Payments received on notes receivable - 26,128
Acquisition of Irgonomics and ADC, net of cash acquired - (526,875)
Net Cash Used by Investing Activities (235,285) (656,805)
Financing Activities
Proceeds on line of credit 800,000 1,300,000
Payments on line of credit (1,400,000) (700,000)
Issuance of notes receivable (83,168) (264,000)
Member distributions (11,732) -
Redemption of units (15,000) -
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities (709,900) 336,000
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 60,864 (1,569,837)
Cash
Beginning of year 22,743 1,592,580
End of year $ 83,607 $ 22,743
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
Ch



Magnet 360, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
1. Nature of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Business

Magnet 360, LLC (Magnet 360) was organized in Minnesota on March 25, 2008. The Company is a
marketing and technology services consultancy focused on delivering marketing solutions based on
Saleforce.com technology.

Principles of Consolidation/Accounting for Investments in Affiliated Entities

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Magnet 360 and its wholly
owned affiliates Reside, Inc. and M360 Investments (including its wholly owned subsidiary Numerical Truth)
(collectively, the Company). All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.

Unit Purchase Transaction

In January 2016, the Members of the Company entered into an agreement to sell all Company units in a
purchase transaction. Upon the closing of the transaction, the Company became wholly owned by the
purchaser. As this transaction constitutes a change of control as defined by the employee option purchase
plan (Note 10) and certain employment agreements (Note 12) the Company recorded approximately $4.7
million of employee related expense for the year ended December 31, 2015 and a contribution receivable
from the selling members for the funding of employee related expenses of approximately $3.6 million at
December 31, 2015. In addition, the selling members assumed approximately $1.8 million of transaction
costs which therefore were not recorded by the Company.

The following is a summary of transaction costs for the year ended December 31, 2015:

Description Amount

Transaction fees and other $ 191,740
Employee option plan - closing* 1,851,672
Change in control compensation and severance - closing* 1,756,585
Employee option plan - earnout 1,126,162
Total $4,926,059

* Funded by member contribution,

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
may affect certain reported amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements and
accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Significant estimates include the
allowance for doubtful accounts receivable, purchase price allocations, useful lives and carrying value of
goodwill and intangible assets, the value of units issued for acquisitions, and the contingent Employee
Option Plan obligation. The estimates could differ significantly under different assumptions or conditions,
and it is at least reasonably possible that the estimates used will change within the near term.



Magnet 360, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
1. Nature of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue Recognition

Revenue ijs earned by the Company through the delivery of technical consulting services to its clients.
Revenue is recognized based on time and materials provided to clients. The Company also provides media
services. Revenue on media services is recognized upon delivery to the client.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue consists primarily of services and licensing fees billed in advance.
Credit Risk

The Company maintains cash balances which at times may exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation limit. The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts, and management
believes the Company is not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash.

Accounts Receivable

Management reviews individual accounts as they become past due to determine collectability. The
allowance for doubtful accounts is adjusted periodically based on management's consideration of past due
accounts. Individual accounts are charged against the allowance when collection efforts have been
exhausted.

Unbilled Receivables

The Company recoghizes fee revenue as hours are worked on behalf of its clients. Unbilled receivables
include the cost and expected profit on work completed but not billed. Management reviews unbilled
receivables monthly to determine collectability.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Property and equipment
acquisitions which exceed $500 and have an estimated useful life of one year or more are capitalized.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of generally three to
five years. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lesser of the useful lives of the assets or the
lease term.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are recorded at cost and are amortized over their estimated useful lives. The Company
periodically reviews intangible assets for impairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may not be recoverable.

Goodwill

Goodwill is not amortized, but is tested for impairment annually. Management determined there was no
impairment in 2015 or 2014,



Magnet 360, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
1. Nature of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Deferred Rent

Certain leases contain escalating rent terms. The Company recognized rent expense on a straight-line
basis. Deferred rent represents the difference between straight-line rent and contractual payments.

Marketing

Marketing costs are expensed when incurred. Total marketing expense was $257,759 and $212,718 in
2015 and 2014, respectively.

Income Taxes

Profits and losses at the Company are reported on the income tax returns of the members. Accordingly, no
provision for income taxes is recorded by the Company.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require management to evaluate
tax positions taken by the Company and recognize a tax liability (or asset) if the Company has taken an
uncertain position that more likely than not would not be sustained upon examination by the Internal
Revenue Service. Management has analyzed the tax positions taken by the Company and has concluded
that as of December 31, 2015, there are no uncertain positions taken or expected to be taken that would
require recognition of a liability (or asset) or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. The
Company is subject to routine audits by taxing jurisdictions. The Internal Revenue Service conducted an
examination of the Company's federal income tax return for tax year 2012 without any adjustment to the tax
return. Management believes the Company is no longer subject to income tax examinations for years prior
to 2012.

2. Acquisitions
American Data Company (ADC

In April 2014, the Company acquired certain assets and liabilities of American Data Company (ADC) for
$1,927,638. The purchase included the issuance of 294,116 Class B units valued at $5.50 per unit
($1,617,638) and $310,000 cash.

Under the purchase agreement, the Company has held back 61,528 units as security for representations
made by ADC and any final working capital adjustment. The holdback period is for 18 months following the
closing. In addition, 48,000 units are pledged for the $264,000 note receivable (see Note 3). The previous
owner was granted anti-dilution protection through the issuance of additional Class B units as defined in the
agreement.



Magnet 360, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2,

Acquisitions (continued)

The fair value of ADC was as follows:

Description Amount
Cash $ 70919
Receivables 372,608
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 69,597
Employment agreement 380,000
Customer relationships 230,000
Goodwill 1,449,639
Total assets acquired 2,572,763
Accounts payable and other current liabilities assumed (645,125)
Net Assets Acquired $1,927,638

Irgonomics

In January 2014, the Company acquired certain assets of lIrgonomics for $1,787,974. The purchase price
included the issuance of 272,728 Class B units valued at $5.50 per unit ($1,500,000) and $287,794 cash.

Under the purchase agreement, the Company has held back 132,728 units as security for representations
made by Irgonomics and any final working capital adjustment. The holdback period is for 18 months

following the closing.

The fair value of Irgonomics was as follows:

Description Amount

Receivables $ 325,000
Employment agreement 360,000
Customer relationships 130,000
Goodwill 972,794
Total Assets Acquired $1,787,794

The above acquisitions were made for the purpose of business expansion.



Magnet 360, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

3.

Members' Equity and Stock Subscription Receivable

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company had Class A voting units and Class B nonvoting units.
Although the Class B units will not permit their holders to vote in Company matters, the Member Control
Agreement does require the Company to obtain the consent of certain holders of Class B units prior to
engaging in certain strategic transactions. The Class B units have priority rights to non-tax related
distributions over Class A units until such time as the Class B members shall have received distributions
equal to the total capital contributions relating to their Class B units. Distributions to the Class A holders will
be made in accordance with the particular series of Class A units held, with the holders of Class A-2 units
receiving priority over the holders of Class A-1 units. The different series of Class A units exists solely to
prioritize the rights of the holders of such units to receive non-tax related distributions after the return of
Class B capital. Certain of the investor agreements contain anti-dilution protection provisions, generally for a
period of 6 - 18 months, that require additional units to be issued to the investor in the event units are

subsequently offered at a lower price. The following is a summary of units as of December 31, 2015 and
2014:

Class A-1 Class A-2 Class B

Units Units Units Total
Balance, December 31, 2013 2,968,633 2,000,000 1,472,613 6,441,246
Acquisition of ADC - - 294,116 294,116
Acquisition of Irgonomics - - 272,728 272,728
Balance, December 31, 2014 2,968,633 2,000,000 2,039,457 7,008,090
Redemption of units - - (5,338) (5,338)
Balance, December 31, 2015 2,968,633 2,000,000 2,034,119 7,002,752

Additional Investors

In April 2014, the Company issued an additional 294,116 Class B units at $5.50 as part of the acquisition of
ADC.

In January 2014, the Company issued an additional 272,728 Class B units at $5.50 as part of the acquisition
of Irgonomics.

Other Receivables

Other receivables consisted of the following:

Long-
December 31, 2015 Current Term Total
Note receivable - employees $ 83645 % - $ 83,645
Note receivable - ADC 265,266 - 265,266
Other Receivables $348911 § - $ 348,911
X



Magnet 360, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

4,

Other Receivables (continued)

Long-
December 31, 2014 Current Term Total
Note receivable - employee $ 24650 $ 24,029 $ 48,679
Note receivable - ADC - 264,527 264,527
Other Receivables $ 24,650 $288,556 $ 313,206

In April 2015, Magnet 360 entered into a promissory nate with an executive employee and shareholder for
$71,850 plus interest at 0.85%. Principal and interest were due on the earlier of a change in control, as
defined, or April 15, 2018. In January 2016, upon the change of control the employee repaid the note and
accrued interest.

In December 2015, Magnet 360 entered into a promissory note with an executive employee and
shareholder for $11,318 plus interest at 0.95%. Principal and interest were due on the earlier of a change in
control, as defined, or April 15, 2017. The loan was secured by 2,058 pledged units at a unit price of $5.50.
As permitted, Magnet 360 redeemed the pledged units in connection with the change in control in January
2016, and the employee pledged the units back to Magnet 360 to repay the loan at a per unit price of $5.50.

In October 2012, Magnet 360 entered into a promissory note agreement with an employee for $96,485 plus
interest at .84%. The note was a loan to an employee, the proceeds of which were used to purchase shares
of common stock in Reside. Contingent upon employment, the note was to be forgiven at 25% of the
outstanding principal and interest accrued each year until 100% has been forgiven. In 2015, the Company
forgave the remaining balance on the note of $49,055.

Note Receivable - ADC

In April 2014, Magnet 360 entered into a promissory note agreement, as amended, with ADC for $264,000
plus interest at 0.28%. Principal and interest were due on the earlier of a change in control, as defined, or
April 15, 2017. The loan was secured by 48,000 pledged units at a unit price of $5.50. As permitted, Magnet
360 redeemed the pledged units in connection with the change in control in January 2016, and ADC
pledged the units back to Magnet 360 to repay the loan at a per unit price of $5.50.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following:

December 31 2015 2014

Computers and office equipment $ 648,694 $ 513,076
Software 136,754 135,594
Furniture and fixtures 317,118 278,434
Leasehold improvements 388,022 368,875
Total cost 1,490,588 1,295,979
Less accumulated depreciation 782,556 498,583
Property and Equipment $ 708,032 $§ 797,396

11



Magnet 360, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

6.

Investments

enStratus Network, LLC

In May 2013, Magnet 360 sold its ownership interest and recorded a gain on the sale of $1,177,001, which
represented the proceeds in excess of their cost. Magnet received $922,965 in cash and the remaining
$270,036 is in an escrow receivable account at December 31, 2013. The balance of $270,036 plus interest
was received in December 2014.

Intangible Assets

Other intangible assets are stated at their cost less accumulated amortization computed on the straight-line
basis except for certain customer lists that are amortized on an accelerated method and consist of the
following:

Estimated Accumulated
December 31, 2015 Useful Life Cost Amortization Net
Trademark Syears $ 16,085 $ 16,085 $ -
Website domain 5 years 11,693 11,693 -
Customer lists/relationships 3-5years 1,676,699 1,676,699 -
Employment agreements 2 - 3 years 740,000 740,000 -
Total $2,444 477 § 2444477 § -

Estimated Accumulated
December 31, 2014 Useful Life Cost Amortization Net
Trademark S5years $ 16,085 $ 16,085 $ -
Website domain 5 years 11,693 11,693 B
Customer lists/relationships 3-5years 1,676,699 1,495,719 180,980
Employment agreements 2 - 3 years 740,000 234,000 506,000
Total $2,444,477 $ 1,757,497 $ 686,980

In 2015 management determined that the intangible assets were impaired and recorded an impairment loss
of $303,580.

Bank Line of Credit

In September 2013, the Company obtained a $1,500,000 line of credit, subject to a borrowing base,
maturing September 2015, The line of credit was extended to September 2016. The line of credit bears
monthly interest at the greater of prime (3.50% and 3.25% at December 31, 2015 and 2014) plus 0.75%
with a minimum rate of 4.50%. Borrowings are collateralized by substantially all Company assets, and are
subject to certain financial requirements. The balance outstanding on the line of credit was $0 and $600,000
at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

oY
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Magnet 360, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

9.

10.

Retirement Plan

The Company sponsors a 401(k) profit sharing plan for employees who are 18 years of age and have met
certain other eligibility requirements. The Plan allows an employee to contribute up to the limitation
established by the Internal Revenue Service. The Company may make discretionary matching and other
voluntary contributions to the Plan, as determined annually. The Company made matching contributions of
approximately $247,800 and $189,000 for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Employee Option Plan

On November 23, 2010, the Company adopted the Magnet 360 Employee Option Plan. The Plan has
reserved 9,120,000 employee units for issuance pursuant to the Plan. The Board has approved the grant of
options up to 3,940,000 at an exercise price of $.30 per unit. As of December 31, 2015, there are 1,119,250
units available for issuance. The term of each option shall not exceed ten years from the date of the grant.
The options vest over three years, or immediately upon a change in control, as defined. The options are
forfeited ninety days after termination of employment.

During 2013, the Company issued 2,000,000 options at an exercise price of $.30 per unit to a consultant.
Upon an exit event, as defined, the Company is required to pay the consultant a contingent bonus of the
lesser of $600,000 or the current value of these options. In the event the consulting service agreement with
the Company is terminated for any reason, the consultant has agreed to provide services to the Company
under a retainer agreement. These options were forfeited in 2014 due to the Irgonomics acquisition.

In 2015, the Company determined that employee options granted from 2010 through 2014 were issued with
a strike price higher than the fair market value of the units subject to the option at the date of grant. In order
to correct this, the Company committed to provide supplemental cash payments to the affected employees
upon exercise of the options. The total cost of the change in exercise price was approximately $1.3 million
and was paid upon exercise of the options as a result of the change in control.

The vested portion of options is exercisable only upon a change in control, as defined. The majority of the
options, approximately 7,872,000 at December 31, 2015, provide that employees receive compensation
from the Company for their prorated share from the change of control transaction as if they held the units
from exercise; however, under the terms of the agreement, employees do not actually receive units or
obtain any other member rights. Prior to December 31, 2015, the Company had not recorded compensation
expense related to the employee unit option plan due to uncertainty that a change in control would occur. As
a result of the Unit Purchase Transaction, completed in January 2016, this uncertainty no longer remained.
The Company recorded employee option plan expense of $2,977,734 for the year ended December 31,
2015 for the estimated amount to be paid to employees. Of this amount, $1,851,572 was paid to employees
upon closing in January 2016. The balance of $1,216,162 is to be paid in 2017 and 2018, and was
estimated assuming all relative performance measures will be met based on an earnout formula specified in
the Unit Purchase Transaction. The Company's selling members agreed that their proceeds from the Unit
Purchase Transaction would be reduced to pay the portion attributable to the employee stock option plan
and certain other change in control expenses at closing; the Company recorded a member contribution
receivable at December 31, 2015 for such amount.

g
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Magnet 360, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

10.

1.

Employee Option Plan (continued)

Unit option changes were as follows:

Weighted-
Average
Weighted- Remaining
Average Contractual
Exercise Term (in

Description Options Price years)
Outstanding, December 31, 2014 7,151,250 $ 0.30 7.98
Granted 1,415,000 0.30 -
Forfeited, including 160,615 vested units (565,500) 0.30 -
Outstanding, December 31, 2015 8,000,750 0.30 7.45
Vested at December 31, 2015 5,829,664 $ 0.30 6.74

Nonvested unit option changes during 2015 were as follows:

Description Options

Nonvested - December 31, 2014 2,571,907
Granted 1,415,000
Forfeited (404,885)
Vested (1,410,936)
Nonvested - December 31, 2015 2,171,086

Operating Leases

In January 2011, the Company entered into a sublease agreement with a nonrelated party through
December 2015. Effective December 1, 2013, the sublease agreement was amended due to increase in the
office space leased and extended through November 2018. The renewed lease requires monthly base
payments of $39,408, increasing 2.5% annually. Total rent expense was $497,136 and $499,156 in 2015
and 2014, respectively.

Effective April 2014, in connection with the ADC acquisition, the Company entered into a lease agreement
with a non-related party for office space in Los Angeles through March 2017. The agreement requires
monthly base payments of $8,463, increasing annually. Total rent expense was $99,733 and $83,187 in
2015 and 2014, respectively.

The Company has recorded a deferred rent liability in relation to these leases of approximately $36,700 and
$25,300 as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

I2
A
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Magnet 360, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

11.

12.

13.

Operating Leases (continued)

Future minimum rents under these lease agreements are as follows:

Year Total

2016 $ 635,000
2017 545,000
2018 479,000
Total $ 1,659,000

Effective May 2011, the Company entered into a lease agreement with a nonrelated party for office space in
New York on a month-to-month basis for use of phones, common space, and certain office equipment. In
2014, monthly rent was $4,500 for January through July. In August 2014, monthly rent increased to $10,250
for additional space rented. Total rent expense was $123,000 and $102,183 in 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Effective October 2013, the Company entered into a lease agreement with a nonrelated party for office
space in Chicago on a month-to-month basis at $1,050 per month plus fees for use of phones, common
space, and certain office equipment. In 2014, monthly rent was $1,750 plus fees for January - August. In
September 2014, monthly rent increased to $4,410 for additional space rented. In 2015, the monthly rent
increased to $8,945 for additional space rented. Total rent expense was $76,700 and $34,085 in 2015 and
2014, respectively.

In September 2015, the Company entered into a lease agreement for an apartment in Los Angeles for
$6,500 per month plus utilities, expiring in September 2016.

Related Party Transactions

Service Agreement

The Company has an agreement with Gage Marketing Group, LLC to pay them 50% of its gross channel
marketing revenue for licensing, client support and professional services and 97.5% for certain media and
listed services. Total amounts paid to Gage Marketing Group, LLC under this agreement were $264,043
and $8,199,645 for the years ended Diecember,. 31, 2015,and 2014, respectively.

Employment Agreements

The Company has various employf/'rﬁ‘éhf agreements  with several members of management. The
agreements include profit sharing and/or bonus arrangements, liquidation event bonuses, and other
provisions. As a result of the Unit Purchase Transaction completed in January 2016, the Company recorded
an accrual as of December 31, 2015 for approximately $750,000 in severance and $71,000 in benefits
related to these agreements.

Concentrations

One customer accounted for 12% of the Company's consolidated accounts receivable balance at
December 31, 2015.

One customer accounted for 24% of the Company's consolidated revenue as of December 31, 2014.

15
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Magnet 360, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

14,

15.

Supplementary Disclosures of Cash Flow Information

Additional cash flow information consisted of the following:

Year Ended December 31 2015 2014
Cash paid for interest $ 1,067 $ 11,182
Noncash investing and financing activities:
Units issued as a result of acquisitions - 3,117,638
Transaction costs funded by member contributions 3,608,157 -

Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated subsequent events through April 8, 2016, the date at which the consolidated

financial statements were available to be issued.

X
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Magnet 360, LLC
Consolidated balance sheet

Note As at
March 31,2016
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' funds
Share capital .11 968,861,718
Reserves and surplus 3.1.2 (326,706,902)
642,154,816
Current liabilities Té
Short-term borrowings 3.2, 14,907,375
Trade payables
Payable to micro and small enterprises (Refer note 3.10)
Others 24,371,697
Other current liabilities 322 243,394,229
282,673,301
924,828,117
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Goodwill on consolidation 460,860,681
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 3.3.1 39,436,733
Intangible assets 33.1 3,315,572
Capital work-in-progress - :
503,612,986
Current assets
Trade receivables 3.4.1 321,061,764
Cash and bank balances 342 19,144,777
Short-term loans and advances 343 45,489,153
Other current assets 344 35,519,437
_ 421,215,131
924,828,117
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts 2&3 S

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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Magnet 360, LLC

Consolidated statement of profit and loss

Particulars

Revenue from operations
Other income
Total revenues

Expense:

Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses

Total expenses

Profit before tax

Tax expense:
Current tax

Deferred tax

Profit for the period

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

Note For the period 'January 19, 2015 to

March 31,2016

428,005,830

35 8,233

428,014,063

3.6 343,053,994

36 7,442

33.1 5,072,996
36 95,747,891

2&3

‘The notes referred to above form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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" Parthasarathy N §

Director

443,882,323
(15,868,260)

139,695

(16,007,955)

For Magnet 360, LLC
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Director

Place: Bengaiuru
Date : April 18, 2016
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Magnet 360, LLC
Consolidated cash flow statement

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax

Adjustments for :

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Finance costs

Loss on sale of fixed assets

Effect of exchange differences on translation of foreign
currency cash and cash equivalents

Operating profit before working capital changes
Changes in trade receivables

Changes in loans and advances and other assets
Changes in liabilities and provisions

Net cash provided by operating activities before taxes
Income taxes paid

Net cash provided by operating activitles

Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of fixed assets

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets

Investment in subsidiaries

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities

Finance costs

Proceeds from short-term loans

Net cash used in financing activities

Effect of exchange differences on translation of foreign
currency cash and cash equivalents

Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents
Opening cash balance in Magnet 360 L.L.C

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer note 3.4.2)

For the period 'January 19, 2015 to
31-Mar-16

(16,007,955)

5,209,742

7,442

27,068
(602,081)

(11,365,784)
(16,503,717)
3,237,547
(219,456,523)
(244,088,478)

' (244,088,478)

(1,057,010)
54,329
238,697,644

237,694,963

(7,442)
14,907,375
14,899,933

602,081
9,108,499
10,036,278

19,144,777

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

P
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7 1/«, For Magnet 360, LLC
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Parthasarathy N § Radha R

Director Director

Place: Bengaluru
Date : April 18,2016



Magnet 360, LL.C
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts
For the three months period ended March 31, 2016

L

2.1

2.2

2.3

Background

Magnet 360 (the "Company"), an Minnesota based Company, was founded in 2008. Mindtree Limited acquired the
100% holding of this entity from the promoters of the Company. The Company offers marketing and technology
services consultancy focused on delivering marketing solutions based on Saleforce.com technology. The Company has
three fully owned subsidiaries, Reside LLC, M360 Investments, LL.C and Numerical Truth, LLC (The Company and
its subsidiaries together called "the Group").

Significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

These consolidated financial statements are prepared solely for the purpose of consolidation with Mindtree Limited and
presented in accordance with Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) under the historical cost

convention on the accrual basis and for the period January 19, 2016 (nearest practicable date to the date of acquisition)
to March 31, 2016.

Principles of consolidation

The financial statements of Magnet 360 LLC and its wholly owned and controlled subsidiary has been combined on a
line-by-line basis by adding together the book values of all items of assets, liabilities, incomes and expenses after
eliminating all inter-company balances/ transactions and the resultant unrealized gain/loss from the date the parent
company acquired control of those subsidiaries.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for similar transactions and other
events in similar circumstances.

Use of estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles in
India requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of income and expenses
of the period, assets and liabilities and disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as of the date of the financial
statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Any revision to accounting eslimates is recognised
prospectively in future periods.

4



Magnet 360, LLC
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts
For the three months period ended March 31, 2016
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Fixed assets and depreciatlon

Fixed assets are carried at cost of acquisition (including directly attributable costs such as freight, installation, etc.) or
construction less accumulated depreciation. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of those
fixed assets, which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use, are capitalised.

Acquired intangible assets are capitalised at the acquisition price. Internally generated intangible assets are recorded at
cost that can be measured reliably during the development phase and when it is probable that future economic benefits
that are attributable to the assets will flow to the Group.

Leases under which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Such assets are capitalised at fair value of the asset or present value of the minimum lease payments at the
inception of the lease, whichever is lower. Lease payments under operating lcases are recognised as an expense in the
statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets, outstanding at each balance sheet date are shown under capital
advances. The cost of the tixed asset not ready for its intended use on such date, is disclosed under capital work-in-
progress.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less the estimated residual value of tangible fixed assets by equal
instalments over their estimated useful economic lives as follows:

Assets classification Useful life
Computer systems 3 years
Computer software 3 years
Furniture and fixtures 7 vears
Office equipment 5 years

The Group believes that the useful lives as given above best represent the useful lives of these assets based on internal
assessment and supported by technical advice where necessary.

The cost of leasehold land is amortised over the period of the lease. Leasehold improvements and assets acquired on
finance lease are amortised over the lease term or useful life. whichever is lower.

Investments

Non-current investments are carried at cost less any other-than-temporary diminution in value, determined on the
specific identification basis.

Current investments are carried at the lower of cost and fair value. The comparison of cost and fair value is carried out
separately in respect of each investment.

Profit or loss on sale of investments is determined as the difference between the sale price and carrying value of
investrent, détemmined individually for each investment,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated cash flow stutement comprises cash-in-hand and batance in bank in
current accounts and deposit accounts that are highly liquid and are readily convertible to known amount of cash.
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts
For the three months period ended March 31, 2016
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2.10

2.10.t

2.10.2

2.10.3

2.10.4

Consolidated cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby consolidated net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects
of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash
flows from regular revenue generating, investing and financing activities of the group are segregated.

Employee benefits

Contributions payable to the Providend and other plans, which are a defined contribution scheine, are charged to the
statement of profit and loss in the period in which the employee renders services.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is earned by the Company through the delivery of technical consulting setvices to its clients. Revenue from
technical consulting services on time-and-material basis is recognised as the related services are rendered. Revenue
from media services is vecognized upon delivery to the client.

Provision for discounts is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with contractual terms of agreements with
customers. Revenues are stated net of volume discount.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
[nterest income is recognised using the time proportion method, based on the transactional interest rates.
Foreign excliange transactions

Foreign exchange transactions are recorded using the exchange rates prevailing on the dates of the respective
transactions. Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the period are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit and loss for the period.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at the balance sheet date are translated at the
closing exchange rates on that date; the resultant exchange differences are recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit and loss. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are
reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

In respect of integral operations, monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rate prevailing at the date
of the balauce sheet. Non-monetary items are translated at the historical rate. The items in the consolidated statement of
profit and loss are translated at the rates prevailing on the dates of the respective transactions. The differences arising
out of the translation are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

In respect of non-integral operations, assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the
balance sheet. The items in the consolidated statement of profit and loss are translated’ at the average exchange rate
during the period. The differences arising out of the translation are transterred to foreign currency translation reserve.



Magnet 360, LLC
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts
For the three months period ended March 31, 2016

2.1

2.12

2.13

Warranties

Warranty costs (i.c. post contract support services) are estimated by the management on the basis of technical evaluation

and past experience. Provision is made for estimated liability in respect of warranty costs in the period of recognition of
revenue.

Provision and contingent liabilities

The Group creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires an
outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent
liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an
outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihaod of
outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Provisions for onerous contracts, i.e. contracts where the expected unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under
the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it are recognised when it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle a present obligation as a result of an
obligating event, based on a reliable estimate of such obligation,

Taxation

The current income tax charge is determined in accordance with the relevant tax regulations applicable to the Group.
Deferred tax charge or credit are recognised for the future tax consequences attributable to timing difference that result
between the profit offered for income taxes and the profit as per the financial statements. Deferred tax in respect of
timing difference which originate during the tax holiday period but reverse after the tax holiday period is recognised in
the period in which the timing difference originate. For this purpose the timing differences which originate first are
considered to reverse first. The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities or assets are
recognised using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax
assets are recognised only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be realised in future; however.
when there is a brought forward loss or unabsorbed depreciation under taxation laws, deferred tax assets are recognised
only if there is virtual certainty of realisation of such assets. Deferred tax assets are reviewed as at each balance sheet
date and written down or weritten up to reflect the amount that is reasonably/ virtually certain to be realised.

The entities within the Group oftset, on a year ou year basis, the current tax assets and (iabilities, where it has a legally
enforceable right and where it intends to settle such assets and liabilities on a net basis.

¢/
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts
For the thiree months period ended March 31, 2016

2.14

2.15

Impairment of assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset (including goodwill) mey be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. For an asset that does
not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to
which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The
reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss. If at the
balance sheet date there is an indication that if a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable
amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the
extent that the carrying amount of asset does not exceed the net book value that would have been determined; if no
impairment loss had been recognised. In respect of goodwill, impairment loss will be reversed only when it is caused by
specific external events and their effects have been reversed by subsequent external events.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation/ acquisition of assets is not amortised. It is tested for impairment on a periodic basis
and written off to the extent of impairment, it any.
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Magnet 360, LLC
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts
For the three months period ended March 31,2016

3.7 Segment Reporting

The Company is engaged in providing the marketing and technology services and is considered to constitute a

single segment in the context of primary segment reporting as prescribed by Accounting Standard 17 -
“Segment Reporting™.

The secondary segment is identified to geographical locations. The Company provides services in following

geography only.

Particulars S ee— For the period January 19,2016 to
March 31, 2016

America o e ————— 1 B 428,005,830

3.8  Related party transactions
Name of rp‘l@ ps;r_ty_ = = = Nature of relationship -

Mindtree Limited Holding Company

Mindtree Software (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. Fellow subsidiary

Discoverture Solutions [..L..C. Fellow subsidiary with effect from February {3, 2015

Discoverture Solutions U.L..C.* Fellow subsidiary with effect from February 13, 2015

Discoverture Solutions Europe Limited** Fellow subsidiary with effect from February 13, 2013

Bluefin Solutions Limited Fellow subsidiary with effect from July 16, 2015

Bluefin Sofutions Inc. Feltow subsidiary with effect from July 16, 201§

Bluefin Solutions Sdn Bhd Fellow subsidiary with effect from July 16, 2015

Blouvin (Pty) Limited Fellow subsidiary with effect from July 16, 2015

Bluefin Solutions Pte Ltd Fellow subsidiary with effect from July 16, 2015

Relational Solutions, Tnc Fellow subsidiary with effect from July 16, 2015

*Dissolved with effect from November 19,2015, T

** Application for dissolution filed on March 24, 2016.

Key Managerial Personnel:

Name Designation

Matt Meents - CEO Tl B

Doug Andersen Chief operating officer

Gabby Matzdorfr Chief Financial Officer

Bill Galfano Vice President of Sales - North America

Tina Sherman Vice President and Chief Growth Otficer

Josh Youman _Vice President of talent



Magnet 360, LL.C
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts
For the three months period ended March 31,2016

3.9

310

L.case transactions

Lease rental expense under non-cancellable operating lease during the three month period ended March 31,

2016 amounted to Rs 26,736,948. Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease are
as below:

Particulars - ' As at March 31,
2016
Payable -- Not later than one year 43,751,679

Payable -- Later than one year and not later than five years 58,951,898
Payable -- later than five years -

Dues to micro, small and medium enterprises

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated August 26,
2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its
customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated aftec filing of the Memorandum in
accordance with the ‘Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006" (‘the Act’). Accordingly,
the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as at March 31, 2016 has been made in the
financial statements based on information received and available with the Company. Further in view of the
Management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Act is
not expected o be material. The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier as at the

halanra chent date

Particulars For the | period
January 19, 2016 to
ey = e March 31,2016
The principal amount and the interest due thercon (to be shown Nil
separately) remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of accounting
period;
The amount of interest paid by the buyer under the Act along with the Nil

amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day
during each accounting period;

The amount of interest due and payable for the three month period (where Nil
the principal has been paid but interest under the Act not paid);

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of Nil
accounting period; and

The amount of further interest due and payable cven in the succeeding Nil
year, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to

the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible

expenditure under section 23.

/1

/ , o) 7 For Magnet 360, LLC
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Pacthasarathy N S Radha B
Director Nirecror
Gh Place: Bengaluru

= Date - April 18, 2016




Deloitte
Haskins & Sells e

Anchorage Il

100/2 Richmond Road
Bengaluru - 560 025
India

Tel: + 91 (80) 66276000
fax: + 91 (80) 66276013

Independent Auditor’s Certificate

To,

The Board of Directors,
Mindtree Limited

Global Village, RVCE Post,
Mysore Road,
Bangalore-560 059,
Karnataka, India

We, Deloitte Haskins & Sells, Chartered Accountanty (Firm’s Registration No. 0080728S), the statutory
auditors of Mindtree Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”), have examined the proposed
accounting treatment specified in clause 9 of the Proposed Scheme of Amalgamation of Magnet 360
L.L.C. with Mindtree Limited in terms of the provisions of the Section 391 to 394 of the Companies
Act, 1956 with reference to its compliance with the applicable Accounting Standards notified under the
Companies Act, 2013, and Other Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

The responsibility for the preparation of the Proposed Scheme and its compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations, including the applicable Accounting Standards as aforesaid, is that of the Board of
Directors of the Companies involved. Our responsibility is only to examine and report whether the
Proposed Scheme complies with the applicable Accounting Standards and Other Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles. Nothing contained in this Certificate, nor anything said or done in the course of,
or in connection with the services that are subject to this Certificate, will extend any duty of care that
we may have in our capacity of the statutory auditors of any financial statements of the Company. We
carried out our examination in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit Reports and Certificates
for Special Purposes, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,

Based on our examination and according to the information and explanations given to us, we confirm
that the accounting treatment contained in the aforesaid scheme is in compliance with SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and circulars issued there under and all
the applicable Accounting Standards notified by the Central Government under the Companies Act,
2013.

For ease of reference, the Proposed Scheme, duly authenticated on behalf of the Company, is annexed
to this certificate, and is stamped by us only for the purposes of identification.

This Certificate is issued at the request of the Mindtree Limited pursuant to the requirements of circulars
issued under SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for onward
submission to the National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited. This Certificate should
not be used for any other purpose without our prior written consent.

ror DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS

F i oo Chartered Accountant
BENGALURU, 18 July, 2016 or Mindtree Limited (ICAI Reg, No. 0080725)

Ref: VB/ 132 ) = | ‘..
° Vel —] AR

(7 cusmmen | Company Secratary V. BALAJI
| accoummanrs Partner
[& i Membership No. 203685

\
LR
Nl



AN NEXURE Gl

Registered Office Address: Mindtree Ltd.

W M | n dtre e Global Village, RVCE Post, Mysore Road,

Bengaluru-560059, Karnataka, India.
Welcome to possible Corporate Identity Number (CIN): L72200KA1999PLC025564
E-mail: info@mindtree.com

August 08, 2016
National Stock Exchange of India Limited
Exchange Plaza,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East,
Mumbai 400 051

Dear Sirs,

Subject: Application under Requlation 37 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Requlations, 2015, for the proposed Scheme of Amalgamation of Magnet 360, LLC

(Transferor Company) with Mindtree Limited (Transferee Company).

In connection with the above application, We undertake and confirm that the Company is in Compliance of
the requirements of Regulation 27(2) (a) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015. A copy of the Compliance Report is attached to as an Annexure 1.

Thanking you,
Yours sincerely,

for Mindtree Limited

% -
gd =1

Vedavalli S
Company Secretary

Mindtree Ltd.

Global Village T +91806706 4000
RVCE Post, Mysore Road F +91806706 4100
Bengaluru - 560059 W www.mindtree.com
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ANNEXURE H

Registered Office Address: Mindtree Ltd.

@/) M |n dtree Global Village, RVCE Post, Mysore Road,

Bengaluru-560059, Karnataka, India.
Welcome to possible Corporate Identity Number (CIN): L72200KA1999PLC025564
E-mail: info@mindtree.com

ANNEXURE I

Compliance report with the requirements specified in SEBI Circular CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015 dated
November 30, 2015

Ref:  Application under Requlations 37 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015

Sub: Scheme of Amalgamation of Magnet 360, LLC (Transferor Company) with Mindtree Limited
(Transferee Company)

In connection with the above application, we hereby confirm that we satisfy all the conditions as stipulated
in the aforesaid SEBI circular, as given hereunder:

Sr. No. | Requirements as per SEBI Circular Compliance Status
CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015 dated November 30, 2015 (Yes / No)
1 Listed companies shall choose one of the stock | NSE. YES

exchanges having nation-wide trading terminals as the
designated stock exchange for the purpose of
coordinating with SEBI.

Compliance as per Para | (A) (3) of Annexure | to the Circular

2 Documents to be submitted:

2.a Draft Scheme of arrangement/ amalgamation/ merger/ | Annexure A
2b reconstruction/ reduction of capital, etc.

2.¢c Valuation Report as per Para 1(A)(4) of Annexure-| of | Annexure B1
SEBI  Circular  CIR/CFD/CMD/16/20156  dated
November 30, 2015

2d Report from the Audit Committee recommending the | Annexure B2
Draft Scheme

2e Fairness opinion by merchant banker Annexure C
2.f Pre and post amalgamation shareholding pattern of | Shareholding of Transferee
unlisted company Company- Annexure D1
Shareholding of Transferor

Company- Annexure D2

29 Audited financials of last 3 years (financials not being | Annexure E2
more than 6 months old) of unlisted company;

2.h Auditor's Certificate as per Para 1(A)(5) of Annexure-| | Annexure F
of SEBI Circular CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015 dated
November 30, 2015

2. Compliance with requirements of Regulation 17 to 27 | Annexure G
of Listing Regulations

2. Complaints Report as per Annexure lll of SEBI | This will be submitted within 7 days of |
Circular CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015 dated November 30, | expiry of 21 days
2015

L NN
G Y
Mindtree Ltd.
Global Village T +91806706 4000
RVCE Post, Mysore Road F +91806706 4100

Bengaluru - 560059 W www.mindtree.com



@/1 M . d Registered Office Address: Mindtree Ltd.
Z Global Village, RVCE Post, Mysore Road,
/) ln tree Bengaluru-560059, Iarnataka, India.
Welcome to possible Corporate Identity Number (CIN): L72200KA1999PLC025564
E-mail info@mindtree.com
Compliance as per Para | (A) (1) of Annexure | to the Circular

3 The equity shares sought to be listed are proposed to | NA as no shares are allotted
be allotted by the unlisted Issuer (transferee entity) to
the holders of securities of a listed entity (transferor
entity) pursuant to a scheme of reconstruction or
amalgamation (Scheme) sanctioned by a High Court
under Section 391-394 of the Companies Act, 1956 or
under Section 230-234 of the Companies Act, 2013

4 At least 25% of the post scheme paid up share capital | NA as no shares are allotted
of the transferee entity shall comprise of shares
allotted to the public holders in the transferor entity.

5 The transferee entity will not issue/reissue any shares, | NA as no shares are allotted
not covered under the Draft scheme.
6 As on date of application there are no outstanding | NA as no shares are allotted

warrants/ instruments/ agreements which give right to
any person to take the equity shares in the transferee
entity at any future date. If there are such instruments
stipulated in the Draft scheme, the percentage referred
to in point (4) above, shall be computed after giving
effect to the consequent increase of capital on account
of compulsory conversions outstanding as well as on
the assumption that the options outstanding, if any, to
subscribe for additional capital will be exercised.

7 The shares of the transferee entity issued in lieu of the | NA as no shares are allotted
locked-in shares of the transferor entity are subjected
to the lock-in for the remaining period.

|
—
¢ed
Date: AMS o0&, 2ol b Y

Place: R W\_ga},{)*( Q Manaygifig Direttor/ Company Secretary

Mindtree Ltd.

Global Village T +91806706 4000
RVCE Post, Mysore Road F +91806706 4100
Bengaluru - 560059 W www.mindtree.com



Deloitte
Haskins & Sells Craeeg secoran

Anchorage Ii

100/2 Richmond Road
Bengaluru - 560 025
India

Tel: + 91 (80) 66276000
Fax: + 91 (80) 66276013

Independent Auditor’s Certificate

To, '
The Board of Directors,

Mindtree Limited

Global Village,

RVCE Post,

Mysore Road,

Bangalore-560059,

Karnataka, India

1. We, Deloitte Haskins & Sells, Chartered Accountant (Firm’s Registration No. 008072S), the
statutory auditors of Mindtree Limited (“the Company”), have been requested by the Company to
certify the attached “Undertaking in relation to non-applicability of requirements prescribed in
Paragraph 9 (a) of I.A. of Annexure I of the Securities Exchange Board of India (SEBI) Circular
No. CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015 dated November 30, 2015 (together, the “SEBI Circular”)” (“the
undertaking”), which has been prepared by the Company and approved by its Board of Directors,
and is duly stamped by us for identification purpose.

2. The Management of the Company is responsible for preparation of the undertaking and the
maintenance of proper books of account and such other relevant records as prescribed by applicable
laws, which includes collecting, collating and validating data and designing, implementing and
monitoring of ifiternal controls relevant to preparation of the undertaking that is free from material
misstatement and for ensuring compliance with the applicable SEBI Circulars.

3. Our responsibility, for the purpose of certificate, is limited to certifying the particulars contained in
the undertaking on the basis of the proposed “Scheme of Amalgamation of Magnet 360 L.L.C. with
Mindtree Limited” (“Proposed Scheme”), books of account and other relevant records and
documents maintained by the Company and did not include the evaluation of the adherence by the
Company with all applicable guidelines, We conducted our verification in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit Reports and Certificates for Special Purpose and Standard on Auditing
issued by Institute of Chartered Accountant of India.

\L.

R For Mindtree Limited
v .\n.sr *- '
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4. On the basis of our verification of the Proposed Scheme and other relevant records and documents
as referred to in paragraph 3 above and according to the information and explanations provided to
us by the Management of the Company, we certify that the undertaking provided by the Board of
Directors of the Company as referred to in paragraph 1, is in accordance with the books of account,
Proposed Scheme and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Company.

5. ‘This Certificate is issued at the request of the Mindtree Limited in connection with the Proposed
Scheme for onward submission to the National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited.
This Certificate should not be used for any other purpose without our prior written consent.

) g For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
(9 onarms Y4\ Chartered Accountants
BENGALURU, 18 July, 2016 | /o) | (ICAI Reg. No. 0080725)
A &k S :
."";f‘{.g". . ';{’-_‘ ,/ \} \
Ref: VB/ 133 VGO

V. BALAJI
Partner
Membership No, 203685



@ \ M i dt Registered Office Address: Mindtree Ltd.
) Global Village, RVCE Post, Mysore Road,
&4 'n ree Bengaluru-560059, Karnatala, India.
Welcome to possible Corporate Identity Number (CIN): L72200KA1999PLCO25564

E-mail: info@mindtree.com

Undertaking in relation to non-applicability of requirements prescribed in Paragraph'9 (a) of I. A, of Annexure
| of the Securities Exchange Board of India Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015 dated November 30, 2015

This is with reference to the Draft Scheme of Arrangement between Magnet 360 L.L.C, a wholly owned
subsidiary of Mindtree Limited and Mindtree Limited {"the Company"} and their resbective shareholders and
creditors under section 391 to 394 of the Companies Act, 1956 ("the Draft Schome"). Capitalized terms
appearing herein, unless expressly stated, shall have the meaning prescribed to them in SEBI Circular No.
CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015 dated November 30, 2015 ("the SEBI Circular").

Accordingly, the Company hereby undertakes that the requirement of Paragraph 9(a) of I. A. of Annexure | of
the SEBI Circular pertaining to voting by public shareholders through postal ballot and e-voting are not
applicable to the Company for the followlng reasons:

i.  Where additional shares have been allotted to Promoter/ Promoter Greup , Related parties of
Promoter/ Promoter Group, Assoclates of Promoter/ Pramoter Group , Subsidiary/ (s) of Promoter/
Promoter Group of the listed entity.

Not applicable, since no shares would be allotted to Promoter/ Promoter Group, Related Parties of
Promoter/ Promoter Group, Associates of Promoter/ Promoter Group, Subsidiary/(s) of Promoter/
Promoter Group of the listed Company, arising out of this merger.

ii.  Where the Scheme of Arrangement involves the listed entity and any other entity involving Promoter/
Promoter Group, Related Parties of Promoter/ Promoter Group, Associates of Promoter/ Promoter
Group, Subsidiary/(s) of Promoter/ Promoter Group.

Not applicable, since the Scheme of Arrangement Is with wholly owned subsidiary and does not involve
any of its Promoter/ Promoter Group, Related Parties of Promoter/ Promoter Group, Associates of
Promoter/ Promoter Group, Subsidiary/(s) of Promoter/ Promoter Group.

il.  Where the parent listed Company, has acquired the equity shares of the subsidiary, by paying
consideration in cash or in kind in the past to any of the shareholders of the subsidiary who may be
Promoter/ Promoter Group, Related parties of Promoter / Promoter Group, Associates of Promoter/
Promoter Group, Subsidiary/ (s} of Promoter/ Promoter Group of the parent listed Company, and if that
subsidiary is being merged with the parent listed Company under the Schemg of arrangement.

Not applicable, since the share of Magnet 360 L.L.C was acquired by the Company from persons who
were not the Promoter/ Promoter Group, Related Parties of Promoter/ Promoter Group, Associates of
Promoter/ Promoter Group, Subsidiary/(s) of Promoter/ Promoter Group of the Company.

In view of the aforesaid, the requirement stated at paragraph 9 (a) of I.A. of Annexure 1 of the circular
is not applicable to the draft scheme,

For Mindtree Ll it d

¥ied =

Date: 18" July, 2016

Mindtree Ltd.

Global Village T +91806706 4000
RVCE Post, Mysore Road F +91806706 4100
Bengaluru - 560059 W www.mindtree.com



AN EXVRE T

Deloitte
Haskins & Sells

Anchorage i

100/2 Richmond Road
Bengaluru - 560 025
India

Tel: + 91 {80) 66276000
Fax: -+ 91 {80) 66276013

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S CERTIFICATE

|.  We, Deloitte Haskins & Sells, Chartered Accountants (Firm’s Registration Number 008072S), the
statutory auditors of Mindtree Limited (the “Company™), have for the purpose of issuing this
certificate, examined: '

(a) the audited standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31,
2016;

(b) the proposed scheme of amalgamation of Magnet 360 L.L..C. with Mindtree Limited;

(¢) the ‘Statement of computation of pre and post amalgamation net worth of the Company as
at March 31, 2016’ (the ‘Statement’), prepared by the Company and duly stamped for
identification; and

(d) such other information and documents, which we considered necessary for the purpose of
issuing this certificate.

2. The Management of the Company is responsible for the preparation of the Statement and the
maintenance of proper books of account and such other relevant records as prescribed by the
applicable laws. Our responsibility, for the purpose of this certificate, is limited to certifying the
particulars contained in the Statement from the aforesaid audited standalone financial statements
and other relevant records and documents as described in paragraph 1 above. We have carried out
our examination in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit Reports and Certificates for
Special Purposes and Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

3, Based on our examination conducted as described in paragraph 2 above and according to the
information, explanations and representations provided to us by the Management of the Company,
we certify that the particulars furnished by the Company in the said Statement, read with and subject
to the notes thereon, are in agreement with the aforesaid audited standalone financial statements
and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Company.

4. This Certificate is issued at the request of the Mindtree Limited in connection with the Proposed
Scheme for onward submission to the National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited.
This Certificate should not be used for any other purpose without our prior written consent.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants
(ICAl Reg. No. 0080725)

BENGALURU, 18 July, 2016 2
’ g For Mindtree Limited \] \ A o
Ref: VB/131 - V. BALAJI
=2 Partner
< < 0 e Membership No. 203685

- \fo\ Company Secretary



Mindtree Limited

Statement of computation of pre and post amalgamation net worth of the Company as at
March 31, 2016
(Rs In millions)

Particulars Pre-amalgamation ' Post-amalgamation

Equlty Share Capital | 1,678 1,678

Reserves and Surplus:

Capital reserve . 87/ 87
Securitles premlum reserve 1,122 1,122
General reserve 1,542 1,542
Surplus in the statement of profit and loss 20,129 20,129
Total Reserves and Surplus 22,880 22,380
Net worth (A +B) 24,558 24,558
Notes:

1. "Net Worth" means sum total of paid-up capltal and free reserves.

As per section 2(43) of Companies Act, 2013 "Free reserves" free reserves” means such
reserves which, as per the latest audited balance sheet of a company, are available for
distribution as dividend:
Provided that—

(1) any amount representing unrealised gains, notional gains or revaluation of assets, whether
shown as a reserve or otherwise, or

(1) any change In carrying amount of an asset or of a liability recognised in equity, including
surplus in profit and loss account on measurement of the asset or the liability at falr value,
shall not be treated as free reserves,

For Mindtree Limited

A AASKr e g .
A% Y ) \—= =
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[O] cumesn \&

|\ ACCOUNTANTS = (S )
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Place: Bangalore
Date: 18th July, 2016
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ANNEXURE K1

Registered Office Address: Mindtree Ltd.

@/jj M in dtre e Global Village, RVCE Post, Mysore Road,

Bengaluru-560059, Karnataka, India.
Welcome to possible Corporate Identity Number (CIN): L72200KA1999PLC025564
E-mail: info@mindtree.com

EXTRACT OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS HELD
ON JULY 18, 2016 AT GLOBAL VILLAGE, RVCE POST, MYSORE ROAD, BENGALURU-
560059

APPROVAL OF THE SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION OF MAGNET 360 LLC. WITH
MINDTREE LIMITED

“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of sections 391 to 394 and all other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act, 1956 and that of the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, if
any, and enabling provisions in the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015and various circulars issued by SEBI and
other Statutory Authorities from time to time and subject to confirmation of the Jurisdictional High Court
/ National Company Law Tribunal and approval of the Foreign Investment Promotion Board / Reserve
Bank of India and other concerned authorities, if any, and all such other approvals, permissions and
sanctions, as may be necessary and subject to such conditions and modifications as may be prescribed or
imposed by any of them while granting such approvals, permissions and sanctions, which may be agreed
to by the Company, the consent of the Board be and is hereby accorded for the amalgamation of Magnet
360, LLC (Transferor Company) with the Company (Transferee Company) vide the Scheme of
Amalgamation [hereinafter the “Scheme”] (the draft of which was submitted to this meeting and was
initialed by the Chairman of the meeting for the purposes of identification,).

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT there is no requirement for the share entitlement ratio as the transferor
company is the wholly owned subsidiary of the transferee company and no shares are allotted to them.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the valuation report issued by the Chartered Accountant be and is hereby
taken on record.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Fairness report issued by the merchant banker (which was considered
by the Audit Committee) and the report of the Audit Committee recommending the Scheme of amalgamation
be and are hereby taken on record.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the undertaking of the Company with regard to non-applicability of
requirements under Paragraph 9 (a) of I (4) of Annexure I of the Securities Exchange Board of India (SEBI)
Circular No. CIR/CED/CMD/16/2015 dated November 30, 2015 , in respect of the scheme duly certified
by the Statutory Auditors of the Company , placed before the Board, be and is hereby approved and taken
on record by the Board.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the opinion of the Board, the said scheme will be of advantage and
beneficial to the Company, its shareholders, creditors and other stakeholders and the terms thereof are fair
and reasonable.

oY

Mindtree Ltd.

Global Village T +91806706 4000
RVCE Post, Mysore Road F +91806706 4100
Bengaluru - 560059 W www.mindtree.com



Registered Office Address: Mindtree Ltd.

%;é} M in dtre e Global Village, RVCE Post, Mysore Road,

Bengaluru-560059, Karnatala, India.
Welcome to possible Corporate Identity Number (CIN): L72200KA1999PLC0O25564
E-mail: info@mindtree.com

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT National Stock Exchange of India Limited be and is hereby appointed as
the Designated Stock Exchange for the purpose of the Scheme,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of the Scheme of amalgamation of Magnet 360, LLC with
the Company, any of the Executive Directors, Mr. Jagannathan Chakravarthi, CFO, Mr. Erwan Carpentier,
SVP Legal and General Counsel, Ms. Vedavalli Sridharan, Company Secretary, be and are hereby
severally authorized to:

. tomake such alterations and changes to the aforesaid Scheme of Amalgamation as may
be expedient or necessary, particularly for satisfying the requirements or conditions
imposed by the Central Government or by the concerned Stock Exchanges or the Court
of competent jurisdiction;

ii.  toevolve, decide upon and bring into effect the Scheme and make and give effect to any
modifications, changes, variations, alterations or revision in the Scheme from time to
time or to suspend, withdraw or revive the Scheme from time to time as may be specified
by any statutory authority or may suo moto decide in its absolute discretion and to do all
such acts, deeds, matters and things whatsoever, including settling any question, doubt
or difficulty that may arise with regard to or in relation to the scheme as it may in its
absolute discretion consider necessary, expedient, fit and proper;

iii.  file applications/petitions/affidavits/pleadings or other documents as may be required
for the scheme in the High Court of Karnataka/ National Company Law Tribunal or
other relevant courts including the filings as may be required under the laws of the
transferor company,

iv.  obtain the requisite approval of the Foreign Investment Promotion Board / Reserve Bank
of India; if necessary;

v.  affix the common seal of the Company on any documents as per the Articles of
Association;

vi.  file the said Scheme with the concerned Stock exchanges for approval in terms of the
provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, including the appointment of designated stock exchange,

vii.  To approve various reports as may be required with regard to the filing of the scheme as
may be required by the stock exchanges and various government authorities;

viii,  settle any question or difficulty that may arise with regard to the implementation of the
above Scheme, and to give effect to the above resolution;

ix. . make application to relevant authorities or other persons for their approval as may be
required,

x.  authorize any person(s) to, sign and file applications/petitions to the High Court of
Karnataka/ National Company Law Tribunal and that of other competent jurisdiction
for directions for holding a meeting of the Members and Creditors and for confirmation
of the Scheme, including the appointment of Chairman for such meetings, to sign notices
convening such meetings of shareholders, creditors and other concerned persons;

Mindtree Ltd.

Global Village T +91806706 4000 ¢
RVCE Post, Mysore Road F +91806706 4100

Bengaluru - 560059 W www.mindtree.com



Registered Office Address: Mindtree Ltd.

@% M in dtre e Global Village, RVCE Post, Mysore Road,

Bengaluru-560059, Karnataka, India.
Welcome to possible Corporate Identity Number (CIN): L72200KA1999PLC0O25564
E-mail: info@mindtree.com

xi.  authorise any person(s) to file all pleadings, reports, and sign and issue public
advertisements and notices, for and in connection with the above purpose;

xii.  give such directors as may be considered necessary to settle any question or difficulty
arising under the Scheme or in regard to and of the meaning or interpretation of the
scheme or implementation hereof or in any manner whatsoever connected herewith and

Xiii. do all such act, deeds and things necessary, desirable or expedient in connection with
or incidental to giving effect to the purpose of the above resolution;

xiv.  to appear before the Official Liquidator, Registrar of Companies, Income Tax
Department, Regional Director and other statutory and quasi-judicial authorities in
connection with matters, connected and incidental thereto,

xv.  toappoint Mr. N.K. Dilip, Mr. Nanjappa. M.G., Mr. Raghunath Ananthapur, Ms. Rashmi
Talukdar, Mr. Bhargava. K.S., Mr. Ankush V.H and/or any other advocates of M/s Tatva
Legal, Advocates having their office at B-3, 2" Floor, Embassy Heights, Annexe Block,
Magrath Road, Bangalore 560 025 as advocates to represent the Company before the
High Court of Karnataka/ National Company Law Tribunal and other courts in respect
of the Scheme and all matters, connected and incidental thereto and all such acts, deeds
and things (incidental and ancillary) as may be considered necessary and expedient in
relation thereto;

xvi.  tofile necessary forms, papers, returns, documents etc., with the Registrar of Companies,
Karnataka within stipulated time as applicable under the provisions of the Companies
Act;

xvii.  to appoint Scruitiniser to conduct the proceedings of Court convened meeting of

shareholders/creditors, if any, at a fee as they may deem fit.

// CERTIFIED TRUE COPY//

For Mindtree Limited

Vﬁ"’ )[\"_",/2 d 5

Company Secretary

Mindtree Ltd.

Global Village T +91806706 4000
RVCE Post, Mysore Road F +91806706 4100
Bengaluru - 560059 W www.mindtree.com



Annexure K2

WRITTEN ACTION OF
THE SOLE MEMBER
OF
MAGNET360, LLC

Effective as of 18th July, 2016

THE UNDERSIGNED, Mindtree Limited, a public limited company organized under the laws of
the Country of India (“Mindtree”), being the sole member of Magnet360, LLC, a limited liability company
organized under the laws of the State of Minnesota (the “Company™), pursuant to Chapter 322C of the
Minnesota Statutes, does hereby take and adopt in writing the following preambles and resolutions:

APPROVAL OF MERGER

WIHEREAS, Mindtrcc owns all of the issucd and outstanding membership interests of the
Company; and

WHEREAS, Mindtree desires the Company to merge with and into Mindtree, with Mindtree
continuing as the surviving company in the transaction (the “Merger”), pursuant to the terms of a Scheme
of Amalgamation in substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Agreement”);

NOW, THEREFORE, RESOLVED, that the Agreement (including exhibits, schedules, and
ancillary agreements contemplated thereby), the Merger and all of the other actions and matters
contemplated by the Agreement are hereby approved by Mindtree in all respects;

FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Company’s Board of Governors (the “Board”) and officers are
hereby authorized to execute and deliver, as applicable, the Agreement, with such changes as the
officer executing the Agreement shall approve (such approval to be conclusively evidenced by such
officer’s execution of the same) and, subject to such execution and delivery, to perform the
Company’s obligations thereunder, including without limitation, executing, delivering, and filing
any other documents, agreements, certificates and instruments that the Company’s officers, in their
discretion, deem necessary or appropriate to complete the Merger and effectuate the transactions
and other actions contemplated by the Agreement;

FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Company’s Board and officers are hereby authorized, for and on
behalf of the Company, to prepare, execute and deliver, acknowledge, file and record any and all
such agreements, instruments and documents, to seek necessary approvals and to take or cause to
be taken any and all such other actions as such officers shall deem necessary, appropriate or
advisable in order to carry out the purpose of each of the foregoing resolutions and the intent
thereof, including all things incidental thereto, and that this Written Action may be executed in
counterparts; and

FURTHER RESOLVED, that any and all actions heretofore taken by the Company’s Board and
officers to effectuate or evidence the purpose and intent of the foregoing resolutions are approved,
ratified and confirmed in all respects as the acts of the Company.

- 000000 -

For Mindtree Limite-

Company Sacretary \




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned sole.member of the Company has executed this Written
Action to be effective as of the date first written above.

SOLE MEMBER:
MINDTREE LIMITED
= o
(ﬁt BANGALORE ;"")




ANNEXVURE L

Y . Registered Office Address: Mindtree Ltd.
@% M |n dtre e Global Village, RVCE Post, Mysore Road,
.27 Bengaluru-560059, Karnataka, India.
Welcome to possible Corporate Identity Number (CIN): L72200KA1999PLC025564
E-mail: info@mindtree.com

August O & 2016
National Stock Exchange of India Limited
Exchange Plaza,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East,
Mumbai 400 051

Dear Sirs,

Subject: Undertaking under Regulation 11 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015

The Company ensures that the Scheme of Amalgamation of Magnet 360, LLC with Mindtree Limited to be
presented to any Court or Tribunal does not in any way violate, override or circumscribe the provisions of
Security Laws or the Stock Exchange requirements.

Thanking you,
Yours sincerely,

for Mindtree Limited
Y =

Vedavalli S
Company Secretary

Mindtree Ltd.

Global Village T +91806706 4000
RVCE Post, Mysore Road F +91806706 4100
Bengaluru - 560059 W www.mindtree.com



ANNEXURE M

Registered Office Address: Mindtree Ltd.

@/7/))' M |n dtre e Global Village, RVCE Post, Mysore Road,

Bengaluru-560059, Karnataka, India.
Welcome to possible Corporate Identity Number (CIN): L72200KA1999PLC025564
E-mail: info@mindtree.com

August © & 2016
National Stock Exchange of India Limited
Exchange Plaza,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East,
Mumbai 400 051

Dear Sirs,

Subject: Rationale behind the Scheme

This is further to the application for the Scheme of Amalgamation of Mindtree Limited (Transferee
Company) and Magnet 360, LLC (hereinafter referred to as “Transferor Company”) filed with your
exchange. The Rationale behind the scheme are as follows:

(i) The amalgamation will enable the Transferee Company to integrate its business operations
and provide significant impetus to the growth of the Transferee Company. The
consolidation of the activities by way of an amalgamation will lead to synergies of
operations and a stronger and wider capital and financial base for future growth/expansion.
The combined entity will have a bigger portfolio of services targeted at a wider array of
customers, which will strengthen its competitive position in providing IT services /software
& technology related services markets This will also enable the Transferee Company to
address newer solutions and services to its customers and to transferor's customers and
enhance its marketing capabilities.

(i) The amalgamation will result in economy of scales and reduction in overheads,
administrative, managerial and other expenditure, operational rationalisation,
organisational efficiency, and optimal utilisation of various resources.

(iii) The managerial expertise of the Transferor Companies will contribute to the strength of the
Transferee Company. Consequently, the Transferee Company will offer a strong financial
structure to all creditors including the creditors of the Transferor Companies, facilitate
resource mobilisation and achieve better cash flows. This would contribute substantially
towards enhancement of shareholder’s value of the Transferee Company.

(iv) Duplication of administrative functions will be eliminated together with the multiple record -
keeping resulting in reduced expenditure.

(v) This amalgamation will result in a significant reduction in the multiplicity of legal and
regulatory compliances required at present to be carried out by the Transferor Companies
and the Transferee Company.

(vi) The banks, creditors and institutions, if any, are not affected by the proposed amalgamation
as their security is maintained.

(vii) There shall be impetus and increase in the area of sales, network of the Transferee
Company apart from reduction in costs.

=
Mindtree Ltd. S
Global Village T +91806706 4000
RVCE Post, Mysore Road F +91806706 4100

Bengaluru - 560059 W www.mindtree.com



Registered Office Address: Mindtree Ltd.

@/) Mindtree Global Village, RVCE Post, Mysore Road,

Bengaluru-560059, Karnataka, India.
Welcome to possible Corporate Identity Number (CIN): L72200KA1999PLC025564
E-mail: info@mindtree.com

(vi)  The amalgamation shall result in the combination of manpower of both the companies and
a single management structure for the companies.

(ix) The combined managerial and technical expertise would enable the Transferee Company
to develop a business model that would be compstitive and cogent.

Thanking you,
Yours sincerely,

for Mindtree Limited
\_)j/
Y ¢ Y, ,

Vedavalli S
Company Secretary

Mindtree Ltd.

Global Village T +91806706 4000
RVCE Post, Mysore Road F +918067064100
Bengaluru - 560059 W www.mindtree.com
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ANNEXURE N

Registered Office Address: Mindtree Ltd.

@/j M |n dtre e Global Village, RVCE Post, Mysore Road,

Bengaluru-560059, Karnataka, India.
Welcome to possible Corporate Identity Number (CIN): L72200KA1999PLC025564
E-mail: info@mindtree.com

August 08, 2016
National Stock Exchange of India Limited
Exchange Plaza,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East,
Mumbai 400 051

Dear Sirs,

Ref: Requlations 37 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015

Subject: Brief details of business of Mindtree Limited and Magnet 360, LLC as required under
Requlations 37 of SEBI (LODR) Requlations, 2015

The details of business of Mindtree Limited are as follows:

Mindtree Limited:

The Transferee Company is involved in the business of software and technology related services, product
development services, information management services etc.

Magnet 360, LLC:

The Transferor Company is involved in the business of IT Software and Services related to Salesforce suite
of products and platforms

Thanking you,
Yours sincerely,

For Mindtree Limited
Y R \//g

Vedavalli S
Company Secretary

Mindtree Ltd.

Global Village T +91806706 4000
RVCE Post, Mysore Road F +91806706 4100
Bengaluru - 560059 W www.mindtree.com
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